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TOYOTA
Tree

'j The tree has been used to
symbolise the Toyota Global Vision
frorm roots to fruits The tree is a
symbol of natural strength, useful
and sustainable, something that

continues to grow and flourish
year after year.

A product should never be
sold unless it has been
carefully manufactured
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let's make
e

February 1993 |
The first-ever -
Toyota Corolla is bornat IMC"

creating
happiness for all

Akio Toyoda

1" , .
We make cars. Let’s make ever-better cars, and make our customers happy. We must

not forget that, even though we have become a global automotive manufacturer,
one of our unwavering principles is putting the customer first. Let's not be caught up
in immeadiate profits, but let’s review how we do our businass and look forward again.
If we take one step farward in our own way, | believe it will open up for us a future.



GUIDING
PRINCIPLES

2 Alvrays be studious and creative,
striving to stay ahead of the times,
Always be faithful to your duties,
3 thereby contributing to the Company
and to the overall good.

Always have respect for spiritual
matters, and remember to be grateful
at all times.

1 | Always strive to build a homelike atmosphere

Since the Company was founded In 1937, Toyota Motor Corporation and its subsidiaries
have continuously striven to contribute to the sustainable development of society and
the earth through the provision of high-quality and innovative products and services.

Always be practical and avoid
5 ‘ frivelousness. @ Honor the language and spirit of the law of every country and

region, and undertake open and fair business activities to be a
strong corporate citizen of the world.

Respect the culture and customs of every country and region,
and contribute to economic and social development through
TOYOTA

corporate activities in their respective communities.

Dedicate our business to provide clean and safe products and

to enhancing the quality of life everywhere through all of our

activities.

Create and develop advanced technologies and provide

outstanding products and services that fulfill the needs of
TOYOTA  customers worldwide.

Foster a corporate culture that enhances both individual

@ creativity and the value of teamwork, while honoring mutual

TOYOTA  tryst and respect between labor and management.

@ Pursue growth through harmony with the global community
TovoTra  Via innovative management.

TOYOTA
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Work with business partners in research and manufacturing to
achieve stable, long term growth and mutual benefits, while
remaining open to new partnerships.

S

TOYOTA




SUSTAINABILITY
FUNDAMENTALPOLICY _

We, Toyota Motor Corporation and our subsidiaries, have inherited the spirit of "Toyoda Princ Fl]]FE since our
foundation, and have aimed to create a prosperous society through our business activities, based on "The Guiding
Principles at Toyota.” In 2020, based on these Principles, we compiled the "Toyota Philosophy” and set the mission
of “Producing Happiness for AlL" We aim to be the ' ‘best company in town" that is both loved and trusted by the
people. We will contribute to the sustainable development of our society/planet by promoting sustainability, as we
have, under the "Toyota Philosophy,” based on the Sustainability Fundamental Policy and individual policies.

CUSTOMERS scale of the company, and evaluate the

overall strengths. (Guiding Principle: 7]

Based on our "Customer First” philosophy, we develop We maintain fair and free competition in acce

and provide innovative, safe, and ou Jtanrimg high with the =r and spirit of each country and region’s
quality products and services that meet a wide variety of s. (Guiding Principles: 1and 7
customer demands to enrich the lives of people around
the world. (Guiding Principles: 3 and 4)

We will endeavor to protect the personal information of
customers and evervona we are engaged in
business with, in accordance with the letter and spirit of
each country and region's privacy laws, (Guiding
Principle: 1)

fthF and lonq tF'rm grr;u.--.rtf" fc:n t} = bF‘r‘F‘TIt of our

areholders, {Guiding Principle: &)
We provide our shareholders y
and fair disclosure i g results, financia
condition and non-financial information. {(Guiding
Principles: 1 and &)

EMPLOYEES

We respect our employees and believe that the success

: led by each individual's creativity and  ENVIRONMENT
support personal growth for our
ding Principle: 5)
We support equal employment opportunities and
diversity and inclusion for our em 25, We do not
discriminate against them. (Guiding Principle: 5]

We aim for growth that is in harmony with the
environment by ng te minimize the environmental
impact of our business crperatlu 5 as by waorking
to reduce the effect of our and operations on
climate change and biodiversity, We strive to develop,
that enable the
Iwrmani:‘}u
anri to trlllld LlD-_-.F- am] cooperative rels ips with &

3 Spl--LtI urm aof ind |f_r.u.a|.:; and dFIITdt'IE:Hh
invelved in environmental presery . (Guiding
Principle: 3)

We strive to provide fair weo conditions and to
maintain a safe and healthy working envirenment for all Eﬁtﬂt'l'E'-' and promote tE' hnolo
our employees. (Guiding Principle: 5) L
We respect and henor the human rights of people
inverlved in our business and, in particular, do not use or
tolerate any form of forced or child labor, [(Guiding
Principle: 5)
Thraugh Lj{_:-IT'II!':LIr: cation ar > '-.-'-flth. our COMMUNITY

ployees, we build e “Mutual Trust
and Mutual Responsibil warking together for the

of our emplo
our empl

We implement our philosophy of respect for people by
honoring the culture, customs, history, and laws of each

countries and regions in which we operate. [Guiding
Principle: 5)

Management of sach company takes leadership in
fostering a corporate culture and implementing policies
that promote ethical behavior. (Guiding Principles: 1
and 5)

BUSINESS PARTNERS

We respeact our business partners such as suppliers and
deal and work m through long-term
relationships to realiz L growth based on mutual

country and region. (Guiding Pringi 2]
and improved
tPL_hrmiﬂgie_, that sa needs of society

ustainable mo bll GUic inciples: 3 and 4)
partner,
and maintain
'n:mz.hip:, 'u'-.rith government agencies
s. (Guiding Principla: 1)

SOCIAL CONTRIBUTION

Wheraver we da business, we actively pmlu:}tﬁ and
engage, both Individually and with partners, In social
contribution  activities that help strengthen
communities and contribute to the enrichment of
society. (Guiding Principle: 2)
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'VISION
be the énust respected and successful
entrpgise, delighting customers with
“awide range of products and solutions in
the automabile industry with the best

people & ndg?he best technology.
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IMC’s b5 sion is reflected in the

y 2 Company'’s slogan, Action,

Commitment and Teamwork, to
become # 1in Pakistan.




ACT #

Action
Customer Satisfaction Commitment

Teamwork World class production quality
Production & Sales

Quality & Safety

Respect & Corporate Image

Achieving the ultimate goal of complete customer satisfaction

Being seen as the best employer
Best Employer
Fostering the spirit of teamwork

Profitability

Inculcating ethical and honest practices




OBJECTIVES

Achieving Market Leadership by
Delivering Value to Customers

£+ Following our “Customer First” philesophy in manufacturing and providing high
quality vehicles and services that meet the needs of Pakistani customers.

< Enhancing the quality and reach of our 35 Dealership network.

£ Employing customer insight and feedback for continuous corporate renewal,
including product development, improving service and customer care.

Optimising Cost by Kaizen

<y Fostering a kaizen culture and mindset at IMC, its dealers and vendors.
<+ Implementing the Toyota Production System.
% Removing waste in all areas and operating in the lowest cost quartile of the industry.

Respecting Our People |

< Treating employees as the most impartant sustainable competitive resource.

€ Providing a continuous learning environment that promotes individual creativity and
teamwork.

€ Supporting equal employment opportunities, diversity and inclusion without
discrimination.

< Building competitive value through mutual trust and mutual responsibility between
the IMC Team and the Company.

Bringing Toyota Quality to Pakistan

< Maximizing QDR (Quality, Durability and Reliability) by built-in engineering.
<t Transferring technology and promoting indigenization at IMC and its vendors.
€& Raising the bar in all support functions to meet Toyota Global Standards.

Become a Good Corporate Citizen

<3 Following ethical business practices and the laws of the land.

¢ Engaging in philanthropic and social activities that contribute to the enrichment of the
Pakistani society, especially in areas that are strategic to both societal and business
needs e.g. road safety, technical education, environment protection, etc.

{r Enhancing corporate value and respect while achieving stable and long term growth
for the benefit of our shareholders.
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CORPORATE

PROFILE

The outcome of a joint venture between certain
companies of the House of Habib of Palistan,
Toyota Motor Ceorpeoration (TMC), and Toyota
Tsusho Corperation (TTC) of Japan, Indus Motor
Company Limited (IMC) was incorporated in 1989,
to manufacture and market the Toyota brand
vehicles in Pakistan. These include several variants
of the flagship Cerolla and Yaris in the passenger
car segment, Hilux in the light commercial vehicle
segment, and Fortuner in the sports utility vehicle
segment.

The Company's manufacturing facility and offices
are located at a 109.5 acre site in Port Qasim,
Karachi. Connected with customers through a

dedicated network of 55 independent authorized
dealerships across the country, IMC has been
diligently serving its customers end-to-end for
over 33 years and has sold mare than 1.06 millien
CKD/CBU vehicles during this time. It has also
demonstrated impressive growth in terms of
volumetric increase; from a modest beginning of
20 vehicles per day production in 1993, the daily
production capacity of the Company has now
increased to 288 (with overtime) units per day, on
double shift basis. This has been made possible
through the development of human talent
embracing the "Toyota Way” of quality and lean
manufacturing.

Financial
Statements

194 Pattern of Shareholding
196 Ten Years Performance Indicators

Notice of
Annual General
Meeting

The Company has made large scale investments in
enhancing its own capacity and in meeting
customer requirements for new products. The
Corolla continues to hold the top position in the
C-Segment sedan category maintaining its legacy
over the years, The Yaris is the 2nd leading vehicle
in the B-segment sedan category; its aerokit
variant, the Yaris AERO was also launched during
the year, Building on innovation, and having
launched the Toyota Hilux REVO Rocco and
Fortuner Legender last year, the Company
launched the Gazoo Racing Sport (GR 5) brand in
Pakistan, the Fortuner GR-5 and Revo GR-5 during
the year.

The Company's hbiggest asset is its human
resource. With a strength of 3,129 employees, IMC
invests heavily in training the team members and
management employees, as well as creating a
culture of high performing and empowered teams
that work seamlessly across the various processes
in search of quality and continuous improvement.

= Motice of Annual General Meeting (Urdu)
®  Chief Executive's Report (Urdu)

s Directors’ Report (Urdu)

s Chairman’s Review (Urdu)

= Form of Proxy

= Form of Proxy (Urdu)

»  Electronic Dividend Mandate Form

s Electronic Dividend Mandate Form (Urdu)

Employees are encouraged to pursue high
standards of business ethics and safety according
to the core wvalues of the Company; they
communicate candidly by giving bad news first
and extend respect to people.

IMC’s contribution to the Pakistan economy is
indelible and has played a major role in the
development of the entire value chain of the local
auto industry. Through technology transfer to a
national network of 52 vendors supplying parts
and creation of job opportunities to thousands,
the Company continues to contribute in poverty
alleviation at the grass root level by nurturing
localization. IMC is a major tax payer and a
significant contributor to the Govermment's
exchequer.

38| TOYOTA Annual Report 2023 | 39




BOARD OF .
DIRECTORS’ "

Chairman
Mohamedali R. Habib

Mohamedali B. Habib is the Chairman of Indus Maotor Compary
Limited, and a Founding Cirector of the Campany. He has been
a Director of Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited since 2004, and
currently serves as the Chairmman of the Board of Directors of the
Bank, In addition, he serves as a Member on the Board of Thal
Limited, and also serves as a Director of Habib University
Foundation. e was appointed Group CEC of HBZ Group in
2ie.

Mohamedall R, Habib graduated in Business Management -
Finance frorm Clark University, Massachusetts USA in 1987, and

also holds a Post Graduate Diploma in General Management from stanford-Mational University of

Singapore.

Vice Chairman
Shinji Yanagi

Shinji Yanagi was appointed as Director on the Board and Vice
Chairman cf Indus Motor Company Limiteg in April 2021, He
has been serving at Toyota Motor Corporation for over 30 vears
and has worked in different capacities. He has alsc served as
President for Toyota Motor Engineering Egypt.

He has completed his Bachelor’s degree in Economics from
Keio University, Japan.

40 | TOYOTA

Chief Executive
Ali Asghar Jamalli

All Asghar lamall was apoointed as Chief Executive of Inous
Mator Company Limited in January 2017. He has been with the
Company since October 2000 and has served in key roles in
various departments, owing to which he has acquired rich
experience  in end-to-end  management of company
aperafions.

Mr. Jamali has served as the Chairman of Pacistan Automative
Manufacturers Association and currently serding as Member of
the Managing Committee of Cverseas Investor Chamber of
Commerce Industry.

He is a Fallow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and nas attended the Advanced
Management Program at Harvard University and the Accelerated Management Program at the
Whartan School of Business, USA He iz also a member of the Young Presidents Organization.

Director
Imran Ali Habib

Imran Al Habib joined the Board of Directors of Indus Motor
Company Limited in Feloruary 2019, He is presently the Executive
Yice Prasident & Chief Strategic Officer of Habio American Bank
in Mew York, USA where he is responsible for looking after the
Bank's Management & Business Developrment. He began nis
career with Habllo Bank AG Zurich in the United Arab Emirates in
2008 whnere he last served as Senior Vice President, befare
moving o the Unitea States in 2016.

Imran also serves as 2 Member on the Boards of Thal Ltd,,
Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Ltd. and Habib American Bank, USA.

Imran is a graduate of the Bryant University (Bacheler of Science in Business Admiristration) and
has attended the Program for Leadership Development and is an Alumni of Harvard Business

School. He is also a Member of the Young Presidents Organization Pakistan Chapter.

Irmran also lkes to devote his time and attention to sccial welfare, education and benevolent
activities and is a Member cn the Board of Directors of Habib University Foungation US.

Annual Report 2023 | 41



Director
Muhammad H. Habib

Muhammad H. Habkib joined as a Director on the Board of Indus
Motor Company Limited in June 202C. He is the President of
Habib Bank AG Zurich and Chairman of the Board of Directors
for Habib Canadian Bank in Canada and the Habib Bank Zurich
Plc in UK. He serves on the Board of HBZ Bank in South Africa,
Habib Metropolitan Bank Ltd in Pakistan, Habib Insurance
Company Ltd. and Gefan Finanz &G, Zug, Switzerland. He is a
Member of the Board of Governors of Habib University as well
as the Board of Trustees for Habib University Foundation, He
also serves on the Global Advisory Board for Babson College,
UsA. Mr, Habib is a2 Member of the Young Presidents
Crrganization, Gold Chapter,

He studied at the College du Léman, Geneva, and received his Degree in Finance from Babson

College, USA,

Independent Director
Azam Faruque

Azarn Faruque was elected as a Director of Indus Motor
Company Limited in October 2014, He is a Director and CEO of
Cherat Cement Co, Limited, a Ghulam Farugue Grouo [(GFG)
company. Apart from the 29 years be has soent in the cement
industry and other GFG businesses, he has served as a member
on the Boards of varicus public and private sector institutions.
Currently he is a Director of Farugue (Pyt] Limited, Greaves
Pakistar {Pvt] Limited, Unicol Limited and Habib University
Faoundation,

He is an Electrical Engineering and Computer Science graduate
from Princeton University USA, and has also completed his MBA
with High Honars from the University of Chicago, USA.

42| TOYOTA

Director
Akihiro Murakami

Akihiro Murakami was appainted as a Director of Indus Motor
Company Limited in February 2022, Currently, he is serving as
the VYice President of Corporate Strategic Planning Division at
Toyota Motor Asia Pacific Pte Lid, He has 28 years of experience
in various senior positions at Toyota Motor Corporation and
other companies,

He holds MBA from Kellogg School of Management,
Maorthwestern Uriversity, USA,

Director
Shigeki Furuya

Shigeki Furuya was appointed as a Director of Indus
Motor Company Limited in April 2022. He has been
associated with Toyota Tsusho Corporation from 1987,
during which time he has held various senicr
positions. Previously he joined Indus Motor Company
two times from 1996 to 2003, and 2007 to 2008, He is
presently Senior General Manager of Toyota Tsusho
Corporation,

He is a graguate from Yamanashi University, lapan.

Annual Report 2023 | 43



Independent Director
Riyaz T. Chinoy

Mr. Rivaz T. Chinoy is a qualified Industrial Engneer and nas
obtained a B.5c, in Industrial Engineering, from Case Western
Reserve University, USA and a certified Director. He has
extensive experience in large scale industrial manufacturing
from  production, operations, supply chain,  quality
management systems and projects and has in recent years
wiorked closely with the architectural fraternity to indigenise HSS
construction in Pakistan,

He is currenthy senving as an Independent Director on the Board
of Indus Maotor Company Limited, Jubilee General Insurance
Company, Bulleh Shah Packaging Limited, Heawy Mechanical
Complex, StarchPack (Pvt] Limited ana Packages Convertors Ltd. He is also the Managing Director
of Yagin Steel Limited, a startup company and on the Board of Governars of the Indus Valley School
of Art & Architecture and on the Adviscry Committze of The Citizens Foundatior{TCF), He Is alsc a

lrustee of The Patrons of Expo 2020, and The YWater Foundation and has served as the Chairman of 8 ] & - ’ “w
the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICGE]) from 2017 - 2021 and a Board Member of the
Pakistan Business Council

u B m -
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Independent Director mss————————
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Syeda Tatheer Zehra Hamdani

Syeda Tatheer Zehra Hamdani was appeinted as Director on the
Board of Indus Motor Company Limited in October 2019, Ms,
Hamdani is currently the Presidents Chief of Staff and Senicr
Cirector for Global Engagement at Habib University

Ms. Hamdani started her career in the development sector in
2003, particularly focused on conceptualizing, oesigning and
implementing ‘nternational funding projects, and government
supporied projects related to primary ano secondary education
across Singh. In 2008, she [oineo Habkib University Foundation
(HUF) to support the planning and launch of Habib University,
Pakistan's first liberal arts and sciences center of higher
learning, affering contextualized ana globally rootea higher education,

Ms. Hamdani has worked in all aspects of establishing the structures of the University ‘ncluding
Acadermic Recruitment and Affairs, Communication and External Relations, Student Services and
Resource Maobilization. As President's Chief of 5taff and Senior Director of Global Engagement of
Habib University, she works with the President and the senior management in implementing the
institution’s strategic plan, raising resources, and managing international parttnerships. She holds
a Master's in Business Adrninistration from the Institute of Business Management, Pakistan.

he Tegetec Yoy
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COMPANY
INFORMATION . .

Bankers Chief Financial Officer |
«Bank Alfalah Limited -Bank Al-Habib Limited +Habib Bank Limited Mr. Mohammad Ibadullah

-Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - MCB Bank Limited -Meezan Bank Limited
=Mational Bank of Pakistan -=Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited = United Bank Limited

Company Secretary |

m Mr. Muhammad Arif Anzer

A.F. Ferguson & Co.

Chartered Accountants o m——————

State Lite Building #3:C, LI thuncingarRoad, katachi, -Mr. Azam Faruque (Chairman) + Mr. Muhammad H. Habib + Mr. Imran Ali Habib
«Mr. Riyaz T. Chinoy = Mr. Akihiro Murakami - Mr, Shiraz Sanawar (Secretary)

Legal Advisors |

* A.K. Brohi & Company *Mansoor Ahmed Khan & Co. *Mahmud & Co.
Board Ethics Committee Members |

«Mr. Riyaz T. Chinoy (Chairman)  « Mr. Ali AsgharJamali - Syeda Tatheer Zehra Hamdani
= Mr. Khurram Mahmood (Secretary)

Share Registrar I

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.5., Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.

—~ - Board Human Resources and Remuneration Committee Members
Loz 0800-23275 UAN 111-111-500 by info@cdcsrsl.com «Mr. Azam Farugue (Chairman) + Mr. Mohamedali R. Habib =+ Mr, Shinji Yanagi
=Mr. Ali Asghar Jamali - Syeda Tatheer Zehra Hamdani - Mr. Khurram Mahmeoaod (Secretary)

Credit Rating |
VIS Credit Rating Company Limited
- Long term rating: AA+ - Short term rating: A-1+

Factory & Registered Office | L = B 2 u | | |
Plot # N.W.Z/1/P-1, Port Qasim Authority, Bin Qasim , Karachi.

Q) +922134720041-48 UAN +9221111-TOYOTA (869-682)
@ +92 21 34720056 @ www.toyota-indus.com
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CORPORATE .
GOVERNANCE ..

IMC's Basic Approach to Corporate Governance

MC has & range of long-standing in-house commitieses
responsiole for monitoring and discussing management ano
corporata activities from viewpoints of varous stakeholders o
maks orompt decisions for develoning strategles, speeding
ug operaticns while ensurng heightened transparency and
the fulfillmert of social obligations. IMC has a unigue
corporate culture that places emphasis on probiem solving
and preventative measures in line with the Tovota Global
Standards,

Basic Concept of Compliance

MC follewss the Guiding Principles at Toyota and not anly
complies with local laws ana regulations, but also meets sodial
norms,  corpofate athics and  expectations of  various
stakeholders. (MO undertakes open ang fair corporate
actwities to meet local standards as wiell as the Toyota Glokal
Standards

Board Audit Committes

Ihe Committee consists of five Non-Executive Directors
neluding tavo Independent Diectors. The Committes s
chaired by an |ndependent Dirsctor. The Committee assists
the Board to effectively cary out its supendisory oversight
responsioitities on firancial reporting and compliance, Internal
comirels and risks and imternal and extemal audit functions of
the Compary. The Commitize ensures compliance with s
terms of refersnce approved by the Board. The Committee
meel separaiely with the exdemal auditors ang internal
guditors vithout the Management of the Company present, to
enaple them o have a discussion about any matters of
significance that arcse durng the audt process. The
Committee views that it discharged iis responsibilites as per
ts terms ot reference, & separate mechanism s 'n place for
annual evaluation of memperns of the Board of Directors and s
Committess,

Board Human Resources and Remuneration Committee

Thre Remuneration Committee iz 2 sub-committee of the
Board 1t recommends Human Rescurces Management
oolicles to the Board It also recommends selecton,
evaluation, compensation and the succession plan of the CEC
and Senior Marnagement amployess who directly report to the
CED. The Committee consists of three MNon-Executive
Sirectors including teo Independent Directors, one Executive
Cirector ana the CEDL The Committes s chalred by an
rdependent Director

BEoard Ethics Committes l

lhe Committee has the responsipility of overseeing ethical
policies and compliance by the Comparny. £ provides
expeditious actors on disciosdres of wrongdoing. The Ethics
Committes alsc reviews and investigates incidents of
whistle-bliwing, The Commities cansists of the CEC and two

48 | TOYOTA

ngepaendent Directors. The Commities s chaired Dy an
ndependent Director

Board Share Transfer Committee

The Board Share Transfer Commitiee nas been guthorzea by
trie Board to approve transfer of shares. AL Share Transfer
Resclutinns are noted by the Board ef Directors In subseguent
mestings

Imvestment Committee

Trie Imvestment Committes assisis the Board in fulfilling its
cversight responsioility for the Imvestment in assets of the
ComEany. ©evaluates the capital expenditures reguired to be
made and recommends the same o the Board for approval.
Ime Committes is also rasponsible for formulating the overall
polleles for imsestrmant in fixed assets, subfect to approval by
tne Boarg, and establishing investment guidellnes In
furtherance of those policies, The Commities consists of the

CEC, two Directors, the CFD and Secretary

&

Marketing Technical Coordination Committee

Triz Marketing  Technical Coordinagtion  Committes i3
responsibie for synichronization between the Marketing and
Technical depanments. The Commites also controls new
progucts of minor mogel  specificatorn changes and
schedules, The Committea is chaired by the CED every manth
ard  representatives from Marketing  and Technical
cepartments athend the mesting.

ACT #1 Management Committee

e ACT #1 Management Committee s responsble for the
manitoring of organizational KPis and stewvardship of finandal
performance every manth, It also reviews departmental targets
ard accompishments achieved during the month. In additicn,
ACT #1 reviewis governmeant regulatony affairs  Including
macro-econcmic situations which results in formation of the
Company’s strategy and risk management policles. The
meating s conducted by the CED with representation from all
departments.

Safety, Health and Environment Steering Committes

M2 Steering Committee meets on 8 monthily basis and keeps
a close eve ¢on compamyyide Satety, Health ang Ervironment
{5.H.E) statistics, KPI trends, relevant local laws compliance,
promulgating drive and focus or SHE right from the top
enabling Management t have a firsthand feel of 5. HE ‘ssues
prevailing on the shop floor and ways to resolve them via
efficent and swift decision making. The 5H.E Steering
Committes, chaired by the CEO, formulates the overall
policies ard frameavork for the Company.
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SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

Factory / Registered Office |

Plot # NW.Z./1/P-1, Port Qasim Authority
Bin Qasim, Karachi.

O +92 21 34720041-48
%I +92 21 34720056

Share Registrar |

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S.
Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400.

(" 0800-23275  UAN 111-111-500
ﬁi info@cdcsrsl.com

Annual General Meeting I

The Annual General Meeting will be held at
9:00 a.m. on September 27, 2023 at the
Institute of Chartered Accounts Pakistan,
Chartered Accountants Avenue, Clifton,
Karachi and through Video Link facility.

Shareholders as on September 19, 2023 are
encouraged to participate and vote.

Any shareholder may appoint a proxy to
vote on his or her behalf. Proxies must be

deposited with the Share Registrar of the
Company not less than 48 hours before the
Meeting.

Ownership |

COn June 30, 2023 there were 4487
shareholders on record of the Company's
ordinary shares.

Dividend Payment |

The proposal of the Board of Directors for
dividend payment will be considered at the
Annual General Meeting. The dividend net
amount will be credited into respective
account of shareholders listed in the
Register of Members on September 19,
2023, Income Tax will be deducted in
accordance with the prevailing regulations.

Listing on Stock Exchange |

Indus Motor Company Limited equity
shares are listed on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange.

Stock Code |

The Stock code for dealer in equity shares of
indus Motor Company Limited at PSX is
INDU.

700z Share Prices and Volumes 2022-23

PEX Price in Rupeas
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Laizen

translating to
'CONTINUOUS SEARCH for IMPROVEMENT'

that helps to ensure

maximumQUALITY

the elimination of waste, and

IMPROVEMENT

in efficiency to maximise productivity at every level
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OPERATING
HIGHLIGHTS

FINANCIAL
SUMMARY o

NetRevenues 2023 | 2022
Rupees in billion 1??7 2?55
\‘ - ’I
] L
- o VehicleProduction 2()23
units 32!696

2022
72,438

% Change

Year ended June 30

VehicleSales 2023 2022
s 31,602 75,611
Eamings 2023 | 2022
Rupess 1230 201 0
Year ended June 30
2023 2022
= Profit after Tax Rs in killion 3.7 15.8
s ehicle Sales LInits 31,602 758N
s Vehicle Production LInits 32,696 72,438
» Nhet Revenues Rs in killion 1777 2755
s Earnings Per Share Rs 123.0 201.0
= Annual Cash Dividend Per Share Rs 71.8 38
= Shareholders' Equity Rs in billion &0.0 54.0
» Contribution to National Exchequer Rs in billion 848 101.4
a  Manpower MNo. of employees 3,179 3139
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2023
vs 2022 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

For the Year

= | nits sold -58% 3160z Fs5eM 57731 28837 e6.211 64,000
= Met revenues Rz in Eillion -36% 1727 2TE. 5 179.2 Ba.2 158.0 138.7
» Profit before tax Rz in killicn -34%, 16.8 255 182 7.3 19.0 230
w Profit after tax Rsinbillion  -39% 97 158 128 51 137 158
m Return on equity Percentage 45% 161 29.3 256 12.3 34.2 429
Per Share Data |

" Earmings (EPS) Fs -35% 123.0 201.0 163.2 64,7 1745 2007
® Cash dividends Rs 23% 71.8 03.8 103.5 200 115.0 140.0
® Shareholder's equity Rs % 7ed2 /872 6133 5238 5085 4875
At Year-End

* Total assets Rs in billion = 3% 122.8 213.9 1335 80.3 4.8 B1.5
" Share holders' equity  Rs in billion 1% 60.0 54.0 48.2 41.2 401 36.7

Share Performance June 30 [

® Frice per share Fs 18% 9432 11444 12541 5949 12039 14214
® Market capitalization  Rs in Gillion -18% 741 80.0 492.6 78.2 946 1.7

MNet Revenues MNet Income f ROE

[Rs. In bellion} [Rs. in Billan)

EPS / Dividend per Share

R im bifiar

1 reIi 7023 1 w070 ana a17 o I0RE

— el rogime s———ROE [Right 2cala) — PG e a5 Dividend per Share (Mg scala)
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VERTICAL
ANALYSIS

STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION
Preperty. plart and equpment.
nEmyohes

Leng-term loars ard aduances
Leng term incastments
Long-term deposts

[Deterred taxation

Stores and soanes

Stock-in trade

Tracke debirs

Loans and advances

Shor-term prepenmens
Acurued regum

Cither recevaples

Shor-term rvestmerts

Taxater - paymert less prooson
Cash and bank balarces

Total Assets

ssued. subscribed ano paid up capital
Rasarag

Shareholders' Equity

Lesrg Tasrin akdity

Deterred faxation

[refarrad Revenue

Trade, dvidend ard other payables
Achvances from oustomens and dealens
Taxaticn - provisicn less payment
Total Equity and Liabilities

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
host Sales

Cost of sales

Gross prafit

[istributizn oses
Admministratie expenses
Cther operating expenses
WEBE amal WAYE

Coersting income

Operating profit before finance costs
Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxaticn

Profit after taxation
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STATEMEMT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Preperty, piant and equ pment
Incarg bles

Loma-term Ioars and advances
Leong-term investments
Long-term depasts

Ceferred taxaton

Stares and soares

Stock-ir-trade

Track: debirs

Loans and advarnces

SREr-Ter pre oy ieris
Accrued rebarm

CHner recelvaies

Short-term Imvestments

Tasatior - payrment less provison
Cash and bank baances

Total Assets

ssued, subscribed and paid up capital
Resarag

Shareholders' Equity

Lewrg T llakslity

Ciaferred taxation

[eferred Reveue

Trade, dwvidend ard cther payables
Achianees from customens and deaiers
Tawatcn - provision less payment
Total Equity and Liabilities

PROFIT AMD LOSS ACCOUNT
Met Sales

Cost of sales

Gross prafit

Cistripution costs
Adrmirstrative svpanses
Ctner operating espenses
WYBEE and WWF

Coenating income

Operating profit before finance costs
Fimance costs

Profit before taxation
Tawatcn

Profit after taxation

HORIZONTAL
ANALYSIS
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STATEMENT OF
VALUE ADDITION TOYOTA

For the year ended June 30, 2023
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Employees

m halarie

Society
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making the customers’ hearts go

Retained within the Business for Future Growth
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ohamedali R. Habib
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Dear Shareholders,

We welcome you to this 34" Annual General
Meeting of your Company for the vear ended 30th
June 2023,

The year was marked by a shrinking economy, with
muitiple sectors experiencing an averall decline of
0.8%. The automotive industry, was no exception
and similarly faced significant challenges due to
the economic slowdown. In the face of these
hurdles, we remained committed to adapting our
sirategies tc navigate the changing market
conditions successfully.

During Fiscal Year 2022-23, the industry had to
face import compression measures, which were
infroduced to address balance of payment crisis
and o promote local production. However, these
measures had unintended consequences for the
automotive sector, affecting every aspect of the
industry, including our operations. The restrictions
imposed on importing essential components,
particularly Completely Knocked Down (CKD) kits,
created immense  challenges for  the
manufacturing processes. This also  created
disruptions to the vendor supply chain, which
further complicated the situation. All of these,
resulted in freguent plant shutdowns in the
industry, thereby leading to underutilization of
Company's plant capacity, which remained
modest at around 50%. Such underutilization of
cur resources affected our operational efficiency,
but we approached these challenges as
cpportunities for improvements and innovation.

Ancther challenge was encountered with the
sudden disparity created between locally
produced and imported vehicles. Regulatory Duty
cn imported Completely Built Units (CBU) vehicles
was removed, creating a more favorable market
envircnment for imported CBU vehicles. However,
simultanecusly the tax burden on locally
manufactured wvehicles was increased
significantly, reaching up to 50% of the local
vehicle’s total cost. This sudden divergence
hampered our efforts to cater to various customer
segments and constrained our growth potential.

We request the government to create a nurturing
and conducive environment that fosters growth
and supporis the automotive sector. Key

measures should include enabling the sector to
operate at the maximum of its manufacturing
capacity and implementing tax reductions o
enhance affordability. Additionally, promoting the
adoption of Hybrid Electric Vehicles (HEVs) would
not only result in reduced fuel consumption but
would also  significantly advance sustainable
development, aligning with global efforts towards
a greener and more environmentally conscious
future.

Throughout the year, the automotive sector was
faced up with the challenges of rising inflation and
persistent depreciation of the local currency.
These challenging economic factors exerted
pressure on the industry, making it difficult to
sustain volumes. Nonetheless, we demonstrated
adaptability and determination to find new ways
ta reduce the impact of these external forces by
upholding the Toyota Way and introducing Kaizen
in our operations.

The Finance Act, 2023, has not provided any
incentives to support the auto industry. The Act
raised super tax from 4% to 10%, thereby affecting
profitability, negatively. We earnestly appeal to
the government to reconsider these measures and
actively explore alternative approaches that
encourage an enabling business environment for
the automotive industry. By implementing
business-friendly policies, we are confident that
businesses can collectively strive towards
sustainable growth, job  creation, and
technological advancement in the automotive
sector, confributing to the overall economic
development of our nation.

Monetheless, we appreciate the specific efforts
extended by the gowvernment to maintain
supportive policies in the Finance Act, 2023,
regarding investments in electric and hylbrid
technologies. The current policies align with our
company's commitment to sustainability and
innovation, and we are pleased that the
government prioritizes such initiatives. We remain
hopeful for the government's continued support
and the formulation of consistent long-term
policies that foster growth in these emerging
technologies.
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As we move Torward, we are confident in our ability
to navigate through these challenges with
determination and the unwavering support of our
dedicated team and stakeholders. Our commitment
to delivering high-quality vehicles to our valued
customers remains steadfast, and we continue to
strive towards contributing to the overall progress of
the automotive industry,

Ve are pleased to report that your Company’s Board
of Directors has continued to provide wvaluable
guidance and oversight to ensure strong
govermnance  and  to effectively  provide
encouragerment and input to the mapagement
throughout the year. A review of the Board's
performance and  effectivensss through a
self-assessment basis has been conducted during
the year under review, to ensure best practices are
chserved.

During the year under review, there were five Board
meetings, in which the Board received presentations
on the Company's operations, challenges, and
progress towards achieving objectives in line with
the Board's vision. We are privileged to have, on the
Board, a rich balance of expatriates who bring
Tayota's global knowledge and experience to our
Company, along with highly experienced Pakistanis
who regularly provide meaningful guidance and
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input, We are particularly grateful to our Audit
Committee members who conduct an extremely
detailed and diligent review to ensure that we
continue to anticipate and mitigate risks and comply
with corporate best practices.

Despite the prevailing business environment, we
would like to share cur gratitude and appreciation to
all the shareholders for the trust they have shown to
theBoard of the Company, Wewould also like to extend
our appreciation and support to every employee,
dealership, shareholder, vendor and all stakeholders
of the company, for their continued trust and
committed support in the Campany. As always, we
are dedicated to maintaining our leadership
ensuring the implementation of the best policies in
favor of the Company and place our trust in Allah
Almighty for His blessings in all our future
endeavors.

L]

wiblslnl

Mahamedali R, Hakilk
Chairman

DIRECTORS’ .
REPORT

The Directors’ of Indus Motor Company Limitea take pleasure in presenting the Directors’ Report, together with
the Audited Financial Staternents of the Company for the yvear ended lune 30, 2023

Financial Results, Appropriations and Subsequent Effects

The financial results and appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as follows:

2023 2022
Rupeas in 000
Profit After Taxation G664 479 15,801,848
= Other Comprehensive (Loss) / Income{OCI) for the year 13,937 (10,0371
» DR Un-aporoprated Profit brought forward B22.076 29915
10,300,442 18,190,825

Appropriations
® T8t interdm Dividend @ 82% e, Rs. 8.20 per share (2022 345% e Rs. 34.5 per share) 644,520 2,711,700
= 27d |nterim Divinend @ 102% (e, Rs. 10.20 per share (2022- 300% e Rs. 30 per share) 801,720 2,358,000
» 3 Interim Cividend @ 244% i.e. Rs. 24.40 per share (2022 260% i.e. Rs. 26 per share) 1,917,840 2,043,600

3364080 713,300
» Unappropriated Profit Carried Forward at year end 7,136,362 9077526
Subseguent Effects
» Proposed Final Dividend @ 290 % i.e. Rs. 29 per snare (2022: 32.50% ie. Rs. 3.25 pershare] 2999400 255,450
» Proposed Transfer to Gereral Reserves 4000000 8,000,000

6,279,400 82558 450
» Basic and Diluted Eamings per shara (Rupees) 122 %6 201.04

Principal Activities of the Company

Indus Motor Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan as 2 public limited company in
December 1989 and startes commercial production in May 1993. The shares of the Company are gquoted on the
Pakistan Stock Exchange, The Compary's principal activity is the assembly, progressive manufacturing and
marketing of Toyota vehicies in Pakistan,

Company Performance

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the sales volume of CXD and CBU vehicles decreased by 58.20%, to 31,602
units as against 75,611 units sold last year, The Company produced 32,696 units for the year, as compares to
72,438 units produced in the same period last year.
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The Company's net sales turnover for the year
ended June 30, 2023, decreased by 355% to Rs,
177.71 billior, as compared to Rs. 275.50 billion in
the same period last year, while profit after tax also
decreased by 38.84% to Rs, 9.65 billion, as against
Rs. 1580 billion achieved in the last year, The
decline in net profit was primarily due to lower sales
volumes for CKD angd CBU wehicles, import
restrictions, higher duties and taxes by the
Government of Pakistan and demand contraction,
Further, the profitability also declined due to
increase in input costs, mainly driven by severe
devaluation of PKR against USD and high inflation
impact. The negative impact an the rnet profit, was
cartially offset by increase in other income,
resulting from return on investments on account of
higher interest rates. The Company was also able to
import and settle its foreign liabilities in timely
manner, thereby, avoiding huge exchange losses.

The guarterly segmentwise results highlighted that
the manufacturing segment has reported losses in
first and second guarters but reported profit in the
thira and fourth quarters, respectively. The
Company was able to recover in second hatf of the
financial year, mainly due to improving its sales mix,
passing partial impact of cost increases to the
consumers and reducing its operational costs, and
increase return on investments, which yielded
positive results.

Contribution to National Exchequer |

During the vear, the Company contributed a sum of
Es. 84 pillion to the national exchequer, which is
around 1.18% of tota! tax revenue collection by the
Government of Pakistan. Since, the Company's
incorporation in 1989, our contribution stands in
excess of Rs. 711 billion.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties |

The Companys financial performance  was
exceptional in previous years, however, due to
decline in sales volume of vehicles, the current year
cbserved major decline in profitability. The
continuous depreciation of Pak Rupee against USD
and JFY, rise in inflation and intemational
commodity prices continue to be vital factors that
have 3 negative impact on current and the future
financial statements of the Cocmpany. The increase
in taxes and duties by the Govermnmment also
resulted in increase in prices of vehicles, which has
alsc affected the volumes of the industry.
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Corporate Social Responsibility l

&5 a socially responsiole organization, the
Company over the past six years, has contributed
over Rs 1 bilion in aggregate towards various
Corporate Social Responsibility (TSR] activities,
incluoing but not limited to donaticns to hospitals,
educaticnal institutes, welfare organization, etc. as
well as community upliftment and road safety

During the vear, your Company has undertaken the
following major CSR activities and donations.

[Donation of an aggregate amount of around
Rs. 80 million has been made to various
hospitals and related foundations towards
healthcare,

Donation of an aggregate amount of around
Rs. 40 million released to various educational
institutes.

Cwver 700,000 tree saplings. In aggregate,
planted across the country, under the
Company's "Million Tree Plantation Program®,
since December 2018,

« The “Toyota 5% Ctcoogical Conservation
Program” for students and young adults
participating on-line.

«  Food rations distributed during Ramadan,
amangst  underprivileged  families in
neighbaring villages supported by the
Company.

+  Free, weekly ccoked food distribution In
neighboring villages, suoported by the
Company.

Free, weekly medical and fortnightly psychiatric
camps in neighboring villages, supported by
the Campary.

Impact on Environment |

The Company has the largest roof-top mounted
solar Photovoltaic Plant in Pakistan, In line with the
Toyota Ervironmental Challenge 2050, the
Company is striving to adopt green technolegies
for reducing GHG emissions and improve the
energy mix for continucus enhancements in the
operational processes.  Onsite  photovoltaic
technology has been installed to recuce energy
consumption  from  corventicnal sources and
increase share of renewables. The aggregate
installed capacity of onsite solar power is 4. 5MVW by
end of June 2023,

It is estimated that it will reduce the factory's carpon footorint by more than 1,253 tons annually, and
reducing energy costs. Furthermore, the Company continues to use the erwircnment-friendly gas

R-134da in car air-conditioning system, instead of CFC-12.

The Company has peen expanding its environmental activities to all its business partners, including
suppliers and dealerships nationwide to promote environmental conversation and achieve our

glebal environmental objective.

Composition of the Board

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on June 30, 2023 is as follows:

1. The total numiber of Directors are 10, as follows:

a. Male 09

b. Female 01
Z The number of Directors under respective categories are as follows:

a. Independent Directors including a female director 03

b. Mon-Executive Directors 04

c. Executive Directors 03

Board of Directors Meetings

A total of five (05) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the twelve months pericd from
July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023. Names of the Directors (at any time during the year) alongwith their

attencance at the Board Meetings s as follows:

5.No. Name of Directors Meetings Attended*
i, Mr. Mohamedall R. Habib Chairman 5
i. Mr. Shinj Yanagi ice Chairman 5
fii. Mr, Ali Asghar Jamali CeQ 5
v, Mr. Rivaz T. Chinoy Independent Director 5
W, Mr. Azam Farugue independent Director o
Wi, Mr. Imran Ali Habib Directar 5
vii Mr. Muhammad H. Habib Director 5
Wil Mr, Akiniro Murakami / Mr. Y. [kegame [Alternate} Director h
X, Mr, Shigeki Furuya Director 5
& Sveda Tatheer Zenra Hamdani Indepenaent Director 5

*Tetsl meetings conducted during the year are five,
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Committees of the Board l

The Board has formed the following Committees
and details of memiers are as under:

1. Board Audit Committee
i Mr Azarm Farugue, Chairman
ii. Mr. Riyaz T. Chinoy
i, Mr, Muhammad H. Habils
iv. Mr. Imran AL Habie
v, Mr, Akihira Murakami

2. Board Human Resources &
Remuneration Committee
I, Mr. Azam Farugue, Chairman
i. Mr. Mohamedatli R. Habib
iii. Mr. Shinji Yanagi
. Mr. Al Asghar Jamall
v. Syeda Tatheer fehra Hamdani

3. Board Ethies Committee
i, Mr. Riyaz T. Chinoy, Chairman
ii. Syeda Tatheer Zehra Hamdani
iii. Mr, Ali Asghar Jamali

Salient Features of Remuneration
Policy for Non-Executive Directors

The Board acknowledges the valuable contributions
being made by the Non-txecutive Directors
{including Independent Directors), and currently &
meeting fee is being offered for attendance and
participation at each Board meeting or its
Committee, while this does not  reflect
compensation of their contributions and  just
represents  a  token  of  appreciation.  The
Mon-Executive Directors may waive their rights to
receive such remuneration for attenging and
participation in the above meetings.

Remuneration of Executive Directors I

The Remuneration of CEC and Directors of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2023, is given
in note 39 to the financial statements.

Internal Control |

The Company nas employed an effective system of
internal controis to carry on the business of the
Company in an arderly manner, safequard its assets
and secure the accuracy and reliability of its records.
The Management supernvision and reviews are an
essential element of the system of intemal controls.
The Managemeant has delegated the function of
detailed examination and special review to the team
of internal augitors.
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The Board ensures adeguacy of intermal control
activities either directly or through its Committees.
The Board also reviews the Company's financial
operaticns ang position at reguar intervals oy
means of interim accounts, reports, profitability
reviews and other financial and statistical
information. Analysis of budgetary control is in
place ang the Board reviews material variances with
explanations and actions taken thereon on periodic
basis.

Risk Management

IMC has a formal risk management framework to
assess the risks faced in the context of the broader
political and macroeconomic environment. The risk
management system identifies strategic, regulatory,
financial, operational, reputational, and
sustainability risks related to IMC business activities.
The risks are reviewed oDy tne Management
Committee along with departmental objectives,
targets anc performance. Appropriate strategies
are developed and implemented to minimize the
impact of the identified risks.

The Company has also forrmulated a  risk
management struciure based on the global
practice followed by Toyota, with the aim of driving
the Company growth with managing risk associated
with business adeguately.

Financial Statements

International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS),
as applicable in Pakistan and provisions of and
directives issued unaer the Companies Act, 2017
have been followed In oreparation of the fimancial
statements, where provisions of and directives
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from
the IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued
under the Companies Act 2017 nave been
followea.

The auagitors of the Company, M/s. A.F. Ferguson &
Co., Chartered Accountants, audited the Financial
Staternents of the Company and have issued an
ungualified report to the members,

Related Party Transactions l

All transactions with related parties have been
executed at arm’s length ana are in normal course
of business, which have been disclosed in the
financial statements under relevant notes,

Material Changes and Commitments

There have been no material changes and
commitment affecting the financial position of the
Company that have occurred between the eng of
the financial year of the Company to which the
balance sheet relates and the date of the report,
other than disclosed in the Financial Staterments, or
in this report.

Appointment of Auditors

The existing auditors, M/s AF. Ferguscn & Co.,
Chartered Accountants refire and being eligibe,
offer themselves for re-appointment. The Directors
endorse the recommendaticn of the Audit
Committee for re-appointment of M/s A F Ferguson
& Co., as the auditors for the year ending June 30,
20724,

Pattern of Shareholding |

The Pattern of Shareholding of the Company as at
June 30, 2023, is given on pages 154 to 195,

Trading of Shares of the Company

During the vear ended Jure 30, 2023, the Directors,
the Executives, and their spouses and minor
children have not carried out any trading of shares
of the Company other than that disclosed in the
Pattern of Shareholding.

Key Operating and Financial Data

The Key Cperating and Financial Data is menticned
on pages 196 to 197 of the Annual Report.

Statement of Compliance with COCG

The Company has fully complied with reguirements
of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations 2019 Staterment to this
effect is annexed with this Report on page 136 and
137.

Chairman’s Review |

The Directors’ of the Company endorse the contents
of the Chairman’s Review, dealing with the overall
perfarmance of the Company, future outlook and

report on the performance and effectiveness of the
Board.

Acknowledgement |

\//e are grateful to our customers for their continued
patrorage of our products and wish to
acknowledge the efforts of the entire IMC team,
including our staff, vendors, dealers and all
business partners for their untiring efforts in these
challenging times and look to their continued
support.

Ve bow to the Almighty and pray for His blessings
and guidance.

Karachi.
August 25, 2023

¥ 777

Ali Asghar Jamali
Chief Executive

Shinji Yanagi
Vice Chairman
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Industry Review &
Business

Industry Review & Business Environment

This is the CEO's Review of your Company for the
year 2022-23. During this year, the old coupled with
new challenges influenced our operations like never
before, However, we rose to the challenge and in
the process demonstrated our unwavering spirit of
resilience in navigating the turbulent waters,
emerging stronger and more steadfast than ever
before.

Macroeconomic Overview

During the year under review, the economy
remained subdued. Matural disaster, political
uncertainty, low foreign reserves, rising inflation
which was recorded at an all-time high of 38%, were
the driving factors. The resultant disruption in supply
chain created further pressure on domestic prices.
Cwverall deterioration in economic fundamentals led
to a revision in the GDP growth projection from 2%
to 0.29% for the fiscal yvear under review.

Externally, the current account deficit (CAD)
narrowed by B5% to USD 2.56 billon during the
fiscal year 2022-23. However, the positive
impraverment in CAD was mainly driven by reduction
in import bill from USD 71.54 billion to USD 51.99
billion. This along with the slowdown in global
demand and an exchange rate peg, led to a decline
in exports and workers remittances by 17% and 14%,
respectively. Despite an improvernent in CAD and
miulblateral inflows, foreign exchange reserves held
by the State Bank of Pakistan dipped below USD 5
billion for the first time in 10 years. The delay in
resumption of IMF program has also added pressure
on the currency, which breached the 285 level To
raintain macroeconomic stability, the Central Bank
raised the benchmark interest rate from 9.75% to
22%. On the fiscal front, revenue collection
remained short of target PKR 572 billion was
collected during the fiscal year against the
projection of PKR 621 billion. Due to deterioration of
investors’ confidence and political uncertainty, the
PSX 100 index also declined below 40,000 Level.

Agriculture

The performance of agriculiure sector was
dominated in the first half of 2023 due to what the
Secretary General of the UN described as floods on
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steraids. However, the Rabl crop is expected to
perform better on account of favorable weather
conditions, availability of high-quality seeds and
fertilizer, At the same time, increased disbursement
of agriculture credit is expected to support the Agri
autput, indicating a promising outlook for farmers
and the agriculture sector. This will help improve
demand for consumer durables in rural areas.

Large-5cale Manufacturing

Qutput of Large-Scale Manufacturing (LSM)
remained strained and contracted by 4.4% when
compared with the same period of last year. The
decline is primarily attributed to the monetary and
fiscal measures taken by the government to slow
down aggregate demand. Supply constraints and
the rising cost of business too, led to reduction in
production output of various industries such as
textile, steel, consumer durables and automobiles,
Resumption of the IMF program is a prerequisite for
revival of the manufacturing sector. The
accompanying foreign currency inflows from
bilateral and multilateral institutions will help revive
industrial growth.

The Automohile Industry

The automobile industry in Pakistan is undergoing a
severe recession. To say it is experiencing one of its
most challenging periods in history would be an
understatement. The industry has had to deal with
major local and global disruptions throughout the
year. The current import curbs on the Completely
Knocked Down (CKD) kits has led to plant closures
and loss of employment. Devaluation, rising
inflation, and tighter fiscal measures have driven car
prices out of reach for millions. Potential buyers are
experiencing unprecedented late delivery times and
non-availability of desired car variants due to
disruption in supplies. The automotive industry
consists of complex supply chains, which over time
have evolved into a global production network.
Shortages ranging from microchips to labor are
affecting almost every touch point along the
automotive supply chain globally. Moreover, rising
tension in the Asia Pacific region, coupled with the
war in Ukraine, has increased global uncertainty.
There is broad recognition that disruption may
became a permanent feature of the industry in years
to come,

In Pakistan, downstream distribution and suppliers
are alsa being affected. The industry's volumes, as
a result, witnessed a dip as cumulative sales of
passenger cars and light commercial vehicles for
the year declined by 55% against last year, The
ability of vehicle assemblers to control production
factors, at a level that offsets frequent fluctuations
in the dollar-rupee parity, has become a critical
success factor. As import restrictions stretch, the
country may face further delays in securing the
IMFs bailout package and access to related
funding. The deteriorating economic and political
direction has further aggravated the situation.
Although the industry has displayed maturity
during the ongoing cyclical trough, it certainly
needs further introspection to ensure sustainability
in future.

The decline in remittances by 14%, from 331.3
billion to $27.0 hbillion, further intensified the
sconomic headwinds encountered. Compounded
with the prolonged negotiations surrounding the
Sth review of the International Monetary Fund {IMF)
program, Pakistan's economic managers grappled
with complex choices, In the absence of a
conclusive agreement, we explored alternative
options, cansidering commercial loans and loan
rollovers from friendly countries, These measures
were instrumental in navigating through these
turbulent times, showcasing the formidable
circumstances we faced and the strenuous
decisions we made to sustain day-to-day
operations,

As we work towards addrezsing deficits in both the
current account and fiscal realms, we have made
exhaustive efforts. However, dezpite our
unywavering commitment and dedication, we have
been unable to avoid the economic decline that
has affected our econamy, The State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP) continued to play a vital role in
managing external payments and controlling
inflation, but this pursuit of stability has required a
consistentincrease in policy rates. Itis worth noting
that policy rates have reached an unprecedented
high of 22% per annum, emphasizing the
significant challenges we have encountered in
achieving balance and fostering sustainable
growth.

The impact of varicus economic factors on the
automohbile industry has been truly remarkable and

should not be underestimated. Throughout the
past year, we have faced numerous disruptions,
leading to a significant number of non-preduction
days on a monthly basis. This trend has forced
leading original equipment manufacturers (OEMs)
to temporarily halt their production lines for
months, underscoring the immense challenges
that have tested our resilience.

As a result, our industry has been operating at a
worryingly Law capacity of only 25% of our available
resources, further highlighting the tremendous
pressure we have faced in maintaining our
cperations. We have had to carefully balance our
priorities as we strive to keep our business running
amidst these adversities.

The consequences of these economic factors have
had far-reaching impacts, extending not only to
the automobile manufacturers themselves but also
to their entire supply chains, workforce, and the
broader economy. The ripple effects of reduced
production and constrained operations have been
felt across multiple sectors, exerting pressure on
the stability of the industry as a whole.

In the face of these formicable circumstances, our
industry showcased remarkable resilience and
resourcefulness. We adapted to the rapidly
changing landscape by embracing innovation and
finding creative solutions to navigate through
these turbulent times. Our ability to persevere in
the face of these challenges serves as a testament
to the unwavering dedication and determination of
everyane involved in the automaobile industry.

As we progress, it is crucial that we remain vigilant
in monitoring and analyzing the economic factors
influencing the automobile industry. We must
strive to identify opportunities for optimizing our
operations and improving our efficiency. By doing
so, we can pave the way for a brighter and more
sustainable future for the automaobile industry,
enabling it to thrive despite the prevailing
headwinds.,

The obstacles we face extend beyond mere
economic factors and had a profound impact on
consumer purchasing power and bank financing.
The daunting inflation rate of 3B% has severaly
eroded consumer purchasing power, greatly
affecting the automobile sector,
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Additionally, high interest rates have significantly
limited banlk financing options, leaving consumers
unable to meet monthly installments and pushing
them to their financial limits. This combination of
challenges has presented unigue hurdles for our
organization, necessitating innovative strategies
and careful planning to navigate through these
difficult circumstances.

Seismic fluctuations in foreign exchange rates have
added another layer of complexity to our endeavors,
affecting our cost management and future
planning. The depreciation of the US Dollar against
the Pakistani Rupee has introduced volatility and
uncertainty into our operations. 4s a result, we must
exercise prudent financial management and make
astute decisions o navigaie through these
challenging circumstances.

Furthermore, the continuous escalation of taxes by
the Government has presented significant
challenges for our industry. The increase in sales tax
from 17% to 25% has added additicnal strain on our
operations and financial performance, and the
imposition of Capital Value Tax (CVT) of 1% has
further reduced the demand for vehicles. Mareover,
the implementation of a higher Fegeral Excise Duty
(FED) of up to 10% has further compounded the tax
burden.

However, the most concerning. development has
been the removal of the Regulatory Duty (RD) on
completely built-up (CBU) vehicles. While this action
may appear favorable at first glance, it contradicts
our objective of promoting the local assembly of
completely knocked-down [CKD) wehicles, The
elimnation of RD on CBU wehicles may
unintentionally encourage parallelimports and CBU
imports, potentially offsetting the demand for
domestically manufactured vehicles. This ominous
trajectory poses a threat of reduced volumes and
the potential for a wave of unemployment in the
aute sector, further exacerbating the financial
prassures faced by factories.

Future Outlook

Ower the last 75 years, the economy has shown
strong resilienca despite volatility and uncertainty.
Mowving forward, it is essential for Pakistan to sustain
the reform momentum and focus on policies for
sustainable growth. Macroeconomic adjustment
measures, fiscal consclidation and export
promotion will help relieve pressure on the currency.
Managing the underlying risk necessitates
articulating and effectively implementing a clear
strategy for economic recovery. As the economy
gradually returns to full capacity and recovery
becomes sustainable, the automobile segment is
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expected to resume its upward momentum. While
the macroeconomic is currently challenging, your
Company is well positioned to carve ocut niche
rarket opportunities for further market penetration
and share growth.

The Federal Govermment approved the Finance
Budget for the fiscal year 2023 and in a notable
last-minute change, the government revised the
withholding income tax structure for vehicles with
an engine capacity above 2000cc. This revision
entails a significant increase of approximately 3-4
times in the tax rate, levied as a percentage of
vehicle's value, thereby creating disparity against
other vehicles of similar value with lower engine
capacity at fixed rates. This exorbitant increase in
taxes will further reduce the demand of vehicles
above 2000cc. The decline in market due to higher
taxes will be counterproductive as the overall
revenue from the autc sector will decline
significantly. The Gowvernment should reconsider
this taxation measure for the sustainability of auto
sector and the resulting employment it generates.

The Company acknowledges that the current
economic  situation  is  unprecedented, and
appreciates that it calls for some drastic actions and
measures from the Government. However, the
Company urges the Government to permit the
necessary imports for the auto-sector, to maintain
preduction levels at least at 50% of fiscal year i.e. FY
21-22 levels, This would at least ensure survival of
the automotive sector and help to safeguard the
jobs of over three million workers directly and
indirectly employed in the industry. The Company
also regquests consistency in policy making,
particularly regarding the Hybrid Incentives
provided In the AIDEP 2021-26. The Company has
already made significant investments in Hybrid
vehicles based on these incentives, and the
progress of the investments are in accordance with
the planned schedule,

With a steadfazt commitment to our long-term
vision and objectives, we anticipate and understand
the importance of the challenges ahead. Adapting
and innovating are imperative to maintaining our
position as a market leader. To achieve this, we have
initiated a range of measures to strengthen our
capabilities, expand our product offerings, and
seize  emerging market opportunities.  Our
unwavering focus on research and development has
delivered notable progress, resulting in vehicles that
are both fuel-efficient and in line with our esteemed
customers’ increasing  environmental conscious
demands. In addition, we continue to invest in
state-of-the-art technology and automation to
enhance our production processes, ensuring
streamlined efficiency and sustainable growth.

In the face of an uncertain future, we are actively
seeking out strategic parinerships and
collaborations to harness synergies and unloclk
new opportunities for growth. These alliances will
enable us to broaden our product portfolio,
penetrate untapped markets, and enhance our
reputation as an industry picneer.

It is with heartfelt appreciation that | acknowledge
the exceptional contributions of our remarkable
team members. Their unwavering dedication,
urmwavering commitment, and tireless efforts have
been the comerstone of our resilience and
accomplishments. In the face of challenges, they
have displayed unwavering resolve, surpassing
expectations to ensure the continued growth and
prosperity of our organization.

Looking ahead, we acknowledge the challenges on
the horizon. 5till, with our strong getermination,
steadfast resolve, and unwavering commitment to
excellence, we are configent in our capacity to
overcome these obstacles and come out even
stronger and maore triumphant than ever before,

Recommendation

Toenhance the sales mechanism in the automahbile
sector, it s recommended that the Government
adopt a whaolesale-retail model for vehicle sales,
which is widely practiced globally. This approach
can effectively address issues such as premium

pricing and delayed delivery. The current system of
selling new cars in Pakistan has become financially
unsustainable for dealers, as they operate primarily
as commission agents. To alleviate the delivery
lead time, it is suggested that aealers engage with
customers as independent retail sellers.

it is crucial to avoid any interventions in the sales
procass that limit customer choice, as it can disrupt
industry mechanisms, supply chain processes, and
market dynamics, further exacerbating delivery
delays.

The industry is ready to invest more under the
automotive development and export policy and is
eager to introduce more Hyborid Electric Vehicles
[HEVs). Implementing sustainable measures to
promote the manufacturing of electrified vehicles
in Pakistan will instill foreign investor confidence in
the country's automotive market.

Furthermore, it is recommended that stakeholders
prioritize economic stability in the country to attract
and retain fresh inwvestments. Moreover, the
taxation on vehicles should be reduced as it
cantributes almost 50% of vehicle value, thereby
making wvehicles affordable for the consumers.
Creating business-friendly policies that expand
economic horizons will contribute to the growth
and prosperity of the nation, and will positively
contribute towards employment generation in our
country.

Sales of Locally Produced Passanger Cars (PC)

& Light Commercial Vehicles (LCV)

Mumber in ‘000s
Source: PAMA
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Pakistan Automotive Industry Overview

The Pakistan automobile industry experienced a
significant downturn in the year 2022-23. The sales of
locally-manufactured Passenger Cars and Commercial
Vehicles plummeted by 55%, with only 126,878 units
sold in FY 22-23 as compared to the 279,267 units sold
in FY21-22 . Simultanecusly, the import of used vehicles
witnessed a steep decline too, dropping from 28,123
units in FY21-22 to a mere 6,583 units in FY22-23,

Several factors contributed to this downward spiral,
The wunfavorable macro-economic  environment,
marked by economic uncertainty and inflationary
pressures, made potential buyers cautious about
investing in new wvehicles, The unstable political
conditions further eroded consumer confidence,
adding to the industry's challenges.

Company Overview |

Indus Motor Company faced a challenging fiscal year
in 2022-2023. The Company's performance took a
sharp decline, with sales declining by a staggering
58%. Compared to the previous year's impressive sales
figure of 75,611 units, the Company managed to
achieve 31,602 units sales despite all the challenges in
Fy22-23.

The decline in sales was particularly pronounced in the
passenger car (PC) segment, which experienced a
significant drop of 67%. Additionally, the commercial
vehicle (CV) segment witnessed a decline of 32%.

Though the decline in parformance posed significant

obstacles, the Company remained resilient, They
viewed this challenging period as an opportunity for

Vehicles Sold
2023

2022

31,602 ..

75,611 ..
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introspection  and  growth,  With  unwavering
determination, the Company committed to adapting
to the ever-changing market dynamics and prioritizing
customer satisfaction,

Looking ahead, the Company aims to maintain its
position as a leading player in Pakistan's automobila
industry, and remains dedicated to innovation, guality,
and delivering value to its customers, By adopting
customer-centric strategies and proactively
responding to market demands, the Company aspires
to overcome these hurdles and emerge stronger than
ever,

CKD-Passenger Car Segment |

Vehicles Sold

2023

2022

18,838 ...

56,528 ...

= Toyota Corolla

First introduced in 1966, the Corolla has become one of
the mostrecognizable and best-selling cars in Pakistan,
with over 50 years of success in the automaotive market.
The Corolla Altis sedan is the most loved sedan in
Pakistan, known for its reliability, safety, quality and
durability.

= Altis X

The current model of the Corolla Altis X sedan offers a
sleek and modern exterior design, with a spacious
interior that comfortably seats up to five passengers. It
also comes equipped with a range of advanced
features, such as electric power steering, cruise control,
and comfortable seats, making it an ideal car for
families and daily commuters alike,
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IMC is proud to locally produce the Toyota Corolla
sedan for more than 30 years now, as it offers a
practical and reliable driving experience with a
modem design and a range of advanced features. The
Corolla remains the top selling sedan in Pakistan, and
a favorite among Pakistanis who wvalue gquality,
efficiency, and reliability in a car.

s 1.6 Altis X Range

In line with IMC's philosophy of “continuous
improvermnent” to meet the changing customer needs,
model improvemnent for Corolla Altis X 1.6 range was
introduced, The Corolla Altis X 1.6 range is now

eguipped  with newer and improved 7-speed
continuous variable transmission (CVT). The CVT
technology offers a smoother drive experience with
higher fuel economy.

Along with the CVT transmission, a new sporty alloy
wheel design and electrically controlled retractable
side rearview mirrors were introduced. The model
improvement was received positively by the Pakistani
consumers, and the Corolla Altis X sedan continues to
lead the sedan market,
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* Toyota Yaris

Yaris has become the household name for the
Pakistani young professionals and families alike when
it comes to a reliable compact sedan purchase. As
one of the most loved brands for the last 4 years, Yaris
is retaining its identity well despite increased
competition in the B-sedan segment.

To gain back some traction and increase recall of the
brand, this year, IMC gave the Yaris a brand a new flair

CKD - Commercial Vehicles l

Vehicles Sold

18,005 ... 12,266 ..

= GR-5 Brand Launch

IMC has successfully introduced the GR-5 brand in
Pakistan, marking a significant milestone in Toyota's
commitment to providing thrilling and exhilarating
driving experiences to its diverse customer base. The
GR-5, or Gazoo Racing Sport, s Toyota's
high-performance sub-brand that caters to motor
enthusiasts seeking an enhanced driving experience.
Under the GR-5 umbrella two new models, the
Fortuner GR-5 and Reve GR-5, have been introduced
in Pakistan to expand the product lineup.
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by introducing the sleek and razor-sharp Yaris Aero
variants in both 1300cc and 1500cc  engine
formations,

To market the cool new persona of the Yaris Aero, IMC
launched a brand-new campaign labelled, Yaris Got
an Edge, that encompasses an emotive story film and
a "First for Pakistan” mirror room  film  that
communicated well with both the trendy target
audience of the brand and the exquisite profile of the
new variant,

Aelere Y ad wrrld
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=« Revo GR-5

IMC has introduced the highly anticipated GR-5
variant for the Rewo model, creating a buzz of
excitement among automotive enthusiasts  in
Pakistan. The Revo GR-5 is part of Toyota's prestigious
Gazoo Racing Sport sub-brand, offering customers
an exceptional and exhilarating driving experience.
One of the standout features of the Reve GR-S is its
advanced monotube suspensian, providing drivers
with a smooth and dynamic ride on various terrains.

Whether navigating through city streets or venturing
off-road, the Revo GR-S effortlessly combines
performance and comfort,

The sporty interior, complete with paddle shifters and
sports-type seats make driving the Revo GR-5 an
engaging and enjovable experience. Additionally, the
integration of Apple CarPlay and Android Auto
enhances connectivity, enabling drivers to stay
connected while on the move.

The introduction of the Revo GR-5 showcases Toyota's
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commitment  to  innovation and  customer
satisfaction. With a perfect blend of performance and
convenience, the Revo GR-5 caters to the needs of
acventurous drivers who seek both thrill and
practicality in their journeys.

= Fortuner GR-S

IMC has elevated the Fortuner lineup by introducing
the GR-5 variant for the Fortuner model, The Fortuner
GR-S with a 2.8L turbocharged diesel engine, is a
symbol of Toyota's dedication to providing an
exhilarating and high-performance SV driving
experience. This formidable powertrain ensures that
the Fortuner GR-5 is capable of conguering
challenging terrains with ease, making it an ideal
companion for adventurous journeys,

With a captivating sporty exterior design, the
Fortuner GR-5 exudes a dynamic and distinctive
presence on the roads of Pakistan. The bold
aesthetics and striking accents showcase the
Fortuner GR-5's commitment to style and flair. With a
focus on both performance and aesthetics, the
Fortuner GR-5, Toyota has created an SUV that
combines power, style, and versatility, setting new
standards for driving excitement in Pakistan's
automotive landscape.

Motorsports

IMC has been an active participant in multiple rallies
across the country as a sponsor, reflecting its
commitment to  promoting motorsports and
adventure tourism in Pakistan.

These rallies provide a platform for local drivers to
showcase their driving skills and also serve as a
source of entertainment for motorsport enthusiasts.
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This year IMC sponsored and participated in the
Sarfaranga Rally and Hub Rally held in Cctober and
March, respectively, The Hub Rally is one of the most
challenging rallies in Pakistan, taking place in the arid
and rugged terraink of Hub, Baluchistan. The
Sarfaranga Rally, on the other hand, is a high-altitude
rally that takes place in the scenic valleys of
Gilgit-Baltistan, IMC's participation in these rallies
demonstrates its commitment to supporting local
talent and promoting adventure sports in different
parts of the country, while also showcasing the
durability and performance of its vehicles in some of
the toughest driving conditions.

CBU - Toyota Imported Vehicle Segment

IMC managed to zell 498 units in FY22-23 which
was a 54% decline from FY21-22 in which IMC sold
1,078 units. IMC's CEU market share stood at 7% for
FyY22-23 where the total CBU market was 7,548
units whereas, in the same period last year IMC's
CBU share stood at 3% with the total CBU market
of 37,260 units,
The decline in
CBU market was
mainly due  to
increased
regulatory duties
and LC restric-
tions imposed by
the Government
of Pakistan.

Wehicles Sold

202%-22 2022-23

B Unite @ Marketshare
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Auto - Finance ]

Special focus was laid on exclusive campaigns with
banks by creating attractive financing options along
with Value Added Products of Toyota with major
banking partners. High profile campaigns were
conducted with MCB, Meezan Bank, Bank Alfalah,
Bank Alfalah Islamic, Bank Islami, UBL, Faysal Bank,
Standard Chartered Bank and Askari  Bank,
Roadshows were also conducted with these Banks to
promote the brand. Multiple product trainings were
held to develop product knowledge with the banks
frontline staff,

2
FINANCE USED CAR WITH

CONFIDENCE.
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This year, special focus has been given to auto
financing as part of a long-term strategy. One of the
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key objectives has been to improve Toyota's share in
aute financing.

Toyota Smart Finance

The pilot portal launched in FY21-22 was expanded
over multiple Toyota dealerships during the year and
continues its gradual expansion nationwide. This is a
one-stop solution for all financing needs,

One~slap Soludion
IMC partnered with Bank Alfalah and Bank Alfalab
Islamic to also bring Residual Value (RV] financing to
the Portal which is the need of the hour with growing
interest rates and depreciating currency value, [MC
also conducted nationwide training of dealer sales

staff for Toyota Smart Finance, to ensure customer
satisfaction.
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Roshan Apni Car [

IMC facilitated maore than 100 Pakistanis living
abroad this year to not just dream but get a car
for their loved ones living in Pakistan and
helped their dreams come true of owning a
MNon-Resident
resicing acrass the world maintaining a Roshan
Digital Account (RDA] could apply for car loan
facility and the Company ensured prioritized
delivery for such prestigious customers.

Toyota,
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Pakistanis can

NOW OVERSEAS PAKISTANIS

CAN OWN A TOYOTA BACK HOME

Pakistanis  (MNRPs)

INDUS MOTOS COMPAMNY LIMITED FULLY SUPPDETS

IHITIATTVE BY THE COWER NMENT OF PAKISTAN

= % owna Tuyata " " 5 AND THE STATE BAMNK OF PAKISTAN
T back home = =
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"Mobility for All'Award 2022

IMC won the Mobility Award 2022 conferred by Toyota Motar Asia Pacific for Insta Car by utilizing the high
Residual Value (BV] of Toyota CKD models and providing customers with a low rental alternative to traditional
financing products. Habib Metropolitan Bank Insta Car was launched as a first-of-its-kind Shariah-compliant
R\ ljarah model where the Bank acted as a lessor to the customer. In this rent arrangement, customers were
required to pay extremely low monthly rent for the use of vehicle. During this arrangement, only the rights of
use are with the customer. At the end of the agreement, customer had the option to return the car to the bank
or buy it back at market value.

TOYOTA
INSETACAR

HABIBMETRO

YOU DON'T HAVE TO BUY IT TO DRIVE IT

WATH JUST 15% REFLINDABLE SECURTY DERPCSIT
YO CaN DRIVE A BRAMD NEW TOYOTA FOR AS LOW AS

TOVOTA YARS

e R
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Dealership Network Expansion

The year 2023 has presented significant challenges for
the automotive incustry in Pakistan. Nonetheless, our
commitment to delivering exceptional services to our
esteemed customers has remained steadfast, as
demonstrated by the inauguration of three new Toyota
dealerships. These dealerships include Toyota Gateway
Motors in Lahore, Toyota Rahwali Cantt Motors in
Gujranwala and Toyota Chiltan Motors in Quetta,
thereby expanding our network to 55 dealerships
nationwide and enabling us to reach out to customers in
23 cities.

In line with its global brand transformation strategy, IMC
has invested over PKR 250M to revamp the corporate
identity (C.1.) signage of its dealerships nationwide. This
initiative has been carried out with meticulous attention
to detail to ensure compliance with Toyola's branding
guidelines. The C.. Signage revamping exercise has
been executed covering 40 dealerships nationwide and
is expected to reinforce the Toyota brand's market
position and value proposition in the country.

#53 Tovota Gateway Motors

(el

Baluchistan

Authorised
Dealerships

nationally

Toyata Chitan Motors
Toynia Guatia Mobors
Tenga Farginoon Metors

Tenvasta Alrpert Mutors Toyota Canal Maotors
Toyota Cantt Motors RACIR EeL i
Toyota Garden Motors syt Rahiwall Carat Motors

Toryote Gatewsy Motors Sialkot
Towota dinnah Matoes Toyota Sialket Oty Motors

Tareota Shaheen Motors Sahiwal 3
Tg_\,c:l;a Sahara Motars T:ymaSaiw.'a{Mcmrs
Teymship Maotors
Torpata Valton Metors Multan
a Toyota City Maotars

Faizalabad T Multar, Maotars

Vot CharliMatis |7

Tewota Faisalsbad Motors Dera Ghazi Khan

Teryerta Lyallpur Motars Toyota DG Khan Motz

Sargodha Bahawalpur
Tewerta Sarpndha Maotoss Towyoita Bahawalpur Motors
Gt Rahir Yar Khan

Towota Gujrat Motars T Reyal Matoirs

15 Deslerships

S cities
Karachi Hyclerabad
Teyerta Central Mortars Teyota Hyderabad Motors
Toreata Cliffon Motors Toyots Poirt Mators
Towota Creel Motors:
Tewpota Defence Mokors Suskdeur
Teyota Eastern Motars Towota Sukkur Motors
Teyeta Highwiny Maotars
Tonota Port Gasim Mobors
Toyota Shars e Faisal Motors
Towota Sociery Motors
Towoita Southem Mators
Toneta ummmmw
Towota VWestern Mobors
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= Toyota Protection Plan

The Toyota Protection Plan (TPP) provides our
customers with the opportunity to avail highly
competitive insurance packages. TPP offers low
depreciation rates, genuine body parts replacement
and various other unigue benefits exclusive to Toyota
customers, Toyota is always committed to Kaizen
[continuous improvement) in its operations and
services, ensuring that customers can enjoy being part
of the Toyota Family. The TPP has experienced sales
growth and holds great potential for further expansion
in the coming years, providing Toyota customers with
the peace of mind they rightly deserve.

PROTECTING YHDA'_UH EVERY MILE

AT T OV MR

To further enhance customer delight, this year IMC has
included Salaam Takaful Limited, TPL Insurance and
United Insurance Company (Takaful Operations) under
tha TPP umbrella, in addition to Habib Insurance
Company Limited

= Prepaid Periodic Maintenance

The Prepaid Periodic Maintenance (PPM) provides
customers with a smart, affordable, and consistent way
to reduce their regular spending on Toyota vehicle
maintenance, It offers quality services by skilled Toyota
Certified Technicians ensuring the vehicle’s authentic
appearance and optimal functionality, thus enhancing
its resale value.

The PPM is available for all locally manufactured
Toyota wehicles  including models such as Yaris,
Corolla, Revo and Fortuner, as well as imported Toyota
vehicles such as Land Cruiser and Prado.

» Extended Warranty

As a testament to IMC's long-lasting reputation for
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building tough and durable vehicles, the Company
offers  Z-year extended warranty in addition to the
3-year built-in manufacturer’s warranty. This results in
a total of 5 years of wehicle warranty, providing
customers with an extended peace of mind.

For the first time in Pakistan, the vehicle's Extended
Warranty is being offered in three packages, tailored
to meet the customers' mileage needs and ensuring
maximum warranty coverage for their peace of mind.
IMC has always remained committed to consistently
improve its preducts and services to create maximum
customer satisfaction. The extension in the warranty
period offers our customers peace of mind for
additional miles, enhanced vehicle performance and
increased resale value.

» Toyota Online Store

As part of the Toyota Philosophy for customer delight,
Tovota Motar Asia Pacific [TMAP) selected Pakistan to
launch its first-ever online store for Toyota Genuine
Parts, Toyota Motor Qil and Accessories.

In collaboration with Leopards Courier Services, the
largest courier service provider in Pakistan, IMC
launched its enline store in March, with the complete
range of Toyota Motor Ol and with limited
geographical coverage.

Mext year, the online store will be available across
Pakistan with a complete range of Toyota aftersales
praducts, Toyota has always remained committed to
continuous improvement (kaizen) in Its operations and
services, ensuring that customers can enjoy being part
of the Toyata family.

= rEErm e

COMVEMIENCE AT YOUR DOCRSTER | %
J FOVOTA

@

Celebrate Independence With Toyota

Join our Independence Celebrations this year, with Free 14 Points Check-up of your vehicle.
Visit your nearest Toyota Authorised Dealership to avail the Azadi Offer, today.

Niw)

GENLHNE PARTS  QUALITY SERVICE

Customer Delight

Keeping the tradition of always delivering the best customer experience, IMC continuously strives to find
innovative ways to ensure customer satisfaction. Special campaigns and season-based drives are designed by
IMC to address a wide range of issues that customers may encounter during different seasons and weather
conditions. These campaigns are designed to cater to the unigue needs of cur customers, making them feel that
they are taken care of.

= Azadi Campaiagn

In the spirit of celebrating Independence with full force, IMC made sure to give customers a gift to rejoice. The
Azadi Campaign was launched in August to give our customers’ peace of mind during the month of
independence, Under this campaign, a free 14-point inspection was offered all over Pakistan. Nationwide
celebrations were also carried out. Our customers loved the patriotic theme and were delighted by this amazing
offer. Despite being a time-limited offer, the Azaadi campaign contributed towards increasing customer footfall
at dealerships by multiple folds.
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LET TOYOTA
MAKE YOUR DRIVE
MORE COSY THIS WINTER

WIS T VOUR WILAREST NOWOTA AUTHORISID DLALDR SHIP TODY
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for Toyota vehicles.

the winter season,

Toyota Sure

> TovoTA SUITIE

TOYOTA

Any Carat

TOYOTA SURE
with

Certified Peace of Mind!

g~

» Winter Campaign

Toyota Sure, the used car division of Indus Motar Company, has been
expanding its footprint across the country by leaps and bounds. Established in
2014, T Sure has managed to expand its operations to 43 dealerships
nationwide, delighting our customers year on year, Due to its promise of
providing high quality certified used cars inspected on TVI (Toyota Vehicle
Inspection) system by Toyota experts, Toyota Sure as a brand has become a
trusted name within the Pakistani Used Car market touching the highest ever
certification units in FY22-23 at 7,360,
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Regardless of the time of year, IMC is dedicated to
ensuring that our customers are always well taken care
of and prepared to face each season with confidence.
With this objective, IMC launched the Winter Campaign
Winter brings its own set of
challenges that may impact our customers, and to
mitigate any potential issues, the Company provided
free battery and heater check-ups for all Toyota
customers as part of the winter campaign. Quraim isto
proactively address any concerns and ensure the
comfort and safety of our valued customers throughout

Marecver, the Toyota Sure
brand provides OEM warranty of
up to 1 Year/15000KMs on
certified  used wehicles thus
ensuring that cusiomers gain
the ultimate peace of mind
when purchasing a Toyota
Certified Used Car.

During the year IMC conducted
19 Used Car Gala across the
country for customer
engagement and also offered
Trade-in  with new Toyota
Vehicles. IMC also collaborated
with leading banks in the
country; Dubai Islamic Bank,
Bank Al Habib Ltd and Meezan
Bank for attractive financing
deals on T Sure vehicles.

This year, Toyota Sure achieved
another milestone of 7,360 units
certified  wehicle sales, the
highest-ever,

The Toyota Sure
brand has become a
trusted name within

the Pakistani used car

market

Technical Skill Enhancement
= Team 21

Toyota has a long history of training systems that
cultivate exceptional technicians capable of
adapting to evolving market conditions and the
rapid advancement of automobile technology.

To ensure the continuous skill enhancement of its
technical service staff, Toyota has implemented a
sophisticated  human  resource  development
program, This year, over 23,000 man-hours were
dedicated to TEAM-21 trainings, resulting in the
establishment of trained Toyota Diagnostic Master
Technicians at every 35 dealership.

= Body & Paint National Skill Contest

Each vyear, IMC organizes a
Mational Skill Contest under the
category of General Service and
Body & Paint skills. The evaluation
of the skill contest comprises a
combination of written and
practical examinations, assessing
areas such as safety, standard
operations, and work quality.

In the current year, a total of 855

TEAM-21 trainings cover all aspects and standards
mandated by Toyota Motor Corporation, Japan, with
the goal of annually edquipping both new and
experienced technicians with the "Fix it Right the
First Time" cancept,

23,000

man- @DU rs in
QNG
TERMMIET

Tt Bt e W |

These trainings aim to facilitate seamless and
delightful experiences for our valued customers.
Additionally we provide specialized training for our
corporate clients and fleet service technical staff,
ensuring they stay abreast of the Company’s latest
practices and developments.

technicians from 35 dealerships nationwide, participated in the National Skill Contest under the Body & Paint
category. Following regional-level assessments, 145 technicians were shortlisted, and ultimately, 15 experts

emerged as finalists,

= Diagnostic Master Technician Dangal

This year, IMC conducted a skill competition amongst Diagnostic Master Technicians (DMTs) from the 35
dealership network. The DMT Dangal not only provided a platform for engagement and team motivation but
also served as an opportunity for peer-learning, A total of 52 DMTs participated in the dangal showcasing
their expertise in diagnosing the most challenging vehicle cases and presenting their solutions,

INDLIS MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED

This event played a significant role in enhancing their fact-finding skills and finding effective solutions to

customer problems.
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Awards
= CDEA Gold Award

This year is ending on a high note for the
Company. We are pleased to share that
IMC has been promoted to Group-
Cistributer of Toyota Motor Asia Pacific
(TMAP] in the Customer Delight Excellence
Award (CDEA) Program of the Customer
First Department,

This prometion is a result of IMC's
consecutive 4th Gold Award in CDEA
2018-2022 (2020 excluded due to COVID),
making us the first distributor to ascend
from Group-2 to Group-1. Previously, IMC

was a part of Group-2 in the CDEA Distributor Category competing with the Philippines, Malaysia and Vietnam.
Group distribution is determined by TMAP based on customer service standards, customer delight and quality. As
part of Group 1 distributors, IMC will now be competing with TMAP affiliates including Taiwan, Thailand, India and
Indonesia. This achievement is a testament to IMC's excellence and dedication in providing exceptional customer
service, Our commitment is to continue to engage and delight our customers.

» Customer Delight Excellence Award

The Customer Delight Excellence Award
(CDEA) program is a year-long evaluation
conducted by TMAP, assessing all Toyota
affiliates based on comprehensive metrics
that encompass customer experience and
satisfaction, retention and trust.

IMC has become a consecutive fourth-time
Gold Award winner in the category of
Customer Delight Excellence among the
Toyota Motor Asia Pacific affiliates.
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» Customer Delight Kaizen Evolution Award

The Customer Delight Kaizen Fiegr
Evolution (CDKE) program, organized ;
annually by Toyota Mator Asia Pacific
(TMAPR),  brings together Toyota
affiliates from the Asia Pacific region
with a shared objective of enhancing
customer delight and improving the
overall customer service experience,

This year, IMC secured the Excellence Kaizen Award on impraving
the Maintenance Reminder System (MRS) and the Most
Commendable Kaizen Award on enhancing customer retention via
connected services (Loyalty Program)

» Mobility for All Award 2022

IMC's commitment to accessible mobility solutions has been
recognized with the Mobility for All Award 2022, This prestigious
accolade acknowledges IMC's groundbreaking "Insta Car Project,”
which has revolutionized the automaobile industry in Pakistan.

Thraough innovative
initiatives, the company
continues to cater to
the diverse needs and
preferences of custo-
mers, enhancing their
lives by providing
seamless  transporta-
tion experiences,

Custo?g&fwnS .

Building relations with customer is an essential aspect of any business that seeks to maintain long-term
relationships with its customers. To keep customers satisfied with the Company's products and services
and build customer loyalty, it is important to evaluate the skills and ahbilities of the front-liners at our
dealerships who interact with customers regularly. Spearheading this responsibility for training is  IMC's
Customer Relations team who help dealers to increase customer loyalty, and drive sales growth.

On-line Skill Contest

The first-ever on-line, cross functional Skill Contest was held in March, aimed to identify strengths and
improvement areas of the Dealers staff, which can help the Customer Relations department to provide
targeted training to dealerships and to improve their customer service skills. By condueting such a contest,
the Company can ensure that its customers receive the best possible service, which can improve customer
satisfaction and retention, and help the Company to achiave its business objectives. All 35 Managers,
Customer Relations and TSURE participated, which was a great cpportunity for dealers to showcase their
skills and knowledge with thelr cross functional teams, Eleven dealers bagged the top 3 positions,

w 15t Place | Toyota Creek Motors | Tovota Sukkur Motors | Toyota Ravi Motors |
» ZnciPlace |Toyota Clifton Motors | Toyvota Highway Motars | Toyota Bahawalpur Motors | Toyota Sahiwal Motars |

= 3rcl Place | Toyota Chenab Motors | Toyota Lyallpur Motors | Toyota Jhelum Motors | Tayota G.T. Maotars |

Dealer CEO Meeting ]

After a two-year hiatus and steering clear of enclosed spaces - the norm during the COVID pandemic - it
was time to get together with the Dealer fraternity and throne the top performers. Taking the joint lead to
organize the big event was IMC's Customer Relations and Marketing teams. The setting, the lush and
sun-drenched beaches of Phuket and amongst the audience were the CEOs of the Toyota dealership
network and the senior management and team of IMC's Customer Relations, Customer First and Sales &
Marketing.

A total of 77 awards covering the financial yvears between 2019 and 2022, were given out to top preforming
Dealers in the three geographical regions and the nations best, for Sales, Service, Parts, Customer
Relations and T Sure. The most coveted award, the Best of the Best Award, went out to Dealers who
excelled in all the five areas afore-mentioned. Taking the trophy for the four vears were;

1 Toyota Highway Matars I Toyota Central Motors I Toyota Eastern Motors I Toyota Central Motors

2ms 2020 20 20322
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Safety, Health & .

Trainings & Awareness Programs I

= Hybrid Vehicle Safety Training

IMC s gearing up for the Imminent
introduction of hybrid electric vehicle (HEV)
manufacturing in the plant. This ma :
aur plant team has been
ic vehicle trials and prc
n. Tovota | tsu Engineseting

and Manufacturing (TDEM) and SHEE has

ized electric vehicle safety training for

Shop team, repair

s, and inspectors, The training

aims to educate them on the essential

safety precautions to be taken when
working with EV circuits.

Online training by TDEM on Hybrid safety

s Fire Detection & Alarm Simulation

IMC has recently incorporated an additional
simulator this year in the Safety Dojo at the
Training Centre. This new simulator, allows us to
provide education on various fire detection
methads employed within  IMC, proper
interpretation of signals and the appropriate
response required on the fire control panel to all
emploveess. The simulator is capable of simulating
fire detection and generating an alarm for training
and to evaluate a member's response,
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= Fire Response Training

IMC's SHEE team arranged an  in-house
firefighting and emergency response training for
more than 400 nominated fire fighters at the plant
to enhance their skills and apply their knowledge
under the guidance of a trainer.

s Anti-Chewable Tobacco Activity

IMC adheres to a stringent policy prohibiting the use of
chewable tobacco use on its premises and strives to raise
awareness among its members about the health
associated with such products, This year we conducted
another cycle of awareness campaign on this subject
collaborating with medical experts. Individuals underwent
thorough inspections by experts and received consultations.

= Wallkway Rules Promotion by
Management

At IMC, we prioritize adherence to a
comprehensive set of safety rules and
actively promote the safety culture by
involving our senior management in safety
initiatives. The picture on the right shows
our Japanese Coordinater from Toyota
Motor Corporation and  departmental
safety team engaged in the promotion of
walkway rules during staff departure.

* Disaster Risk Management
Training

The SHE&E team arganized a
training session on Disaster Risk
Management to enhance the
skills of new members. The
training focused on  risk
assessment  and  mitigation
strategies to prevent potential
incidents at the workplace.

= Safety Month

As part of our annual activiby INDUS MOTOR COMPANY LTD

plan, IMC organizes the Safety
Month every year during which
we conduct various activities to
promote safety culture. Our
managemeant  ensures full
engagement and participation
from all departments, with 100%
staff irwolvement in different
safety initiatives. These activities
encompass hazard identification
and countermeaasures,
promotion  of safety  rules,
compliance checks, trainings,

quizzes and  competitions, RTLLRARAAANY

culminating in rewards for the
participants who excel.

AR nE -

We pricritize adherence
to a comprehensive set
of safety rules and
actively promote
safety culture

SAFETY, HEALTH & ENVIROMNBENT

I o]
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DURING TRAVELLING

FASTEN
SEAT BELTS
TO EMEURE VOUR SAFETY
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s Zero Tolerance on Seat Belt

Safety has consistently remained IMC's
foremost priority and, our leadership has
implemented a ZERD tolerance policy for
any violations of safety rules. This year, IMC
has placed significant emphasis on Seat
Belt compliance for staff members
traveling both within and outside the

-
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= 55& 5 Fixed Activity

IMC actively fosters a 55 culture throughout the
company with the active involverment of top
management engagement through regular 55
Walks, To further strengthen this culture, we
have introduced 5 Fixed tools with the support
of TMC in our plant to improve and sustain
good 55 on processes. Quarterly competition
has also been initiated to encourage
departments to produce the best areas
following the criterion set by Toyota Motor
Corporation (TMC).

Management System Audits
s OSHMS

IMC adheres to the Occupational Safety &
Health Management System (OSHMS] which
has been developed by TDEM for all Toyota
APMC's to effectively manage safety systems. As
part of our regular practice, we undenwent
comprehensive audits this year by auditors from
TOEM, covering all safety domains, to ensure
compliance with our Key Performance Indicators
{KPIs}, system requirements, and cantrols in line
with the established OSHMS criteria. These
audits are conducted with utmast rigor, and the
evaluation reports are communicated up to the
top management level,

s G-EMS

IMC is an I1SC 14001 certified company, and we
maintain  our systems and practices in
accardance with 1SO requirements. Additionally
IMC fallows G-EMS (Global Enviranmental
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been disseminated to ensure that all
individuals are fully committed to
complying with seat belt regulations in
order to prioritize safety during travel.

Sl

Management System) which is developed by TDEM for
all Toyata APMC's, During the year, a team from TDEM
conducted an audit of IMC's G-EM5 to evaluate its
environmental perfarmance and identify opportunities
far improvement,

This comprehensive audit covers all aspects of
IMC's operations, including waste
management, energy consumption, and water
usage. The audit process involved a detailed
assessment of IMC's environmental practices
and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations,

s Enviranment Month

IMC celebrated Environment Menth in June
with a series of activities aimed at promoting
environmental sustainability. One of the key
initiatives was a tree plantation drive, where
employees planted trees, Additionally, foliage
plant distribution was also conducted to
encourage employees to take care of their
plants, These activities successfully raised
awareness and fostered a culture of
envircnmental responsibility throughout IMC,
Senior management is actively engaged in
promoting  these activities and showed
appreciation for the achievers.

» WWF Green Office Training

To promote environmental management in
offices, we organized a Green Office training
for our employees during the Enwvironment
Month with the support of WWF Pakistan.

= Environment Month Quiz

During the Environment Month, a
company-wide guiz activity was conducted
using an online tocl as well as on the shop floor
for our staff. The winners were rewarded and
appreciated for their participation,

Mr. Mohammad tbadullah, CFO, presenting a prize to
Maryum Fatima of Commercial

Annual Report




s ECO Themes

A competition was arranged during the
Environment Manth b engage
departments in producing their best ECO
Themes following a criteria and linkage
with Environmental KPls. Each department
presented  jis  theme to the senior
managemeant  elaborating  activities
carried out to protect the environment
and results achieved in the form of KPIs, Ag
directed by TMC, we are focused to
achieve Met Zero Factory CO2 by 2035
and for each year we have set challenging
targets in reducing our COZ2 emissions.

Awards

= Warranty Reduction Achievernent Award = Quality Person Award
Recognizing IMC's focus on improving quality Cne of IMC's exceptional Team Members from the
and customer satisfaction, Toyota Daihatsu Engine shop, Mr. Farhat Ghani, was honored with
Engineering &  Manufacturing  (TDEM) the prestigious Quality Person Award for the year
presented IMC with the Warranty Reduction 2023 by Toyota Daihatsu  Engineering &
Achievement Award for the year 2022, This Manufacturing (TDEM). This distinguished award is
accolade acknowledges IMC's  outstanding granted based on the core values of Customer First
results in local wehicle manufacturing and and Quality First mindset. Mr. Farhat Ghani's
supplier quality. IMC's proactive approach in outstanding dedication o maintaining  these
promptly addressing customer complaints and values made him the top choice for this recognition
reducing market defects contributed to this at IMC, as he demonstrated remarkable vigilance
remarkable  achievement.  The Company beyond his job scope. His keen observation and
extends its gratitude to dealers, suppliers, and swift action in halting a critical defect from
top management for  their  wvaluable advancing further were instrumental in uphaolding
contributions in reaching this milestone, the highest standards of quality.
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Next page: Head of Corperate Communication and C5R, Mr. Asad Abdullah,
helos 1h-year old Saqit from Mansehra, o take his first steps

with his first-time prosthesis at HASWA Karach), one of the

Company's partners for building an Inclusive society.
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‘learn it - know it -« live it

Human;@:smas
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AL IMC, we aim to build a culture where employees bring their authentic self to work every day, We foster a work
ervironment where everyone feels a sense of belonging and equal importance. This year has been a difficult one
for the business, However, we being a people-centric organization, stayed above and beyond, making sure our
people's needs are met; be it employes well-being, leaming & development or continuous efforts to enhance
gender diversity at all levels,

EMPLOYEE WELL-BEING INITITIAVES

~ g According to the Shaukat Khanum

Memaorial Cancer Hospital, it is estimated

i that each year more than 83,000 cases of

" \\3 breast cancer are reported in Pakistan.

ﬁ Mearly 40,000 women die due to this

1‘% deadly disease. IMC understands the

N i significance and impact of creating
awareness of this dreadful disease.

'

In the same spirit, a two-member panel comprising a surgeon and psychologist, was invited to talk about coping
with the physical and emational trauma associated with breast cancer for all female employees at IMC. Mot anly
this, discounted vouchers were distributed to all females over 40 years age for mammaogram screening,

= Avareness Session on Harmful Effects of Chewable Tobacco

An awareness session about the harmful effects of chewable
tobacco usage was organized in collaboration with Al Ata
Foundation. A team of health professionals and doctors joined
us to set up their medical camps where oral screening sessions
were conducted on our employees.

This session was a great opportunity for our employees to reflect
on their Ufestyle choices, get their health assessed and know the
risks of long consumption of tobacco.

To celebrate World Diabetes Month, screening
of hbAlc was organized for employees aged
35 vears age and above, that gave instant
results, This two-day activity was followed by a
session  where a  gualified panel of
diabetolegists and nutritionists were invited to
talk about adopting a healthy lifestyle and
balanced diet. A free of cost screening camp
was also arranged to facilitate employees.
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= Menstrual Hygiene & Provision of Sanitary Napkins

Women comfort and inclusion at IMC is our utmaost priority
Another milestone was achieved this year by signing a
partnership with Santex Products (Pvt.) Limited for installation
af sanitary napkin dispensers in the ladies restrooms across
aur Plant and Carparate Office, to establish a more inclusive
environment,

= Coffee Session with the CEQ

This is an exclusive activity organized specifically for
IMC female employees that provides an opportunity
§ - I of dialogue with the CEC regarding any areas of
' s Wil B - concerns they may have. This year the Company
AR RIS YT O gt (T e S organized two sessions, the first in December, and
b : t‘ [ % el 12 A the second one in March,

~ IMCTigers

g T :=" W - el F o i e . * Women's Day Celebration
un e"atle _ ; C Rl e VLA -t . Knowing the fact that when it

comes to connecting people,
food by all means has been a

g : . - great foundation. We
= |MC Football Championship R : : ) organized a breakfast for all
the women at IMC  and

The IMC Football Championship 2022-23 was held between December and February. Twenty-six
intradepartmental teams participated and played really well. For the last two years, IMC Tigers has beean
the winning team. This year again, IMC Tigers won the champicnship title and made their mark.

Leadership Team. It was an
#EmbraceEquity amazing opportunity for
them to know their leaders

) , an a personal level,
s The Last Man S5tands - Cricket Tournament P

Mot only this, the Company also reached out to people at IMC whose spouses were working professionals, to
This exciting cricket tournament kicked off in know the secret of how they maintain a work-life balance in their lives. Some inspiring stories were shared on
August and continued till October, It was social media under the theme, EMBRACE EQUITY.

played amongst five teams enthusiastically.
Our hardball team represented IMC in this

i zadershi it rogr
tournament alongside other corporate teams, = | eadership Expedition Program

IMC's Potential Leaders Xpedition
was conducted in December, The

. " " " . , " purpose of this program was to

imprave organizational effective-

£ o ness through developing

leadership skills amaong the middle

DIVERSITY & INCLUSION INITIATIVES Manageneit pRltah the

organization and develop an
understanding of and transform
participants into high-perfarmance
teams. This Leadership program
was conducted for 27 Potential
Leaders identified by the IMC team,
these were middle managers
coming from different functions of
the Company and different
managerial levels.

= Gender Sensitization

A learming session for our senior management
employeas was organized in December. A renawned
facilitator was invited to talk about issues and topics
that revolve around gender sensitivities and to
reinfarce the concept of 'equity’. The idea behind this
was to enhance our culture and make it more
inclusive by making our senior managers our allies
because change is always driven from the top.
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s Apprenticeship Pregram Induction

A total of 248 Apprentice Team Members (ATMs)
were inducted between July and Oclober. As part of
their apprenticeship program, apprentices were
given the opportunity to attend wvarious training
sessions and workshops for further development of
skills including Toyota Communication Skills and
Toyota Job Instructions,

L I'C_I'"-J Séervice Awards Cersamony

Long service awards are an effective way to acknowledge employees’ dedication and commitment to the
organization. To recognize the tireless efforts of our people and boost their marale, IMC organized the
Long Service Awards ceremony where the senior leadership handed over tokens of appreciation to our
emplovees who have spent 15 and 25 vears of service with the organization.

Mi’:@
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Operations

Process Improvement

As part of our commitment to continuous
improvement (kaizen), we have introduced battery
operated guns to replace the conventional
prneumatic operated guns. This upgrade eliminates
air hoses from the production line, leading fo
improved workability and enhanced safety.

Impact of Economic Crisis on Production

During the FY23, IMC experienced a significant
praduction decline of over 50% compared to the
previous fiscal yvear. This drop in production was the
result of wvarious economic challenges that the
Company encountered during this period.

At the beginning of FY23, the Government
implemented strict econamic policies and imposed
restrictions  on  luxury goods imports.  These
measures  disrupted  demand  and  supply
management, as the Company faced limited LC
allocations and additional charges for holding
stocks at the port. Consequently, IMC had to take
careful actions to manage pipeline orders,
considering LT amounts in relation to market
conditions.

Furthermore, the post-COVID period saw an
increase in glebal demand and reduced supply,
leading to global inflation that further resulted in
the depreciation of the Pakistani Rupee. These
factors significantly impacted the automotive
market, resulting in a decline in order intake. The
averall increase in product prices, including raw
materials, transportation, and utility charges, also
contributed to this decline.

The economic challenges also affected IMC's
suppliers, particularly small  businesses  and
enterprise suppliers, wha struggled to secure forex
for their shipments. This caused disruptions in the
supply chain, further exacerbating the production
challenges,

As we navigate through these unprecedented
economic circumstances, IMC remains committed
to addressing the challenges and implementing
strategic measures to mitigate the impact. Our

team is diligently working to adapt to changing
market conditions, improve supply chain resilience,
and explore innovative solutions to  ensure
operational continuity and sustainable growth,

Despite the hurdles, IMC is dedicated to upholding
its commitment to excellence and delivering value
to stakeholders. By embracing these challenges as
opportunities for growth and improvement, we are
confident in our ability to emerge stronger and
maore resilient in the face of economic uncertainties,

Moving forward, IMC will continue to closely
maonitor the economic landscape, implement
prudent financial management practices, and
prioritize  customer  safisfaction.  Through
collaborative efforts and unwavering
determination, we are confident in overcaming the
economic crisis and driving the Company towards a
brighter and prosperous future.

Hybrid Project |

Building Expansions

In line with the Hybrid Project, we have undertaken
wvarious  building and  facility expansions to
accommodate the production of this exciting new
model. Our Press Shop witnessed a High Roof
buillding extension of 540 sg. meters to
accommodate new stamping dies, and a Low Roof
building extension of 3,450 sq. meters for finished
parts storage. Within the current building, the Weld
Shop was extended by 2,932 sgq. meters to
accommodate new process jigs and Robat cells.

Annual Report
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To ensure seamless production integration, we
intraduced the Assembly Shop Pre-Trim area {178
5q. meters) to accommodate exclusive Hybrid
pracesses while maintaining standard processes at
the main line. Additionally, the Assembly Shop
Sub-Assembly area (260 sg. meters) was
intraduced to create space at the main line for
exclusive Hybrid Vehicle parts, To optimize our
facility, we reduced Logistics space by 4,350 sq.
meters through kaizen, enabling the expansion of
Weld and Assembly shops,

Facility Upgrades

Qur commitment to innovation and efficiency is
reflected in the introduction of Weld Under Body
welding robots to weld high thickness parts of the
upcoming hybrid vehicle. Moreover, the Weld Shop
now boasts a first-ever pit-less line for the Main
Body, streamlining our welding process, To
facilitate the installation of hybrid batteries, we
introduced  the Weld Shop Hybrid Battery
Manipulator and Door On/Off Manipulator, further
aptimizing our praduction capabilities.
Additionally, we have set up a new inspection
facility for BSM Spec to ensure stringent quality
control,

As we move forward, IMC remains dedicated to
continuous improverment and innovation to mest
the evolving needs of our customers, These process
impravements and facility expansions exemplify
our commitment to delivering top-notch vehicles
while maintaining the highest standards of gquality
and efficiency.
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Localization

This year has been particularly hard economically
for Pakistan and its automotive industry. Due to a
decline in foreign exchange reserves, the State
Bank of Pakistan imposed restrictions on opening
LCs which presented a complex challenge to IMC
for managing its own and its suppliers’ supply
chain to centinue production, An automobile
company generally has a far more complex supply
chain systemn compared to other industries. With
Toyata's supply chain partners spread across the
globe, the intricate balance of supply in this
complex network has catastrophic effects when
disturbed even the slightest. Cur dedicated teams
at IMZ make commendable efforts each day to
keep the production line running, minute by
minute, so that we can serve our customers as
smaoothly as possible.

National Automotive Company, Muridke

Under Rear (UR) Robot

Even during the most
trying economic times,
the Toyota family strives
to stand strong. Toyota
has always taken hard
times as a challenge and
always  faces  such
challenges head-on,
coming out even
stronger  each  time.
IMC's devated team has
stuck to one of its most
important pillars and has
been continuously
improving to make each
process  more  cost
efficient, gearing up the
firm to adjust to the
direction of the wind.

Always remaining true to the word “family”, Toyota
deoes enjoy all the good times together, but never
fails to make sure that it shares the burden that
other family members may also be facing during
bad times. From providing more frequent forex
adjustments and providing interest-free loans, to
extending the payback durations of these
interest-free loans, IMC leaves no stone untumed
in making sure that it keeps its suppliers' needs
above its own, especially, and even when the entire
industry is faced with extreme financial crisis.

Cwur focus an the environment does not diminish
even when gaing through hard times. Even now,
we keep enabling and pushing all our suppliers to
become environmentally responsible. So far, out of
the 46 suppliers, 42 have become 5014001
certified, while the remaining are on track to
achieve the same. In addition to this, IMC keeps
organising tree plantation drives, both in-house,
and at suppliers’ premises,

Recreational Facilities

Our Recreational Facility offers a wide range of
activities and amenities to ensure a fun and
enjoyable experience for everyone, At IMC, we
believe that a healthy work-life balance is essential
for our employees' well-being and productivity, As
part of our commitment to providing a supportive

Hafiz Junaid Ahmed of Plant Engineering enjoys an
intense snooker moment at the Recreation Centre

and engaging work environment, we have
designed a recreational facility that can
accommodate up to 200 employees at a time,
catering to their mental health and overall
engagement.

Within our recreational facility, we have carefully
curated a selection of activities to suit various
interests and preferences, From classic favorites to
modern entertainment, there's something for
everyone to enjoy, from ludo to carrom board to
chess; snocker to foosball and table tennis and
basketball hoops for the fast paced. For those
wanting to stretch their muscles, a mini gym is right
on hand,

At IMC, we take pride in fostering a positive wark
culture and promoting employee well-being, Cur
recreational faclity is a testament to our
commitment to providing a holistic and enjoyable
experience for our valued employees. We believe
that a rejuvenated and engaged team leads to
higher productivity and greater success for the
company.

As we continue to grow and strive for excellence,
we remain dedicated to investing in the happiness
and satisfaction of our employees. Cur recreational
facility is just one of the many initiatives we have
undertaken to ensure the well-being and
fulfiltment of our IMC family.
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Mr, Abdul Razzaq Lakhani, Managing Director SGS, presents award to
Mr. Makato Kubota, Senior Director Technical and Mr. Wall Muhammad, Director Manufacturing

IS0 50001 Energy Management System Certification

IMC's relentless pursuit of energy conservation practices has eamed the Company the IS0 50001 Energy
Management System Certification, IMC is proud to be the first automobile company in Pakistan to receive
this esteemed certification, demonstrating its dedication to creating a sustainable future.
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In ation

Digital Transformation

Curing challenging times, the T strategy focuses
on value innovation rather than technology
innavation. Connectivity during Work-from-Home
plays a key role in employee satisfaction. To
suppert  the reguirement, the Information
Technology department implemented  several
technologies, including a different platform for
online meetings, a digital approval system, and
Mext Generation Firewall for better securiby
protections.

Hyper-Converged Infrastructure

The Information Technology Department recently
made a significant upgrade of conventional
infrastructure to a hyper-converged Infrastructure
(HCI) to support the growing business needs.

HCl s a software-defined infrastructure that
combines computing, storage, and networking
resources into a single system. It offers several
benefits over traditional infrastructure, including
improved performance, scalability, and ease of
management. HCl s becoming increasingly
popular in the enterprise space as it simplifies 1T
management and reduces costs,

The IT department recognized the need ta upgrade
the infrastructure to keep up with the growing
business demands. Facing huge challenges with
the existing infrastructure, such as slow
performance, scalability issues, and complex
management, [T partnered with a leading HC
provider to implement a new hyper-converged
infrastructure. The new infrastructure is designed to
provide faster processing, efficient storage, and
better network performance, It also enables the
company to scale up or down guickly, depending
on their business needs,

One of the key benefits of the new infrastructure is
its ease of management. With HCI, IT will manage
the entire infrastructure fram a single console, This
simplities the management process, reduces
complexity, and saves time and resources. The new

infrastructure will also provide greater resilience
and redundancy, ensuring that the Company's
systems are always available. This was critical for
IMC, as any downtime could have a significant
impact on its operations and customer satisfaction.
This will enable us to focus on core business
operations, delivering better services to customers,
and driving growth.

Track and Trace System for Vehicle Visibility

RFID based real time visualization of the painted
bodies in the CBS area for assembly line-in provide
tracking of vehicles from paint out to CBS storage
with display on Dashboard. Mounted RFID readers
on selected location reads the actual position of
color body and displays on the dashboard which
reduce Team Member time and efforts,

Information Security and Business
Centinuity Planning

In order to maintain smoath and secure
information flow, internal or external, without cyber
threats, Information Technology department
conducted 3rd party Vulnerability Assessment
Penetration Testing (VAPT) and close all high risk
highlighted items within time. VAPT includes all
IMC website applications, cloud applications, and
Data Centre,

VULNERABILITY |
ASSESSMENT

Penetration

Other Initiatives |

Other value addditions included improvemeant of
the Sales Order Booking System; revamping of
Genesis dealership portal; HR process automation
and workflows for different departments and
upgrade of all SharePaint applications.
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IMC is committed to making a positive impact on society through its TSR initiatives. Sustainability is core to how
we at Toyota behave and conduct business ethically and with sensitivity towards social, cultural, economic, and
environmental issues, Our continuous endeavor is to optimize the benefits of our social contribution by working
with partners; by using our resources more effectively and duly concentrating on initiatives that address real social
needs, Throughout the year 2022-2023, IMC continued to uphold its responsibility towards the community and
environment, focusing onvarious key areas such as education, healthcare, road safety, natural calamity relief, and
ecological conservation, The TSR activities undertaken by IMC were driven by the core values of social welfare,

sustainability, and inclusivity,
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Challenge 1

In 2015, Toyota announced the Toyota
Environmental Challenge 2050 with the aim
of realizing a sustainable society. The aim of
the Toyota Environmental Challenge 2050
was to continue to tackle challenges from a
long-term perspective of the world, 20 and
30 years ahead. In order to achieve the Toyota
Environmental Challenge 2050, in 2018
Toyota set the 2030 Milestone and set the
2025 Targets in 2020, Toyota will take
concrete  action under these short-to
medium-term measures, contributing to the

realization of a sustainable society.
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Neighboring Communities Uplifting Program

At Indus Motor Company, our Meighboring
Communities Uplifting Program reflects our
dedication to creating a positive and sustainable
impact on society, We remain committed to
empowering communities, fostering education, and
addressing social challenges, contributing to the
development and growth of the nation as a
respoansible corporate entity, CQur approach to this
program is a holistic one; encompassing a wide

. 'HIEEI:‘ of C5R and Corporate omm icat
Mr. Asad Abdullah with the kids from TCF
campus at Moeosa Goth, Karachi.

1na|

range of CSR activities and projects which are one of
their own kind in their criginality and uniqueness,
From taking care of immediate needs (Foed &
Health) to early childhood education {T-GEP), our
pragram is intended to become sustainable once
the community is empowered enough to sustain
these initiatives.

Indus Motor currently supports six goths (villages)
neighbouring the company.
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IMC CSR's, Muhammad Arsha-dat the Markhor, with tﬁe T-GEP group at Khanpur Dam

= Toyota Goth Education Program

The Company's flagship social initiative, the
Toyota-Goth Education Pregram (T-GEF), run in
cellaboration with The Citizens Foundation for the
15th running year now, was initiated under IMC's
Meighbouring Community Uplifing Program for
providing quality education from the grass-root
level, to the economically disadvantaged
out-of-school children living in goths [villages)
neighbouring IMC, providing full financial
support for elementary and secondary school
education.

To accommodate out-of-schoal children, during
the year, we have expanded T-GEP enrolment to
a wider number of children from the current
strength of 200 students to 500 students for the
academic years 2023-24, studying at five TCF
campuses located at Karachi.

In addition to the T-GEP initiative, the Company
also operates three TCF facilities at Karachi,
Hyderabad and Muzzafargarh where around
1,100 students are studying through a Rs 92
millien endowment fund and an annual grant
The campuses at Hyderabd and Muzaffargarh
have been built by IMC.

During the year, around 200 children from
different villages were selected for enrolment for
next academic year beginning August 2023,

Youth Leadership Conference ‘

The Markhor, is Pakistan's first wilderness-based
Youth Leadership Conference run by the
award-winning not-for-profit organization, Youth
Impact, which is the brain-child of its founder,
Abdul 5amad Khan, The Markhor Conferenceis a
five-day, all outdoors program held at an
off-the-beaten track location,

YIMRRRHOR |

The winter setting for the Markhor 2022 was the
picturesgue Khanpur Dam in KPK, about an hour's
rice from Islamakbad.

Group diversity is Markhor's unigue stamp. To see
the around 70 young kids, belonging to different
regions, religions and  socio-economic
backgrounds, in their full element, was a visual
treat.

The elaborate themes were #WorldofPossibilities
and #itsTheTime, which focused on how
leadership and management methodologies
were forced to evolve and adapt in the face of
challenges the COVID-1% pandemic brought on.
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IMC has been a regular sponsor for the Markhor since 2014, however, this was the third consecutive year
that IMC has sponsored students studying under its flagship Toyota Goth Education Program (T-GEP) - run
in tandem with The Citizens Foundation - which functions under the Neighbouring Community Uplifting
Program. This time it was a group of 10 students, eight of them girls - coming from economically
disadvantaged communities, residing in Abdullah Goth, one of the willages neighbouring IMC and
supported by it - and branded as the official Women Leaders Partner.

Three of these T-GEP students received awards for Best Mini Project and Best Tribe,

Community Services i

» Weekly Cooked Food Distribution

Our commitment to community well-being extends beyond
education and skill development. Through various community

service initiatives, we strive to address the basic needs of +
underprivileged communities. On a daily basis, cooked meals

are distributed, free of cost, through Saylani Welfare Trust and ’

Safaid Posh Dasterkhawn in villages supported by [MC

Additionally, during the month of Muharram, we initiated the "= EEEEE Pﬂl‘!ﬂﬂi

same service of providing cooked food to 1,100 Impa
underprivileged community members daily for 52 days.

leave
NO one

p— behind

» Ration Distribution to Employees of IMC

As a signatory to the UN Global Compact,
IMC supports the Sustainable Development Goals

. - - g = - - - -
s 1 3 o 0 and our social responsibility initiatives are
. I | accordingly aligned.
: H B B R B R BN 'famiues
impacted Toyota considers environmental and social issues of paramount

e : . 2 importance to improving our future saciety, and constantly seeks to
Recognizing the importance of social and economic : . . ;
determinants of health, we provided ration enhance governance to build strong relationships with all its
distribution to our employees in need, in stakeholders. As such, at IMC, our prime focus areas remain on
collaboration with HANDS Pakistan. This initiative education, health, road safety, environment and natural calamities.

aimed to support our employees and their families
during challenging times, ensuring their well-being.
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Childhood Blindness Prevention

YOUR After a successful
EYES Childheod Elrndn{sss
Prevention campaign
run last year on Waorld Sight Day, in
partnership with Al-lbrahim Eye Hospital
(AIEH), that targeted school going children
studying at The Citizens Foundation (TCF)
campuses in  neighbouring  villages
supported by IMC, this year again the 'Love
Your Eyes' campaign expanded its scope,
this time alse reaching out to out-of-school
children and adults in addition to school
gaing kids, living in these communities.

1 ’ 8

-----I-I“ﬁumscmnw

in10 villages

The Childhood Blindness Prevention
Program  functioning  under  IMCs
Neighbouring Cammunity Uplifting
Program, aims to mitigate the risk of
blindness and visual impairment, pervasive
amongst both  school geoing  and
out-of-schoal  children  and  adults
belonging to low  socio-economic
communities, residing in adjoining villages
supported by the Campany

Eleven free vision screening camps in nine
villages were setup for out of schaol children
and adults, The three major problems that
surfaced post screening were cyclo
refraction (blurred vision and abnormal
sensitivity to light); squint and, amblyopia
{poor vision commonly In one eye).
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Those with refractive error were provided
free spectacles and medicines wherever
needed, whilst patients requiring further
treatment/ surgery were referred to AIEH.
The two exciting aspects of this
collaboration with AIEH, is capacity
building and mare importantly, creating
awareness of  childhood  wision
impairment, which will have far reaching
results in the communities. This
campaign will resume in August 2023
ance TCF schools regpen.

Weekly Free Medical Camps

Free Medical Camps are being
organized three times a week an a
regular basis to provide basic
health care treatment to the
neighbouring underprivileged
community. In 2020, the Saylani
Welfare Trust was entrusted to run
the Medical Camps with additional
facilities for Blood Sugar Tests,
Blood Pressure Tests, and referring
serious patients to hospitals on its
panel.During the year, more than
2,900 patients were treated for
various seasonal illnesses such as
Respiratory Tract Infection,
Gastroenteritis and other general
health problems arising frem lack
of immunity. The medicines were
distributed free of cost,

Free Psychiatric Health Camps

Mental health is the most neglected and
under-served area of public health. The dearth of
basic understanding of psychiatric disorders
coupled with the social stigma attached to it, sadly
prevents people from seeking the care they need.
In a country of 220 million, Pakistan has only five
specialized mental institutions or one psychiatrist
for 500,000 people.

MENTAL
ELLB

IMC under its Neighbouring Community Uplifting
Program, has partnered with Karwan e Hayat, for
carrving out free psychological health-related
camps for the economically disadvantaged
communities. An important element of this
arrangement is educating and creating better
awareness on the importance of good mental
health in the same way as we care for our physical
health,

Karwan e Hayat, a not-for-profit institution, is the

Concwri Beyond Cars

. . P 5 .- = persons treated

== nnmamnnsas pPErsons

receiving treatment

Indus Motor Company
‘ in eallakeration with
: k{_ Karwan-e-Hayat

FREE wexwy
MENTAL HEALTH
CAMPS

country's largest psychiatric care hospital and for
the last four decades has been at the fore-front in
providing quality psychiatric and rehabilitation
services to the most neglected, mentally ill
patients in Pakistan, at absolutely no cost.

Since 2016, IMC has been extending psychiatric
medical services - free of cost - to the underserved
communities, residing in six villages located in the
company’s vicinity and supported by it

Annual Report
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CAN SAVE

YOUR

LIFE!

- « Some Road Safety Leaders pledging to be safe road  «
* * users during the UN Global Road Safety Week at IMC = =

Road Safety

Road safety is taking a serious turn in Pakistan and
addressing it is not any one person's job. It is a
shared responsibility. With the rapid expansion of
motorization, traffic safety in Pakistan has
become a serious concern that has witnessed a
sharg rise in road traffic-related fatalities and
injuries. An estimated over 27,500 people die
annually in the country and ancther 50,000 end
up with some disability. As Safety Leaders, Toyota
values safety, be it the Company's products or
safety on roads.

Toyota's ultimate goal is to reduce fatalities from
traffic accidents to zero. To realize this, in addition
to developing safe vehicles, it iz essential to
educate people i.e drivers and pedestrians, and
to ensure safe traffic infrastructure such as roads
and traffic equipment.
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In & dynamic collaboration between WNED
University and IMC, groundbreaking research is
underway to dissect the most congested and
accident-prone thoroughfares in Karachi. This
comprehensive  study serves as a beacon,
iluminating areas of concern that warrant urgent
attention from local authorities. The focal points
of investigation, including the National Highway,
Rashid Minhas Road, and Sher Shah Suri Road,
have undergone meticulous evaluation, with the
ultimate aim of forging a safer urban landscape.

The Road Safety Leader Campaign emerges as a
pioneering Initiative, spanning the entirety of
Pakistan. This digital wundertaking beckons
individuals to take the pledge of adhering
unwaveringly to safety protocols and traffic
mandates.

Concern
rovora Beyond Cars

EVERY

It's more than just a pledge; itis an understanding
propelled by a road safety quiz, effectively
fostering a culture of conscientiousness.

According to the World Health Organization
(WHO), approximately 1.35 million lives are lost
every year due to road traffic accidents globally.
The resonance of the 7th International UN Road
Safety Week is to reverberate caution on the
roads, as well as to make use of helmets and
seatbelts. The collective fervor of numerous IMC
departments bore testament to their resclute
commitment.

A luminary figure in the realm of road safety, Mr,
Miaz Malik, also the Brand Ambassador for Road
Safety at Indus Motor, conducted a Zoom
session. His deeply personal narrative of a fateful
episcde of driving apathy, where he momentarily
slept behind the wheel, subsequently leading to
paralysis from the neck down. His narrative serves
as a sobering reminder of the stakes we face on
the road.

The TSure Used Cars Gala seamlessly weaves
awareness into engagement. This is where the
IMC team got to interact at a customer level, as
well as join hands with dealerships in terms of
road safety outreach. Similarly, engagement was
created at a student level at Kingston College in
Lahcre. This holistic approach to safeguarding
lives on the road underscores the cormmitment of
the entire community.

StreetsforLife
- Rettinkobiiiy

Tools like social media, newspapers, as well as
mass text message campaigns have been used to
remind people of the importance of safety
features, that can help save a life. In this
symphony  of collaboration, research, and
awareness, we're sculpting a tomaorrow where our
roads are safer, our journeys more secure, and
our collective responsibility paramount,

’é‘f s /L’{‘ft,f Wﬂm
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Humanitarian Disaster Relief
» Operation Flood Relisf 2022

Pakistan has been hitwith the worst ever natural calamity in
its 75-year history. The recent torrential rains, followed by
flash flooding, caused widespread devastation spanning
the entire country. Villages wiped out, thousands of lives
lost, millions left homeless, the destruction has been
catastrephic which is very sad and painful, Under our C5R
program, Concem Beyond Cars, the company undertook
the Operation Flood Relief 2022 with a team of volunteers,
reaching out to around 3,000 families in rural Sanghar and
Sukkur, both located in Sindh,

aeaching out 30 ou! People of Pakistar

MBS MOTOR COMPANY & DEALERS

GPERATION FLOOD RELIEF 2022

Bebtween August 31st and September 10th, two teams, led
by IMC's Corporate Communication & CSR, Asad Abdullah
and the other one by Mohammad Arshad, headed out with
a total ef twelve volunteers, for Khipro (Sanghar) and the
outskirts of Sukkur, respectively. Cur partner, Saylani
Welfare Trust (SWT), organised and transported essential
supplies which included dry rations, bottled water, tents,
tarpaulins, mosguito nets and repellant to the locations
and distributed by IMC members themselves, The relief
operation also included Medical Camps, also set up by
SWT at different locations.

(S G S ]
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a young boxer’s

ream

The 2030 Agenda for Sustainable
Development acknowledges sport as an
important enabler of sustainable
development, recognizing the growing
contribution of sport to the realization of
development and peace in its promation of
tolerance and respect and the contributions
that it makes to the Sustainable Development
Goals.

In line with Toyota's transformational vision,
Mobility for All and the creation of a more
inclusive and sustainable society, IMC in its
endeavor to foster opportunities for young
talented individuals, supported a young
emerging boxer from Karachi, Shahir Afridi, in
his guest to defend his Asian Title at the Asian
Boxing Federation (ABF) Championship in
Bangkeok, Thailand,

The 27-year-old Pakistani boxing prodigy,
Shahir Afridi has won  accolades  both
nationally and internationally. His boxing
career took off in 2020 and given his limited
experience, boasts an impressive boxing
record of 4-0-1 (Wins-Losses-Draws), He won
the Asian Middleweight Title in May last year
and subsequently accepted the challenge
fram his Indian counterpart to defend his Asian
Title at the Asian Baxing Federation. The highly
anticipated fight was Shahir’s first title defense
for his ABF title and in less than two minutes
inta the first round, he knocked-out his Indian
rival

Shahir currently also serves with the Rapid
Response Force, Sindh Police

Concern
tovota Beyond Cars
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ACCOLADES

1 Prize

fl
’ :

& UN Global Compact Network Pakistan
Mr tonas Ertandsen, Senior Lead South Asia, Maritime Anti-Corruption Network, r,
presenting the award to IMCs Mr Asad Abdullah, Head of Corporate Communication & CSR and
Member of Board UN Global Compact Network Pakistan
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
WITH LISTED COMPANIES

(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Forthe year ended June 30, 2023

£

This staternent |s being presented to comply with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of

£

Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulstions) for the purpose of establishing a framework of
good governance.

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of Directors are ten (10) as per the following:
= Male 9{nine) = Female 1 {one)
2. At the year ended June 30, 2023, the compaosition of the Board of Directors (the Board) is as follows

Category MNames

* Independent Directors*

Mr. Azam Farugue
Mr. Rivaz T, Chinoy
Syeda Tatheer Zehra Hamdani

= MNon-Executive Directors

' Mr. Mohamedall 2. Habib
Mr. Imran Al Habib

r. Mubammaa H. Habikb
Mr. Akihiro Murakami

=

= Executive Directors

| (Shirji Yanag

Mr. All Asghar Jamali_
Mr. Shigeki Furuya

2|

The Independent Directors meet the criteria of independence under the Companies Act, 2017,

*Note: In terms of Regulation (1) COCG, one third of the Company's Board of ten members works out to
3.33. A= a general principle, since the fraction is below 0.5 (half), the fraction contained in such one third s
not rounded up as one. Furthermore, the composition of the Board is adequate, with a good mix of skilled,
experienced and professional independent and non-executive Directors, that have diligently looked after
the interests of the Company and are capable of rcbustly protecting the interests of its minarity
shareholders.

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a Director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where
applicable);

4. The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
to disseminate it throughout the Company atong with itz supporting policies and procedures;

The Board haz developed a vision/mission statement, an overall corporate strategy and significant policies
of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies
alongwith their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;

LN
'

&.  Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken
by the Board [ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 and the
Regulations;

136 | TOYOTA

The meetings of the Board were presided owver by the Chairman. The Board has complied with the
requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
the meeting of the Board;

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors in accordance with
the Act and these Regulations;

All Diirectors have duly clbtained training under the Directors’ Training Program or are exempted;

During the year, there has been no change in the position and terms and conditions of employment of the
Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary and Chief Financial Officer (CFQ);

The CFO and Chief Executive Cfficer (CEQ) have duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of
the Board;

The Board has formed Committees comprising of members given below:

MName of Committee MNames of Members and Chairman

= Board Audit Committee
Mr. Azam Faruoue Chairman
Mr Irmran Al Habilb Mermber
Mr. Muhammad H, Habik Mermbear
Mr. Akikire Murakami Mermber
Mr. Rivaz T. Chinoy Mermber

= Board HR & Remuneration Committee
Mr. Azam Farugue Chairman
Mr. Mohamedall B. Habib Mermber
Mr. Shinji Yanagl Mernber
Mr. All Asghar Jamali Member
Syeda Tatheer febra Hamdan) Memiber

= Board Ethics Committee
Mr. Riyaz T. Chinoy Chairman
Syeda Tatheer Zehra Hamdani Member
Mr. Al Asghar Jamali Memiber

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committeas for compliance;
The frequency of meetings of the committees during the year was as per the following:

»  Board Audit Committee Quarterly meetings

« Board HR & Remuneration Committee E--I_a_i%-.y?a_.fLy |.neet5ng15

* Board Ethics Committee Annual meeting

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who is considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company;

The statutery auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAF) and
registered with the Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with
the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guideline on Code of Ethics as adopted by the ICAP and
that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent
and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit,
Company Secretary or Director of the Company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirements and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard; and

We confirm that all mandatery requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 35 of the Regulations

have been complied with, A
7/ 8

Karachi Mohamedall . Habib
August 25, 2023 Chairmnan
Indus Motor Company Limited

—
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Indus Motor Company Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 201% (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Indus Motor Company
Limited for the year ended June 20, 2023 in accordance with the reguirements of regulation 36 of the
Fegulations.

The respansibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company, Our
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's
compliancewith the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-complisnce
with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations,

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to cbtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ staterment on intermnal control covers all risks and control or
to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such intemal cantrols, the Company's corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this reguirements to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflects the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023,

W‘Huhm-\ &0

A.F. Ferguson & Co

Charterad Accountants

Karachi

Date: Septembwer 5, 2023

UDIN: CRZ0231061EDcCWT nu

A, F. FERGUSON & 0., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC netuork
State Life Building No. 1-C, L1 Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-Pqo00, Pakistan
Tel: «02 (21) 3eq26682-6/92426711-5; Fax: +02 (21) 10415007/ 32427038/ 92424740; <umng,moecom/pk>
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S
REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF INDUS MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Indus Motor Company Limited (the Compary), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2022, and the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive incorme, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement
of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with
the accounting and reparting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the
Cormpanies Act, 2017 (¥IX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2023 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the
changes in eguity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As) as applicable in
Pakistan. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further describad in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan [the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

A, F_.FERGUSON & O0., Chartéred Accountands, o member firm of the PuwC nefisork

State Life Building No. 1-C, LI Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-7.9000, Pukiston

Tel: voo (21) 324266823-6/32420711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/ 32427958 /42424740, <unene pie.com/pks
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Following are the Key audit matters:

5. Mo. Key audit matters

i Revenue from contracts with customers

(refer notes 2721 and 27 to the annexed
financial statermnents)

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing
and sale of metor vehicles and related spare
parts. Revenue is  recognised when
performance obligation is satisfied by
transferring control of a promised good to a
customer. The Company recognised revenue
aggregating to Rs. 177.711 billion, net of taxes,
discounts and commissions, for the year ended
June 30, 2023,

We considered revenue as a key audit matter
due to the significant decrease in revenue as
compared to last year and revenue being one
of company's key performance indicator, In
addition, revenue was also considered as an
area of significant audit risk as part of the audit
process,

() Estimates involved in the provision for
warranty obligations

(refer note 21 to the annexed financial
staternents)

The Company narmally provides warranty on its
lecally manufactured wehicles to customers
and mizintains a provision in this respact, which
ameounts to Bs 2,182,635 million as at June 30,
2023, The management caries out a
semi-annual  exercise to assess the
regsonableness of the provision for warranty

We performed, amongst others, the following audit procedures:

We

A'F-FERGUSON&CO.

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Assessed the design, implementation and operating
effectivenass of the key intemal controls involved in
revenue recognition;

Understood and evaluated the accounting policy with
respect to revenue recognition;

Performed testing of revenue transactions on a sample
basis with underlying documentation including dispatch
documents and sales invoices;

Tested on a sample basis, specific revenue transactions
recorded before and after the reporting date with
underlying docurmentation to assess whether revenue was
recognised in the correct period;

Performed recalculation of discounts and commission as
per the Company’s policy on sample basis;

Performed audit procedures to analyze variation in the
price ard quantity sold during the year; and

Mssessed the adequacy of disclosures made in the
financial staterments related to revenue,

performed, amongst others, the following audit
procedures:

Obftained an understanding of the warmanty process,
evaluated the company'’s accounting policy and
assessed the design and operating effectiveness of
relevant internal controls;

obligations  retained in  the financial
statements.
A, F. FERGUSON & 0., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PurC network

State Life Building No. 1-C, I.I. Chundrigar Road, F.0. Box 4716, Karachi-7qo00, Pakistan
Tel; +u2 (21) 32420082-6/32420711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/ 32427938/ 32424740, <wuny . mec.com,/pk>
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How the matter was addressed
in our audit

5. No. Key audit matters

The management and the Board of Directors of -
the Comparny consider it as a2 significant
estimate and the provisioning methodology is
regularly reviewed by the Boards Audit
Committee. Management’s estimates consider
historical claims experience, including the
nature, frequency, severity and average costof  »
claims of each vehicle line or each madel year of
the vehicle line. In ascertaining the adeguacy of
the provision, the Board takes into account the
trend of regular warranty claims and anmy -
previous Incldents of recall.

Euvaluated the appropriateness of the Company's
methodology for calculating the charge of warranty
provisions for the year and tested the basis for the
assumptions ceveloped and used in the determinaticn of
the warranty provisions;

Aszessed the reasonableness of the assumptions used in
determination of the warranty provision and tested the
validity of the data used in the calculations; and

Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made by the
Compary in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework.

Due to the significance of the provision balance

and related significant estimation involved, we

considered it as a key audit matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does notinclude the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our cpinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do notexpress any form of assurance
conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statemenis, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financdial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or othervise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, wea conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. Ve have nathing to reportin
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Finandial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial staternents in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (40X of 2017)
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financal statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concem basis of account
ing unless managemeant either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process,
A, F. FERGUSON & CO,, Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the PwC netuwork

State Life Building No. 1-C, LI, Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 416, Karachi-7q000, Pokistan
Tel: +92 (21) 12926682-6/12426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 82415007/ 92427038/ 12424740; <wunp.puc.com/pk>

* KARACHI s LAHORE = ISLAMABAD

Annual Report 2023 | 141



pwc A'F-FERGUSON&CO.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

COur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a8 whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes cur opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs
as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered materal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascrably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professicnal judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
iz higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intertional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the overide of internal contral,

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s intemal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablensss of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

' Conclude on the appropriateness of managemant’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required o draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequatea, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit
avidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to confinue as a going concem,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underdying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant defidiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with 2 statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

A. F. FERGUSON & C0., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the Pudl netwiork
State Life Building No. 1-C, LI, Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-sgo00, Pakistan
Tel: g2 (21) 32426682-6/32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 324015007/ 32427038/ 92424740; <unvw . puoe.com/pk>
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Froxm the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the financial staternents of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
ratters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter orwhen, in extramely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
conseguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our cpinion;
(a]  properbocks of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (31X of 2017,

(B}  the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn
up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017] and are in agreement with the books of account and
returms;

(c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company’s business: and

(d)  zakatdeductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (X of 19800, was deducted by the compary
and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Junaid Mesia.

H-Ho\buuﬁ Sts

A.F. Ferguson & Co

Chartered Accountants
Karachi

Date: September 5, 2023
UDIN: ARZ02310611bvpIrvgByY

A, F. FERGUSON & CO,, Chartered Accountinits, o member firm of the PwC netuwork
State Life Building No. 1-C, LI Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-r4o00, Pakistan
Tel: «+G2 (31) 42426682-0/92426701-5; Fax: +02 (21) 32415007 2427038/ 12424 740; <l pue.com/pi s
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

ASSETS

MNon-Current Assets

Property, plant and equiprment
Intangible assets

Long-term loans and advances
Long-term deposits
Long-term Investments
Defarred taxation - net

Current Assets

Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade

Trade debts - unsacured
Loans and advances
Short-term prepayments
Accrued retum

Oither receivables
Short-term imvestments
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY

Share Capital
Authorised capital
500,000,000 (2022: 500,000,000 ordinary shares of Bs 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
Reserves

LIABILITIES

Mon-Current Liabilities
Long-term lozn
Daferred reveniue
Deferred taxation - net

Current Liabilities

Current portion of long-tarm loan

Current portion of deferrad revenus

Current portion of deferred Government grant
Current portion of Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Payable
Unclaimed dividend

Unpaid dividend

Trade and cther payables

Warranty obligations

Adhvances from customers and dealers
Taxation - net

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMEMNTS

The annexed notes 1to 48 form an integral part of these financial staterments.

ﬂm r{:} 5}‘:2;&“

Mohammad [badullah Al Arg
Chief Financial Cfficer 8
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ef Exacutive

Mote

ohn b b

10
1
12
13
14

12

16
17

20
21

23

26

2023

2022

—-—~{Rupees in '000}-——-

24,375,447 15,040,490
122,240 145,092
76,460 15,9583
10,020 10,020
= 7,794,310
= || 87863
24 584 152 23,833,764
643,248 513,440
28,733,380 26,454 435
856,064 3,090,713
14,968,126 9,218,637
B 510 49,611
285,108 341,768
2,188,943 2,737,584
44,148,185 140,632,118
_ 6,262,571 _B793,784
98,180,145 190,131,550
122 764,31 213,985,354
5,000,000 5,000,000
786,000 786,000
59283912 53225075
60,069,212 54,011,076
230 895 270 8748
2,500 959
311,303 =
553 698 280,837
35,983 315,955
&9 103
- 6,023
> 27,127
153,341 156,966
3,512,088 1,260,579
41,033,604 38,496,240
2,189 635 1,984 306
5,736,394 111,985,837
5,474,985 5,423,305
62,140,700 159,673,441
52,694,395 150,054 278
122,764,311 213,965,354

777

Shinji Yanagi

Vice Chalrman & Director

STATEMENT OF PROFIT ORLOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Reverue from contracts with customers
Cost of zales
Gross profit

Distribution expenses
Administrative expenses
Other operating expanses

Waorkers' Prafit Participation Fund and Workers' Welfare Fund
MNet profit from operations
Other incoma

Finance costs
Profit before taxation
Texabtion

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements,

jul

-

|
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N il
Mohammad lpadullah A :.ﬁ.jrghémaii
Chief Financial (flcer Crief Executive

Mote

27
28

29
30
31

32

33

34

35

36

2023 2022
-——-{Rupees in '000)--——
177,710,637 275,505,778

(169,779.467) _{257,101,257)
7,931,170 18,404, 481
{1,690,768)| (2,124,200)|
(2,281,220) (2,218,655)
(520,494)] (186,370]
(4,492 ,482) (4,529,235)
3,438,688 13,875,256
(B80,145) (1,244,062)
3 758 542 12,631,164
14,179,381 12,235,711
16,937,923 25,566 875
(140,725) (114,2049)
16,797 198 25,452,576
(7.132,769) (9,650,728)
664,429 15,801, B48
--—-———(Rupees}——————
122.96 201.04

shinji Yanagi
Viee Chalrman & Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive incorme:

ftemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain / (loss) on net defined benefit plan
Related deferred tax thereon

Total other comprehensive income / (loss) - net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial staterments.

-~

by
. Y :’/;
Mohammad lbadullah Ali Agghir Jamall
Chief Financial Gfficer Crief Executive
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Mote 2023 2022
—-—~{Rupees in '000}-——-
9,664,429 15,801,848
24.4 22848 (14,980)
(8,911} 4,943
13,937 (10,037)
8 &78,366 15,751,811
T
AR
Shinji Yanagi
ce Chairman & Directo

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash (utilised In) / generated from operations

et (increase) [ decrease in long-tenm loans and advances
Compensation paid on advances received from customers
Increase in deferred revenue

Payrnent to Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Payment to Workers' Welfare Fund

Interest paid on long-term loan

Income tax paid

MNet cash [outflow on) [ inflow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Procesads frorm disposal of property, plant and eguipment

Interest received on bank deposits and Term Depaosit Receipts

Gain on sale of Pakistan Investment Bonds

Interest recelved on Pakistan Investment Bonds

Proceeds from sale of / (investment ind Palkistan lmvestment Bonds - net
Proceeds from redemption of / [imvestrment in) listed mutual fund units - nat
Dividend income received from listed mutual fund units

Interest received on Market Treasury Bills

Proceeds from sale of / (investment in) Market Treasury Bills - net

Met cash inflow from / (outflow an} investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lang-term loan repaid

Dividend paid

MNet cash eutflow on financing activities

Met (decrease) [ increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexad notes 1to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements,
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Chief Financial Oifflcer Crief Executive

Mote

38

2023

2022

-——-{Rupees in '000)--——

(94,232,120 78,650,185 |
(80,477 574
(1,976,111 (1,208,657)
1,541 959
(B50,000) (1,350,000)
(509.052) {300.395)
(17,003) (18,477)
(5,950,828) (7, 440,087)
C103,5%4,050] B8, 234,433
(13,147.301) (2,527.583)
102,445 189,029
2,505,642 1,721,771
1,497,013 944,844
1,613,744 B9R, 720
4 210,880 (8.878,024)
1,616,438 [5,278,459)
2726869 709,574
- 3,572,485
37,084,191 (27,993,032)
37,708,931 [38,030,675)
(325,878)) {357,987
{1,380 566) (& Bas D25
{1,706,644) (9,284,012)
(67,590,763) 20,919,748
92,396,887 71,477,141
24 806,124 52,395 887

” Shinji Yanagi

Vice Chairman & Director
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Balance at July 1, 2021

Transfer to general reserve for the year ended

Jume 30, 20271 approorated subsequent o yvear end

Transactions with ocwners

Final cash dividend @ 365% for the year ended
Jume 30, 2021 (Rs 3.5 per ordinary sharel

15k interim dvidend @ 345% for the year ended
June 30, 2022 {R= 34,5 per ordirary sharel

2red Interirn dividend @ 300 for the year ended
Jupe 30, 2022 {Rs 30 per ordinary shane)

3red Ineerim dividend @ 260% for the vear erded
Jure 30, 2022 {R= 26 per ordinary shase}

Total transactions with awnerz

Profit after taxation for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprekensive income for the year
encen June 30, 2022

Balance at June 30, 2022

Transfer to general resene for the year ended

June 30, 2022 appropriated subsequeent toyear end

Transactions with owners

Final cash dividend & 32 5% for the year emded
Jume 30, 2022 {Rs 325 per ordinary shara)

15t Interdm dvidend @ B2% for the year ended
June 30, 2023 {Rs 8.2 ger ordinary shame)

2red Interirn dividend @& 102% for the year ended
Jume 30, 2023 (R 10.2 per ordinary shapne)

Ared Inteim dividend @ 244% for the vear ended
Jume 30, 2023 {Rs 244 per ordinary share)

Total transactions with owners
Prefit after taxation for the year
Cther comprehensive ‘noome for the year

Tota) comprekensive income for dhe year
encied June 30, 2023

Balance at June 30, 2023

Share Capital Reserves
lezued, Capital Revenue Total
subscribed Share General Unappro- Sub-Total
and paid-up premium  reserve Ppriated profit
(Rupees in ‘000)-=-—
786,000 196,500 39,451,050 FTETHIS 47415465 48,201,465
4,300,000 (4, 50,0000
B -] 12,808,5000 | [(2,868 3007 | | 12,868,500
(271,700 [2,711,703) (271,700
[2, 358 0000 [2.358.000] ) | (2,358,000
{2,043 6000 £2 043 600) | | [2.043,600)
[%, 982 2000 (9.0982.200) [9982200
T [ i58m6ds | [ 5800848 | | 15,601,845
J [10.037 (o037 7] (10,057
1701 EN I5FOLEM 5 7a AT
786,000 196,500 43 251 060 Q07T R2E 53,225.078 54,011,076
8,000,000 [8,000,000)
(255,450 [255 450} (255,4507
(5445200 [G44, 5201 ) (544, 520]
[&01,720) o 7en | e TR0
1,517,840 [1.977, 8407 | | (1.917.840]
(35195300 (3,515.530) (3,619,530
2664 422 5004423 0,654 422
13837 13,937 13,937
9575366 9678360 9578356
7B6.000 186,500 61,851.060 7135362 56733012  GOOGEIZ

Prosaosed firg! dividena and transfer betwesn reseres mage subseguent o the vear ended June 30, 2023 are disclosed In note 46 to these Francial stalements

The annexed notes * oo 48 form an integral part of these tinandal statements.

Xl

Mohammad loadullah

Chief Financial Gfficer
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

21

2.2

221

2.2.2

2.2.3

THE COMPANY AMND ITS OPERATIONS

Indus Motor Company Limited {the Company) was incorpaorated in Pakistan as a public company limited by shares in
December 1983 under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 [now, the Companies Act, 2017) and started
commercial production in May 1993 The shares of the Company a2re quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Company was formed in accordance with the terms of 2 loint Venture agreement concluded amongst cartain
House of Habib companies, Teyota Motor Corparation and Toyota Tsusho Corporation for the purposes of assembiling,
progressive manufacturing and marketing of Toyota vehicles. The Company also acts as the sole distributor of Toyota
and Daihatsu vehicles in Pakistan and has a license for assembling, progressive manufacturing and marketing of
Toyota vehicles in Paldistan,

The registered office and factory of the Company is situated at Plot Mo, WWZ/1/P-1, Port Qasim Industrial Estate, Bin
CQiasim, Karachi.

SUMMARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presentad,

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise disclosed in
respective accounting policy notes.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicablein Pakistan, The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards ([FRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (|ASE]
as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act); and

Prowisions of and directives issued under the Act.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2007 differ from the IFRS, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Act have been followed,

Change in accounting standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting
standards,

Amendments te published accounting and reporting standards which became effective during the year:

There are certain amendments to published accounting and reporting standards which became mandatory for the
Campany during the year, However, the amendments did not have any significant impact on the financial reporting of
the Company and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial statements.

Amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effective:

There are certain amendrments ta the zecounting and reporting standards that will be mandatory for the Company's
annual accounting pericds beginning on or after July 1, 2023. However, these amendments will not have any
significant impact on the financial reporting of the Company and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these financial
slatements,
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

23 Property, plant and equipment
231 Property, plant and equipment - Owned

These are stated at historical cost less accumulated depraciation / amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any, except capital work=in-progress which is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any:

Assets having cost exceeding the minimurn threshold as determined by the management are capitalised. All other
costs are charged to the staterment of profit or loss in the year inwhich such costs are incurred,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, onky
when it is probable that fulure economic benafiis associated with the Bemowill flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

All repairs and maintenance are charged to the staterment of profit or loss during the financial period in which such
costs are incurred. Major renewals and improvements, if any, are capitalised in accordance with |45 16 'Property, Plant
and Equipment’ and depreciated in a manner that best represents the consumption pattern,

Disposal of assets is recognised when significant risk and rewards incidental to ownership have been transfemred to
buyer. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceads with the carrying amount and are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the year.

Depreciation s charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the straight line method, whereby the depreciable
armount of an asset is written off over its estimated useful life. The cost of leasehold land is amertised equally over the
lzase period. Depreciation is charged on additiens from the month the asset is available for use and on disposals up
to the month preceding the month of disposal. The rates of depreciation are stated in note 4.2 to these financial
statements.

The assets' residual values, useful lves and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, ateach
reparting date.

Gains and losses on disposal or retirement of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the staterment of profit
or loss,

Capital work-in-pregress

All expenditures connected with specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are camied under
capital work-in-progress, These are transferred to relevant operating assets category as and when assets are available
for use.

2.3.2 Intangible assets - Computer Softwares

Computer softwares licenses acquired by the Company are stated at cost less accumulated amortizsation. Software's
costs are anly capitalised when itis probable that future econamic benefits attributable to the softwvares will flow to the
Company and the amortisation is chargad to the statement of profit or loss applying the straight line method at the
rates stated in note 4.2 to thasa financial statameants. None of the intangible assets of the Company are intemally
generated.

24 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Comparny assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that all non-financial assets may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are
recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts and where the camying values exceed the estimated recoverable
arnourt, the assets or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable amounts and the differences are
recagnised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

25

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.8

Stores and spares

Stores and spares, except in transit are valued at cost, determined on a moving average basis. Ageing and value of
items of stores and spares are reviewed at each reporting date to record provision for any slow maving, damaged and
cbsolete items. Provision made for any slow moving, damaged and obsclete items is charged to statement of profitor
loss. lterns in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice values plus other charges incurred thareon,

Met realisable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to be incurred for its sale.,

Stock=in-trade

Stoclk-in-trade, except in transit, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Stock in transit are valued at
cost as accumulated upts the reporting date, comprising invaloe values plus other charges incurred therean,

Cost of raw rmatedals, own manufaciured vehicles and trading stock is determined on a rmoving average basis, Cost of
wiork-in-process is valued at materal cost

Provision for obsolete and slow moving stock-in-trade is determined based on the managements assessment
regarding their future usability.

Met realisable value signifies the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of
completicn and the estimated costs necessary to be incurred for its sale.

Borrowings and their cost

Borrowings are recognised initally at fair value, net of transaction cost incurred

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred except where such costs are
directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of a gualifying asset in which case such costs are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets

a) Amortised cost

A financial asset is rmeasured at ameortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

2] thefinancial assetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

b} the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest an the princioel amount autstanding

b] Fairvalue through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions
are mat:

a) thefinancial asset is held within 2 business maodel whaose albjective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

b thecontractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest an the principal amount cutstanding.
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

c) Fairvalue through profit or loss

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss if it s not measured at amortised cost or at fair
value threugh sther comprehensive income

All financial assets are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the Instrument, Financial assets at amortised cost are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and
are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced
by impairment losses, if any, Interest income and impairment losses are recognised in the staternent of profit or
loss, Financial assets carried at PVOCI are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at fair value, with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive incomea, Financial assats cartiad at PYPL are Initally recoanised at fair valuz and transaction costs
are expensed in the statement of profit or loss. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair value of the financial assets and liakilities held at FYPL are included in the staternent of profit or loss and
in the period in which they arise,

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been
transfarred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. On
derecognition of a financial asset, in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 2nd the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

2811 Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward locking basis the expected credit losses (ECL) associated with its financial assets
carried at amaortised cost and fair value through other comprehensive income, The impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk, The Company applies the simplified approach
to recognise lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables while general 3-stage approach for long term loans,
depaosits, other receivables, bank balances, etc ie to measure ECL through loss allowance at an amount equal o
12-month ECL if credit risk on a financial instrument or a group of financial instruments has not increased significantly
since initial recognition. The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payrments are 55 days
past due for parts and T-Sure sold to dealers and 145 to 190 days past due for parts and vehicles sold to government
organisations and it is subsequently written off when thers is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flovws. The definition is based on the Company's intermal credit risk management policy.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before June 30, 2023
respectively and the cormesponding historical cradit losses experienced within this period, The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-locking Information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to sattle the receivables. The Company has identified the GDP. CPI and the unernployment rate of the
countries in which it sells its goods to be the most relevant factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates
based on expected changes in these factors.

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
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29

2.10

M

212

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the staterent of financial position when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle either on a net basis,
or realize the asset and settle the lability simultanecusly.

Loans, advances and deposits

These are stated at cost less estimates made for any doubtful receivables based an a review of all cutstanding
amounts at the reporting date. Balances considered doubtful and irrecoverable are written off when identified.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised Initially at the armount of consideration that is unconditional, unless
they contain significant financing component inwhich case such are recognised at fair value. The Company holds the
trade debts with the objective of collecing the comiraciual cash flows and therafore measures the rade debls
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, Impairment of trade debts and other receivables
is described in note 2.8.1,1.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company designates dervative financial instruments as either fair value hedge or cash flow hedge.

Fair value hedge

Fair value hedge represents hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment. Changes
in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the statement of
profit or loss, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or lability that are attributable to the
hedged risk. The camying value of the hedged item is adjusted accorclingly.

Cash flow hedge

Changes in falr value of derivative hedging Instruments designated as a cash flow hedge are recognised In the
statement of comprehensive income to the extent that the hedge is effective. To the extant the hedge is inaffective,

changes in fair value are recognisad in the statement of profit or loss

Armounts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss in the periods inwhich the hedged
itermn will affect the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises of current and deferred tax, Tax is recognisad in the statement of profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in OC! or directly in equity. In which case, the tax is also

282 Financial Liabilities recognised in OC| or directly in equity.

All financial fabilities are recognised at the time when the Company bacomes a pary to the contractual provisions of Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
the instrument. Financial lizbllities at amortised cost are initially measured at fair value minus transaction costs. regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probakble that a taxation authority will accept an
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are uncertaln tax treatment. The Company measures its tax balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expensed in the statement of profit or loss. expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
Financial iabilities, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at amortised cost - Current
Lising the effective yield method,

Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income for the yvear calculated on the basis of the tax laws
A fimancial Hability is derecognised when the cbligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expired, Where enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, taxes paid under the final tax regime and any adjustment
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms to tax payable in respect of previous wears.
of an existing liakility are substantially modified, such an exchange and modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts Is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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-  Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method, providing for all termporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reperting purposes and the armounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are axpected to be applied to the temporary
differences when they reverse; based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively epacted by the
reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against ywhich temporary difference can be utllised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

213  Cashand cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost, Cash and cash eauivalants in the statement of cash flows include cash
in hand and in transit, cheques in hand, balances with banks on current, deposit and savings accounts, other
short-term highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

214  Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
affective interest method
These are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer], If not, they are prasented as non-current lizbility,
Exchange gains and losses arising in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the camrying amount of the
respective liabilities,

215  Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the shligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate.

216  Wamranty cbligations
The Company recognises the estimated liability, on an accrual basis, to repair or replace products under warranty at
the reporting date, and recognises the estimated product warranty costs in the staternent of profit or loss when the
sale is recognised.

217  Staffretirement benefits
Short term abligation
Liabilities forwages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve
rmonths afier the end of the pericd in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of
employess’ servicas up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the lizbilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations In the statement of
financial position,
Defined contribution plan - Provident Fund
The Company operates a recognised provident fund for its permanient employees. cqual monthly contributions are
rmade to the Fund by the Company and the employess in accordance with the rules of the Fund. The Compary has no
further payment chligation once the contibutions have been pald. The contributicns made by the Company are
recognised as an employee benefit expense when they are due,
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2.18

2,19

Defined benefit / contribution plan - Pension Fund
The Company also operates an approved funded pension scheme for its permanent employees,

The employee pension is governed by two sets of Rules, Mew Rules' - Defined contribution plan and '"Old Rules' -
Defined benefit plan, The Mew Rules are applicable to all members of the Pund with effect from July 1, 2008, Howeyer,
the Old Rules cantinue to apply to all persons wihose employment with the Company ceased before July 1, 2008 and
who are entitled to pensicon from the Fund. In addition, the Old Rules also apply to existing employees who have not
opted to be governed by the New Rules,

In acoordance with the Mew Rules an actuarial balance was datermined by the actuary as at June 30, 2008 in respect
of all members of the Fund who were in the service of the Company as of that date and opted t© be governed by the
Mew Rules which was credited to the members’ individual accounts. With effect from July 2008, the Company is
reguired to make a fied menthly contribution ta the Fund based on the basic salary of the ernployees which s credited
Into the individual account of each member. The Company has no further payment obligation once these manthly
coniributions have been paid to the Fund. Profit eamed on the investments maintzined by the Fund is alsc allocated
into the individual account of each member,

The pension lability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of members governed by the Old Rules
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the statement of financial position date less the fair value of
plan assets attributed to these members. Contributions are made to cover the pension obligations in respect of the
members gaverned by the Cld Rules on the basis of actuarial recommendations.

The amount arising as a result of remeasuremnent is recognised in the staterment of financial position immediately, with
a charge or credit o other comprehensive income in the period inwhich $ey occur,

The Projected Unit Credit Methad i5 used for the valuation of pension lability In respect of members governed by the
Old Rules as at June 30, 2023, using significant assumptions as stated in note 24 to these financial statements.

Employees’ compensated absences

The Company accounts for compensated absences on the basis of unavailed eamed leave balance of each employes
at the end of the year.

Prawisions are made to cover the obligations under the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation and are charged to
statement of profit or loss. The most recent valustion was carried out as at Jure 30, 2023, using the Project Unit Credit
Method.

Lease liabilities and right-of-use assets

The lease liabilities are initizlly measured at the present value of the remaining lease payrments at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, ar if that rate cannot be readily determined, the
Company's incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments and variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, Tha
extension and termination options are incorporated in determination of lease term only when the Company is
reasonably certain to exerdise these options,

The lease liabilities are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. These are
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payrments arsing from a change in fixed lease payments or an index
or rate or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extansion or termination
option, The corresponding adjustrmeant is made to the carrying armount of the respeactive right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in the statement of profit or loss If the carrying amount of that right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero,

Right-cf-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liabilities adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any Initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to
disrmantle and remaove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which itis located, less any
lease incentive received. The rght-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line mathod over the lease tarm as this
method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The carrying amount
af the right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasuramants of the
corresponding lease liakbility,
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The Company has elected to apply the practical expedient for not recognising right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for short term eases that have 3 lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets, The lease payments
associated with these leases is recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the laase term.

2.20 Dividend distribution and transfer between reserves
Dividend declared and appropriations to reserves made subsequent to the reporting date are considersd
non-adjusting events and are recognised in the finandal statements in the year in which they are approved,

2.1 Revenue from contracts with customers and other income
Ravenue s recognised when {or a3 the Company satisfies a perfarmance obligation by transfering 2 promised good
or service to a customer, and contrel either transfers over time or at a point of time. An asset is ransferred when (or as)
the customer obtains control of that asset and thus has the ahility to direct the use and obtain the benefits from the
good or service,
In case of vehicles and spare parts, revenuea is recognised when goods are dispatched and invoiced to the customers,
Revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract, agjusted for variable consigeration such as
discount, if any. In most cases, the consideration is received before the goods are dispatched [/ invoiced, Deferred
payment terms may also be agreed in case of sales (o cartain categories of customers. Transaction price is adjustad far
time value of money in case of significant financing component.
Arnount received on account of sale of extended warranty Is recognised initially as deferred revenue and is credited to
the staternent of profit or loss in the relevant period covered by the warranty.
Return on bank geposits, term deposit receipts and mark-up on advances to supptiers and contractors are accounted
for on an accrual basis,
Agency commission is recognised when shiprments are made by the principal.
Unrealised gains / losses arising an re-measurement of investments classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss’ are included in the statement of profit or loss in the pericd in which these arise.
Income on Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) and Market Treasury Bills is accrued using the effective interest rate
method.

2,22  Foreign currency transactions and translation
Foreign currency transactions are recognised or accounted for in Pakistani Rupees using the exchange rate prevailing
on tha date of the transaction. Monetany assets and labilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position's date. Exchange gain / loss on foreign
currency translations are taken to statement of profit or loss along with any related hedge effects.

2.23  Functional and presentation currency
Iterns includad in the financial staterments are measured using the currency of the primary aconamic envirenmant in
which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented In Pakistanl Rupees, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

2.24  Segment reporting
The Company uses management approach’for segment reporting, under which segment information s required to be
presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes, Operating segments have been determined
and presented in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(CODM].

225 Deferred revenue
Arnaunt recaived on account of sale of extended warranty serviess against vehicles is recognized initially as deferrad
reveniue and credited to the statement of profit or loss in the relevant period covered by the warranty.
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2.27

2.28

Government grants

Grants are not recognized until there is a reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions
altaching to them and that the grant will be received,

The benefit of a long-term finance at a below-market rate of intarest is treated as a deferred grant, measured as the
difference between proceeds received and the fairvalue of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates,

Grants related to long-term loan finances are recognized in the statement of profit or loss an & systermatic basis over
the periods in which the company recognizes as finance cost related to long-term finances at market rate of interest.

Contract asset and contract liability

A eontract asset Is recognised for the Company's right te consideration in exchange for goods or services that it has
transferred to a customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, the Company presents the amount as a comrac: asse.,
excluding any amounts presented as a recsivable,

A contract liability is recognised for the Company's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has recelved consideration {or an amount of considerstion Is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration, or the Company has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e. a recewable),
before the Company transfers a good or service to the customer, the entity shall present the contract as a contract
liability when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).

Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is disclosed when:

there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
accumence ar non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whaolly within the control of the
Company; or

- thers |s present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources
ermbodying economic benefits will be reguired to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability,

SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable
irn Pakistan requires the use of certain significant accounting estimates. It also reguires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience, and ather factors, including expectation of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the pericd in
which estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. In the process of applying the Company's accounting
policies, the management has made the fellowing estimates and judgements which are significant to these financial
staternents:

i} Usefullives of property, plant and equipment and intangibles (notes 2.3.1, 2.3.2 and 4)
The Company reviews the useful ives of fixed assets on a regular basis, Any change in ectirnates in future years
might affect the carrying amounts of respective items of cperating fixed assets with a corresponding effect on the
depreciation charge and impairment.

ii} Provision for slow moving stores and spares (notes 2.5 and 7)

The Company exercises judgement and makes provision for slow maoving stores and spares based on their future
usability.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Note 2023 2022 MNote 2023 2022
——=—(Rupees in '000)}——- ———{Rupees in'000)—-—-
4.6 Capital work=in-progress 7 STORES AND SPARES
Civil works 1,653,234 251,780 Stores 570,317 421,186
Plant, rrachinery, jigs, moulds and related machinery 3843104 2,200,375 Spares 867,812 804,824
Computer and related accessories 113.057 2,200 |, 438129 |, 226.010
5,608,395 2,454 355 Lass: Provision for stow moving stores and sparas 7 794 881 712,570
643,248 513,440
4.7 Movement in capital work-in-progress
71 Provision for slow moving stores and spares
Opening balance 2,454 355 1,116,205
Additions during the year 12,683,498 2,342,739 Cpening balance T12,570 556,386
Transferred to operating fixed assets (5.528,458) (1,004, 585) Charge for the year 28 82,31 56,184
Closing balance 5,609,395 2,454 358 Closing balance Ta4 851 Ti12.570
5 LONG-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 8 STOCK-IN-TRADE
Considered good In hand
Loans ko employees - secured Manufacturing stock
- Exzcutives 51 82,484 32,215 Raw material and components 2 651,019 10,476 157
- Employees 51 43,746 14,734 Less: Pravisicn for slow maoving stock=in-trade 8.4 201,085 ___6B9i8
126,230 46,949 8.1 5,475,924 10,407,279
Less: R ble withi ; sh
et Work-in-process 1,140,165 2,074,897
. Finished goods (vehicles - awn manufactured) 8.2 G 528,626 73,359
Loans due from - secured S — S —— Less: Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade 84 9,291 1,405
- Executives 10 29690 ‘ 16,907 9,513,535 71954
- Emiployees 10 20,080 14,059 Trading stock
49710 20,466 Vehicles 8.2 704,292 990,126
76,460 15,983 - , o .
Less: Provision for slow maving stock-in-trade 84 70 BES 19 954
T . : ; 633,406 570,162
5.1 These regresent house building and persanal loans granted to executives and other employees. These are granted in
accordance with_t;he terrms of rlhe_ir emp’f.-:;yr_nehL and are semre-::? a:_g;ainst their balances with f_hel F'.ru-.fiden't l_:und The Spare parts 813 Tos7 a1 [ 541,082
loans are repayable over a period of 12 to 60 months. House building l-::uau"!i to empla}-e?; CE.IF‘F_',-' interest at the rate of Special service tools and publications 4167 8,600
3.50%(2022: 3.50%) per annum. Management and non-management employees are entitied to personal loans which Less: Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade 8.4 173,084 | | 153,952
carry no interest as per the approved loan policy. 8'3?4?5’ o ?95?39
In transit
2023 2022 Raw material - manufacturing stock 6,790,571 11,245,304
o Trading stock 282314 883,100
6 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS (Rupees In'000)— 7,072,885 12,134,404
28,733,390 26,454,435
Deposits
- Uitilities 7,450 7,450 81 This representis the net amount of raw material and components after recording write offs amounting to Bs 21.440
Others 2,370 2,570 milion (2022: Rs 35,687 million).
10,020 10,020
8.2 These include vehicles amounting to Bs 2,010,458 millicn (2022: Bs 169.879 million) held with the Cormpany's autho
rised dealers.
8.3 This ingludes an amount of Rs 15436 million (2022 Rs 2.617 million) reprasenting stoclk-in-trade of motor oil,
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023
Mote 2023 2022
~—=—(Rupees in '000)———-
8.4 Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade 10.2 These represent advances paid to the Collector of Customs in respect of the imports of stock-in-trade. The entire
amount of Rs 700.595 milion (2022: Rs 818680 million) was sulbseguently adjusted in respect of imported goods
Opening balance 244 239 228108 received
Charge for the year - net 28 21.m7 16,13
Closing balance 455,256 244 730 10.2 These represent cash held with various banks against letters of credit for import of items of stock-in-trade. &n amount
of Rs 7,766,354 million (2022; Rs 4,304,120 million) was subseguently settled on receipt of invoices and documents
9 TRADE DEBTS - Unsecured relating to the imported goods at the end of the year. This includes an amount of Rs 11.8599.070 million {2022: Rs
314.261 million] held with Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - a related party, at the end of the year,
Considered good
- Government organisations 453,453 2,610,331
Others 422 611 450,352 Note 2023 2022
886,064 3,080,713 ~-——(Rupees in '000)—-——-
Considered doubtful 22,478 579 n SHORT-TERM EREPAYMENTS
908,542 3,091,292
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses Q2 (22,478] (5749) Rieat ; 1.’341 Rl
HBE 064 3090 713 Insurance 1.1 26,362 3,043
' ot Others 35,807 44 096
64 510 48 511
9.1 These balances relate 1o various customers, primarily governmen: organisations, for whom there is no recent history of
default, The ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows: 1.1 Thiz includes an amount of Rs 6.082 million (2022: Rs 3.043 million) paid to Habib Insurance Company Limited - a
Note 2023 2022 Teitec PR
--——(Rupeesin '000)——- MNote 2023 2022
Mot yet due 886,064 2,355,075 12 ACCRUED RETURN ———(Rupees in'000)—-
1 j 49
11'15::2 mn;-cr::;:; 1_6 633523 Accrued return on Pakistan Investment Bonds, .
Morsthain & st 37 460 37 675 Terrn Deposit Receipts and Bank Deposits 12.1 285,108 341,268
808,542 3,081,292 . . - . e . -
121 This includes an amount of Rs 0.440 million (2022: Rs 14688 million) recafvable from Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited -
9.2 Movement of allowance for expected credit losses a related party.
Opanig beigrios =7 13 OTHER RECEIVABLES et e e
Charge for the year 3 47,020 579 ~—-—(Rupees in"000)——-
Less: Write-off during the year 25,121 - \
Closing balance 22,475 579 Considered good
Warranty claims and other receivables due from a related
10 LOANS AND ADVAMNCES
party - Toyota Tsusho Corporation 131 195,713 17,442
Current portion of long-term loans and advances considered good Agency commission - recelvable from  related party - Toyota
Tsusho Aziza Pacific PTE, Limited 13.2 20,610 125,151
: g Warranty claims due from local vendors 25,456 27841
L?_dnsh dI'.JE ) - seureq - Earnest money 20,200 26,000
- Executives 5 29,890 16,907 3 o
- Employees 5 30080 14 059 Insurance claims receivable 13.3%13.4 55,630 54,151
: dql??[} 3[}'%5 Workers' Profit Participation Fund 13.5 1,778,973 1,266,319
Advances - considered good SaLe; tax - net . . . 563,379
: : o TA L Recelvable against sale of operating fixed assets 18,464 25,046
- Suppllers and contractars - unsecured 223198 254,753 : ; 2 :
LT : 101 Receivable from Pension Fund - Defined Benefit Scheme 242 4,609 -
- Suppliers - secured N 1,684,734 Recaivabl e h
- Employees - unsecured 11,181 15,502 Sbinkit “?E’.'"ffrl el Sl 457 140
- Collector of Customs - secured 10.2 700,595 860,375 Pkt e s aa i
Margins held with banks agains: imperts - secured 10.3 12,298,648 8,057,041 e et R
_ 14,518,356 3,187,671 — —
14,968,126 0,218,637
10.1 These represent interest free short-term advances provided to various suppliers against purchase of raw materials. The
repayrment of these advances are adjusted from the payments made by the Company against involces raised by the
suppliers in accordance with the terms and conditions of the advance.
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13.1 The maximum aggregate amount due at the end of any month during the year was Bs 198944 million (2022: Rs 117.442
millicn].
13.2 The maximum aggregate amount due at the end of any month during the year was Rs 130,481 million (2022: R5 173,103
miilic).
13.3 The maximum aggregate amount due at the end of any month during the year was Rs 145,062 million [2022;
Rs 237.632 million).
13.4 This includes an amount of Rs 55.595 millicn (2022 Rs 684181 million] receivable from Habib Insurance Company
Limnited - a related party.
Mote 2023 2022
———(Rupees in '000}——-
13.5 Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Opening batance 1,266,319 &40 971
Allocation for the year 32 _ [337.348) [724,652)
928,973 [83,681)
Amount paid during the vear 850,000 1,350,000
Closing balance 1,778,973 1,266,319
14 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
At amortised cost
Governmeant securities
- Pakistan Imvestment Bonds [PiBs]) 141 7.794 310 410,689
Term Deposit Receipts (TORS) - 50,800,000
At fair value through profit or loss
Government securities
- Market Treasury Bills (T-Bills) 142 16,601,975 65,873,169
Listed Mutual Furnd Units 143 17,551,504 19,048,080
44 145 189 140,932,118
14.1 These securities have varying maturities ranging from August 26, 2023 to December 30, 2023, The yield on these
securities ranges from 21.982% to 21.984% (2022 13.19% to 15.12%) per annum. These securities were previously
classified as long-term investments as at June 30, 2022,
14.2 These securities have varying maturities ranging from July 13, 2023 to September 21, 2023, The yvield on these
securities ranges between 21.95% to 21.99% per annum (2022: 11.80% to 15.20% per 2nnum).
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14.3

15

1541

15.2

Irvestrnents - Fair values through profit or loss

Mame of the Investee Mumber of Fair value as
units as at at June 30,
June 30, 2023
2023 {Rupees in '000)
ABL Cash Fund 98,031,545 1,002,735
ABL Islarmic Cash Fund 50,000,000 500,000
Al Habib 1slamic Cash Fund 10,022 711 1,002,271
Alfalah GHP Money Market Fund 20,318,985 2,004,702
Atlas Money Marlet Fund 1,965,045 1,001,273
Faysal Financial Sector Opportunity Fund 9,702,144 1,002,329
HBL Cash Funa 2 860,037 1,003,531
Lakson Money Market Fund 9,796,833 1,003,478
MCE Alhamra Islamic Money Market Fund 20,131,021 20037238
Meezan Rozana Amdani Fund 40,035,781 2,001,789
MBP Financial Sector Income Fund 182,433,405 2,013,128
MBP Money Marlket Fund 100,635,673 1,004,354
MIT Morey Market Fund 103,616,632 1,006,357
UBL Al Ameen Islamic Cash Fund 10,026,786 1,002,673
673,584,558 - 17,551,204
Mote 2023 2022
CASH AND BANK BALANCES ——(Rupees in"000)—
Cash in hand 8738 £,935
Balances hald with banks in local currenicy:
- current accounts 1,012 3,258
- savings accounts 15.2 A, 251,520 6,783,591
151 6,252,832 6,786,849
6,262 571 6,753,784

These include an amount of s 2,564,664 million (2022: Rs 1,026.079 millicn), held with Habib Metropalitan Bank
Limited - a related party

These carry profit at rates ranging from 10% to 20.5% (2022; 6.84% to 17.15%) per annumm.
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16

16.1

17

17.1

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2023 2022 2023 2022
(Mumber of shares) —-—({Rupees in '000)---—-

Orddinary shares of Rs 10 2ach

78,600,000 76,600,000 fully paid in cash 786,000 786,000

Ordinary shares of the Company held by related parties as at the year end are as follows:

Percentage of 2023 2022
shareholding —--{Number of shares)-—-
(%)
Toyota Motor Corporation 25.0% 19,650,000 19,650,000
Toyota Tsusho Corporation 12.5% 9 825,000 9,825,000
Cnerseas Pakistan Investors AG Lid, 34.8% 27,382,730 27,382,730
Thal Limited 0.2% 4,890,000 4, 890,000
Habib Insurance Comparny Limited 0.031% 24,015 24,015
Mote 2023 2022
RESERVES T {Rupees in "'000)—--
Capital reserve
- Share pramium 171 196,500 196,500
Ravenuea resasrves
General reserve i
- Balance brought forward 43,931,050 39 451,050
- Transferred from unappropriated profit | 8,000,000 | | 4,500,000
51,851,050 43 851,050
Unappropriated profit 7,136,362 8,077,526
59,283,912  53,225078

This reserve can be utilised by the Comparny only for the purposes specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.
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1841

18.2

19

Mote 2023 2022

LONG-TERM LOAN —-——(Rupees in'000)—-—-

Loan under financing schemes;

- Refinance scheme for renawable energy 18.1 279,878 320856

- Refinance scheme for payment of wages
and salaries to employess ) - 269,377
279878 550,833

Less: Current Portion

- Refinance scheme for renewable energy [39.983) (42975
- Refinance scheme for payment of wages and salaries

to employess (268977

(32,983) (319,955]

239,895 279,878

This represents loan obtained under the SBP financing scheme for investment in Plant and Machinery for renewable
enargy projects. At the year end, the Company had repaid amount of Bs 49578 million. The financing already made
carries mark-up at the rate of 3.25% - 4. 25% per annurm and is secured by way of hyvpothecation charge over plant and
machinery (note 4) against which the facility is available. The loan is repayable on a guarterly basis in 40 egual install-
ments and the first repayment was made on September 12, 2020

Mote 2023 2022
———(Rupees in '000)—-—-
Following is the movement in long term financing:

Cpening balance 605,856 1,003,843
Repayments [325,978) (337.987)
Closing balance 279,873 605,856
Less: Deferred Government Grant - 6,023

279878 599,833

DEFERRED TAXATION - net

Deferred tax liability arising on taxable temporary differences:
- Due to accelerated tax depreciation (B06,536) (245,356]

- In respect of unrealised gain on mutual funds (3,075) (6,256)
Deferred tax asset arising on deductible temporary differences:
- In respect of provisions for slow moving stock-in-trade, stores
and spares and other provisions 458,308 1,073,481
Deferred tax (liability) f asset - net (311,203 827,869
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2041

20.2

20.3

20.4

21

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Tracle creditors

- Assoriated undertakings / related parties

- QOthers

Bills pavakle to related parties

Bills payable to others

Arccruad liabilities

Rovalty payvable to associated undertakings
[ related parties

Deposits from dealars

Deposits from vendars

Custom duty payable

Retention money

Warkers" Welfare Fund

Technical fea

Payvabile to dealers

Payable to custorners

Compensation on advances received from customers
Payable to Pension Fund - Defined Benefit Scheme

Mark-up payable on long-term loan
Sales tax —net

Withholding income tax payable
FED payable on vehicle sales

Other government levies payable

This represents amounts payable to the following related parties:

Toyota Tsusho Asla Pacic PTE. Limitea
Toyota Motor Asia Pacific PTE. Limited
Towota Tsusho Corporation

Toyota Tsusho (Thaitand) Co. Lta

These include an amount of Rs 281,019 million (2022: Rs 757.406 million] payable to the related parties.

These reprasent interest free deposits recelved from dealers in accordance with the terms of the dealership agreements.

MNote

201

20,2

20.3

204
242

2023

2022

———(Rupees in '000)——-

2,947,607 714,598
8,213,161 7,664,776
5,716,819 1,097,720

- 92,286
10,378,589 7,873,733
3,762,369 1,049 907
404,550 406,550
53,21 52,611
953,756 913,847
103,254 63,114
£7M,830 738,082
20,420 20,490
2,526,739 2,765,219
235,744 139,868
1,921,654 1,672,444
- 14,458
951 4,975
1,429,181 i
318,023 411,599
562,300 1,795,170
f93,366 f04,803
41,033,604 38,496,240
5,704,204 10,855,602
662 11,300
10,315 230,124
1,638 694
5,716,819 11,097,720

These deposits have been utilised for the purpose of the Company's business, based on agreement with dealers.

This represents compensation payable to customers on advances received from them in respect of manufactured

vehicles on delayed delivery over two months, subject to certain conditions.

WARRANTY OBLIGATIOMS

Warranty obligations
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22

23

24

24

Maote 2023 2022

Movement of warranty obligations ——-(Rupees in '000)——-

Cpening balance 1,984,306 1,658,657
Charge for the year 29 33685 528131
2,321,163 2,186,788
Utilisation during the year (131,528) (202,482)
Closing balance 2,180 635 1,984,306

ADVAMNCES FROM CUSTOMERS AND DEALERS - unsecured

These represent aavances received by the Company from custormners and dealers in respect of sale of vehicles & parts
recorded inclusive of sales tax, other duties and withholding tax. Out of the opening advances amounting to
Rs 111,289,837 million as at June 30, 2022, an amount of Rs 102,092,394 million has been recognised as revenue during
the current year.

TAXATION - net

The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised by the Income Tax Depariment or deemed to be
assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Crdinance, 2001 up to the year ended June 30, 2021 (e TY 2021).

DEFINED BEMEFIT PLAN - Approved Pension Fund

Az mentioned in note 2,17, the Company cperates an approved pension fund for its permanent employees who are
governad under the Old Rules. The latest actuarial valuation of the Comparny's pensian fund, based an Projected Unit
Credit Actuarial Cost Method, 'was camied out as at June 30, 2023 The pension fund exposes the Company to the
following risks:

Mortality risks

The risk that the actual mortality rates are different. The effect depends on the beneficiaries’ service / age distribution
and the benefit,

Investment risks

The risk of the investmens underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilites.

Final salary risks

The risk that the final salares atthe time of cessation of service are greater than what was assumed, Since the benefit is
calculated on the basis of final salary of an employee, the amount of the benefit increases with any increase in the final

salary,

Withdrawal risks

The risk of higher or lower withdrawals than assumed. The final effect could go either way depending on the beneficia-
ries’ service / age distribution and the benefits payable,

The Company has recognised the following amounts in these financial statements for its cbligations towards the
raspective merm bers,

2023 2022
Principal actuarial assumptions ===={% per annum})-—-—
Discount factor used 16.25 1375
Expected rate of salary increaze 15.25 12.75
Expected rate of returm on plan assets 18.25 13.75
Expected rate of increase in long-term pensicn 6.75 6,75
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Mote 2023 2022
———(Rupees in '000)——-
24.2 The amounts recognised inthe statement of
financial position are determined as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation 24.4 10,364 27,628
Fairvalue of plan assets 2438244 (14,973) {13,130)
(4,609) 14,458
24.3 Plan assets consist of the following:
2022
Cuated Mon-Quated Quoted Men-Quoted
Rupees "000
Balances with banks 1.860 557
EQuity instrumenis 3093 2937
Debt instrurents - Government 10,260 3845
Others (240) (209}
3,093 11,880 2937 10,183
24.4 The movement in the net defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows: 2023
Present value
of defined Fair value of Total
benefit plan assets
obligation
—————— (Rupees in "'000)-—-————-
At July 1 27,628 (13130) 14,458
Current service cost 1,305 1,305
Interast expense / (income) 3,867 1,983) 1,884
32,800 (15,113) 17,687
Rerneasurameants:
- Galn on plan assets, excluding amounts ]
included in interest expense ‘ - | ‘ [964d] ‘ ‘ I'964]|
- Gain from change in financial assumptions __(21,884) . - L__(21884)
[21,884) [954d)] [22,848)
10,916 [16,077) (5.161)
Contribution - 552 552
Benefit payments [552) 552 -
At June 30 10,364 (14,973) (4,609)
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24.5

24.7

248

2022
Present value
of defined Fair value of Total
benefit plan assats
abligation
R {Rupees in ‘000)-—-—-—— -—
At July 1 29,721 (52,042) (32,321)
Current service cost 1,436 - 1,438
Interest expense / (income) 3104 (5259) _ (3,55)
34,261 (68,301) (34,040)
Remeasurements:
Loss on plan assets, excluding amaounts
included in interest expense - 21,061 21,0a1
Gain from change in financial assumptions (6,081} - (6,081
__ 608y 21061 14,980
28,180 (47.240) {19,080)
Contribution - 33,558 33,558
Bensfit payments {552} 552 -
At June 30 27,628 (13,130) 14,493
Mote 2023 2022
-—-—-{Rupeesin '000)-—-—
Charge for defined benefit plan recognised in the
statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 1,305 1,438
[+=t interest (income) [ expense 1,884 (3,155)
3,189 (1,71%)

The sensitivities of the net defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions are as under:

Amount of net defined benefit
abligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption

--—--(Rupees in '000)——-—

Mscount rata 1% 9,433 1,402
Long term salary increases 1% 10,616 10,082
Pension incease rate 1% 11,142 9636

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumpticns constant.
When calculating the sensitivity of the net defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same
method (present value of the defined benefit obligation caleculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of
the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the pension liability recognised within the staternent of
financial position,

The weighted average duration of the net defined benefit abligation is 9 years [2022: 15.27 years).

expected maturity analysis of undiscounted net defined benefit obligation for the pension fund is as follows:
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At June 30, 2023

Less than Between Between Overd
__ayear 1-2 years 2-4 years years

Y T~ T

Pension 283 598 1,312 12,066 14,25%

24.10

24.M

2412

25

26

26.1

Theexpected return on plan assets is aetermined by considerng the expected lona-term returms available on the assets
underlying the current investment policy. Expected yield on fiked interest investments are based on gross redemption
vield as at the statement of financial position date. Expected retums on equity are based on long-term real rates
experignced in the stock market.

The expectad charge for the defined benefit plan for the year ending June 30, 2024 is Rs 0.480 million.

The investments out of the contributory pension funds have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218
of the Companies 4ct, 2017 and the rules forrmulatad for this purpose.

The above notes have bean taken from the actuarial report as at June 30, 2023

SHORT-TERM RUMMIMNG FINAMCES

As at June 30, 2023, the Company has unutilised short-term nunning finance facilities under mark-up arrangements
aggregating to Rs 5,300 million (2022; Rs 5,300 million) available from various commercial banks carmying mark-up rates
based on 1 month KIBOR a5 benchmark rate plus 25 - 75 basis points (2022 1 month EIBOR plus 25 - 75 basis paints).
The above facilities include an amount of Rs 300 million (2022 Rs 300 million) available from Habib Metropolitan Bank
Lirited - a related party

Curing the year, the Company had chbitained a short-term foreign currency import finance facility against letter of credits

under mark-up arrangement of Rs 3,700 million (2022 Rs Nil) available from a commercial bank carrying mark-up of 1%.

The Campany also has facilities for cpening letters of credit and bank guaranteses under mars-up arangamaents as at
June 30, 2023 amounting to Rs 89475 million (2022: Rs 72,475 million] from various commercial banks, including Rs
25,000 million (2022: Rs 14,500 million) available from Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - 2 related party. The unutilised
balance as at June 30, 2023 is Bs 47,021 million (2022; Rs 37,175 millicen),

The above mentioned short-terrn running finance facilities and bank guarantees are secured by par passu
hypathecation charge on movaole assets and receivables of the Company.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Company received a consclidated dermand notice dated February 2, 2006 from the Collector of Customs
(Appraisement), for recovery of Rs 370.373 million in aggregate on account of customs duty amounting to Rs 235,775
million and sales tax amounting to Rs 124.598 million for non-inclusion of royalty payment to the Joint Venture Partner,
Toyota Motor Corporation, in the import value of CKD kits imported from 1997 to 2005.The demand had been raised
based on the view that rovalty value should be included as part of impored CKD kits which 1s opposed to the view of the
Company based on factual position that the royalty pertains to locally deleted parts. An Order was passed against the
Company on September 2, 2006 against which appeal was preferred before the Customs, Excise and Sales Tax
Appellate Tribunal (the Appellate Trbunal), bearing Customs Appeal No. K-512/06, which was decided, vide Order
dated Aprit 9, 2008 in the Comparny's favour and accordingly, the demand to the extent of Rs 370.373 million was
reversed. A Spl. Customs Rafarence Application Mo. 243 of 2008 was Institutad by the Customn Authorities on Juby 7, 2008
befors the Sindh High Court against the decision of the Appellate Tribunal.
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During the year ended 2007, the Company received show cause notice dated January 10, 2007 by the Collector of
Customs [Appraisement), on similar lines to the above notice, for the period from April 2005 to July 2006, and for short
recovery of As 54,348 pillion (Rs 34,429 million a5 custorn duty and Rs 19,919 million as sales tax), An Order-in-Criginal
clated May 2, 2007 was passed against the Company with the addition of penalty of Re 150,000, The Comparny preferred
an-appeal on July 7, 2007 before the Collector of Customs, Sales Tax and Federal Excise [Appeals-] bearing Customs
Appeal Mo, 535 of 2007 which is pending as at the year end.

A demand cum show cause notice dated February 17, 2007 was issued to the Company alleging that the Company
owes custom duty and sales tax amounting to Rs 55.598 million on imports of CKD kits as part of its automabile
business, An Order-in-original dated May 30, 2007 was passed against the Company against which an appeal bearing
Customs Appeal No. K-298/2007 dated June 23, 2007 is pending before the Customs Appellate Tribunal.

During the year ended 2018, the Company received two show cause notices dated February 9, 2018 from the Collector
of Customs [Adjudication=l), for the period from July 2013 to June 2007, in respect of MCC PMBG and MCC
Appraisement (West), alleging short recovery of duties and taxes of Rs 1,947,134 million and Rs 2,232,149 million
respectively. The Company has challenged these show cause notices in the Sindh High Court vide Const. Petitions MNa.
1372/2018 and 1410,/2018 dated February 20, 2018, The Court was pleased to restrain the Customs department from
passing any final order against the Company vide Orders dated February 20, 2018 and February 21, 2018 respectively.

During year ended June 30, 2020, the Cormpary received a show cause notice dated March 2, 2020 fram the Collector
of Customs [Adjudication - [} MCC Appraisement (East], in respact of the same aforementioned period claiming short
recavery of Bs 569.210 million (custom duty of Rs 289.986 million, sales tax of Rs 203.060 million and income tax of Rs
76864 million] on royalty payment to the Joint Venture Partner, Toyota Motor Corperation. The Company challenged the
sheow cause notice in the High Court of Sindh vide Const. Petition No. 1665/2020 and the Court was again pleased to
restrain the Custorns Departrnent from passing any final order against the Company vide Order dated March 9, 2020.

During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Company received a show cause notice dated May 19, 2021, from the Collector
of Customs East claiming short recovery of Rs 1,312.898 million (custom duty of Rs 455307 million, additional custom
duty Rs 30.420 million, sales tax of Rs 599.892 million and income tax of Rs 227.077 million} on royalty payment to the
Joint Verture Partner, Toyota Motor Corporation for the period from July 2017 to June 2020. The Company challenged
the show cause notice before the Sindh High Court vide Const. Petition Mo, 0-3593/72021. The Court was pleased to
restrain the Customs Departrnent from passing any final order against the Company vide Crder dated June 8, 2021.

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Company received two show cause notices from Collector of Customs MCC
Appraisement (West) and MCC PMBQ dated July 26, 2021 claiming short recovery of Rs 374.986 million (customs duty
of Rs 126.630 million, additional custom duty of Bs 16,884 million, sales tax of Rs 167.912 million and income tax of Rs
635680 million) and Rs 1,506.412 million (custorns duty of Rs 508.70e million, additional customs duty of Rs 67.827
million, sales tax of Rs 674.544 million and income tax of Rs 255335 million on royalty payment to the Joint Venture
Partner, Toyota Motor Corporation for the period from July 2017 to June 2020 and July 2017 to June 2021 respectively. The
Cornpany filed two Const. Petitions, bearing No. 480772021 and 4808,/2021 respectively, wherein the Sindh High Court,
vide Interirn Order dated August @, 2021 was pleased o suspend the two show cause notices.

lhe aforementioned notices had beesn raised based on the view that royalty value should be included as part of
imported CKD kits which is cpposed to the view of the Company based on factual position that the rovalty pertains to
locally deleted parts. Subsequent to the year end onJuly 17, 2023, the Sindh High Court has decided the cases in favour
of the Company.

In respect of pending appeals at various appellate forumns, a similar favourable decision is expected based on recent
Sindh High Court Judgement as the facts are common and involve identical question of law. Therefore, no provision has
been made by the Company in these financial statements against the above mentioned claims as the management is
confident that the matters will be decided in favour of the Company.

During the vear ended June 30, 2017, the Company received an Assessment Order dated May 24, 2017 from the Punjab
Revenue Authority (PRAL claiming that the Company was required to pay sales tax on franchise services provided in the
province of Punjab for the period from April 2013 to December 2016, as per the Second Schedule of the Punjab Sales Tax
on Services Act, 2012. During the year ended June 30, 2021, Commissioner Appeals, PRA set aside the said Assessment
Crrder vide its Order dated November 8, 2020 as sufficient opportunity of hearing was not provided by the assessing
officer. Further, the Company received show cause notice dated lune 16, 2021 for the aforementicned period reguiring
to pay Punjab Sales Tax amounting to Rs 387 683 million. During the year ended June 30, 2022, the Compary obtained
stay order from Lahore High Court against the aforementionaad show cause notice and expects a favourable outcome.
Hence, no provision has been made in these financial statemeants,
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Druring the vear endead June 30, 2018, the Company recaived show cause noticss dated August 31, 2017 and February
22, 2018 from the Punjab Revenue Authority for recovery of Punjab Sales Tax in aggregate of Rs 77.698 million for the
periced from lanuary 2007 to June 2017, The Company has obtained stay arders from Lahore High Court against these
notices and expects a fayourable outcome. Hence, no provision has been made in these financial staterments.

Curing the year ended June 30, 2020, the Company received show cause notice dated March 8, 2020 from the Punjab
Revenue Authority for recovery of Punjab Sales Tax amounting to Rs 25.774 million for the period from October 2012 to
March 2013, The Company has obtained stay order against the notice from Lahore High Court and expects a favourable
oultome. Hence, no provision has been made in these finandial siatements.

26.3 During year ended June 30, 2020, the Company recaivad show causa notice datad February 13, 2020 undar seciion
122(54) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2007 from the Additional Commissioner IR - Federal Board of Revenue,
challenging the admissibility of claim of deductible allowance on account of Workers' Profit Participation Fund (Rs
1,027.5861 million) and Workers Welfare Fund (Rs 330,455 millon) for the tax year 2019, The tax credit on the said
deductible allowances disallowed in the aforesaid show cause notice aggregates to Rs 393.952 million. The Company
has filed a petition against the same before the Sindh High Court, which is pending for hearing, The management of the
Company is confident that the matter will eventuzlly be decided In favour of the Company. Hence, no provision has
been made in thesa financial statements,

During the year ended Junes 30, 2021, the Company received show cause notice dated February 19, 2021 under section
122(548) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2007 from the Additional Comrmissioner IR - Federal Board of Reverue,
challenging the admissibility of claim of deductible allowance on account of Waorkers Welfare Fund (Rs 102,952 million)
for the tax year 2020. The Company has filed a petition against the same before the Sindh High Court, which is pending
for haaring. The management of the Company is confident that tha matter will aventually be decided in favaur of the
Company. Hence, no provisicn has been made in these financial statements.

Curing the year ended June 30, 2022, the Company received show cause notice dated May 21, 2022 under section
122(54) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2007 from the Additionsl Commissicner IR - Federal Board of Revenueg,
challenging the admissibility of claim of deductible allowance on account of Worlkers' Profit Participation Fund (Rs
368,778 millizn) and Waorkers Welfare Fund (Rs 300.3%4 million] for the tax vear 2021, The Company has filed a petition
against the same before the Sindh High Court, which is pending for hearing. The management of the Company is
confident that the matter will eventually be decided in favour of the Company. Hence, no provision has been made in
these financial statements.

26.4 During the vear ended June 30, 2022, the Company received a show cause notice dated February 23, 2022 uncdler
section 161/ 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 from Deputy Commissioner IR - Federal Board of Revenue,
challenging the non-collection of advance tax under section 2318 of the Ordinance irvalving amount of tax of Rs
634100 million for the period July 2021 to December 2021 against 2,966 units of Hilux vehicles sold other than for private
use. The Company challenged the show cause notice in the High Court of Sindh and obtained stay order against the
sakd show cause notice, while the petition s pending for hearing. The management of the Company 15 confident that
the matter will eventually be decided in favour of the Company. Hence, no provision has been made in these financial
statements,

26.5 As at June 30, 2023, the claims not acknowledged as debts by the Company, other than those separately disciosed
above, amounts to Rs 3,081,162 milllen (2022: Rs 2,755,943 million).

MNote 2023 2022
-——-(Rupees in '000)--—=—

Cases filed by government authorities 733,483 Q23838
Others 2,347 886 1,832,105
26.5.1 3,081,169 2,755,943

26.5.1 The above cases represent legal proceedings initiated against the Company by various parties therefore pending
adjudication in various courts and legal forurms of Pakistan since many years. A few cases have been added and /[ or
disposed of during the current year. The management of the Company is of the view that the Company has a strong
position in these cases and these cases will be decided in the favour of the Company. Hence, no provision has been
recarded Inrespect of these cases in these financial statements.
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26.6

26.7

26.7.1

26.7.2

26.7.3

Mote 2023 2022
—-——(Rupees in '000)——-

Cutstanding bank guarantees 21,982 926 24 051602

Cutstanding bank guarantees include an amount of Bs 8,261 406 million (2022: Rs 6, 056.574 million) in respect of bank
guarantees from Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - a related pary.

Commitments

Commitments in respect of capital expenditure as at June 30, 2023 amounted to Rs 2,384 215 million (2022
Rs 4,439 435 millicn),

Commitments in respect of letters of credit, other than for capital expenditure, amounted to Rs 20,900.580 million
[2022: B 10,782,735 million), The above latiers of credit include an amount of Rs 10,471,836 million [2022- Rs 309,386
rrillizn) availed from Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited - a related pary.

Commitments in respect of land rent and maintenance charges against leasehold land from Port Qasim Authority as at
Junie 30, 2023 amounted to Rs 187020 million (2022: Rs 195.112 million).

Year 2023 2022
———(Rupees in '000)-——-

2023-2024 - 8,092
2024-2025 B 434 5 494
2025-2026 3,821 8,921
202a-2027 9,366 9,366
2027-2028 9835 9835
2028 anwards 150,402 150,402
187 020 195112
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27 OPERATING RESULTS
Mamufactuning Trading Total
Mot g plir] ik | 2012 23 parki
[Pugees b )
Gross sales 74 123,587 555 133403327 4,433,238 G, 78 B1E 135,020,834 340,903,143
Sales bax {35.435,20%) (48,377,230) 2,250,563 I BE 413 [37.653 8571 {50, 758,545,
Capital alue tax {2208 79H) [2.209. 746
Federal eaclse duty [14,058 03] {14,150, 500 114,638 23] 114,450,800,
5 17288450 m55E 12,1757 1477411 185,155,775 285,550 598
Commission 4,233,121 [6.371 9785) [159.578 {315, 788) [4.363 104) {6,587 743}
Discauints {41.813) 13,9485 {688,309 {B80,705) {730,122) [T 671]
Compensation on asvenoes fom customerns (2,025,321} 12,654,388} 202532 {2,654, 385)
Revenie fom confracts with cusizrmers 1155 584, 248 261,534.870 120389 IR {TF, 10,627 275 5ith, 778
Costef sales b [167,874,155] (248,574, 7007 {7,955 35 10,53 547 (158,770 457) (257,900,297
Gross peofit 477003 14,955,170 3,160,077 3,449,311 7431470 18,4iMd 481
Jistribastion expanses 25 1,562 362 1,975 489 108,408 2T 1.69C, 768 1724200
Administ e eperses i 2,730,394 2,106,147 €2 826 11Z, 558 I 1,218,655
13,720, 756) 14,0125,635) [25% 2% f31.8) EEAR L 4,342 155
04,397 IE, 524,534 JOLBE  310R 395070 061506
Oiher cperating expanses k)l (487 50) [%74, 50 (32,588] (9,457 (220, 424] (186, 3705
‘Wodkers' Prafit Panicipation
Fund and 'Workess' Welfare Furd kK 1500, 5] [1.244,052] {637, 146 {1,244, 793)
Met ol | profit from cgerations {118, 115] 7 508,521 1877357 3,002 6t 7,758,547 12,631,168
Oner inqomme ki &, 179,38 2,950
16,437,923 25,566,875
Ainarce costs k' (140,725) (14,2991
Brafit before taxation 16,707,104 25,452,576
Tawatlen 35 {7,132 78] {651, 724}
Profic after taxation & ahd 425 15,811,848
271 Management monitars the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making decisicns
about rescurce allocation and performance assessment, Operating segments are reported in a manner congistent with
intemal reporting provided to the CODM. Segment performance is generally evaluated based on certain key
performance indicators including business volume and gross profit. Segment results include items directly attributable
to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.
272 The management has determined the cperating segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM that are used
o make strategic and business decisions.
Manufacturing
This segment relates to the sale of locally manufactured cars and parts.
Trading
This segment relates to the trading of Completely Built Unit (CBUY, motor il and parts.
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27.3

274

275

276

28

Segment wise assais and liabilities are not being reviewed by the CODM

This includes an amount of Rs 62376 milllon (2022: Rs 0.257 million) in respect of export sales of auto parts and locally

manufactured vehicles,

The gross zales, net of sales tax and discount, for Trading' segment include an amount of Rs 2,032.097 million (2022:

Rs 2,623,621 million) in respect of sales of maotor ail,

Other operating expenses, administrative expenses and distribution expenses (excluding warranty claims, pre-delivery
inspection and service charges, development expenditure, transporiation ana running rovalty), are allocated betvesn
rmanufacturing and trading activities on the basis of net sales. Warranty claims, pre-delivery inspection and service
charges, developrment expenditure, Waorkers' Profit Participation Fund and Werkers' Welfare Fund are allocated 1o
manufacturing activity. Under Selling expenses, running royalty and transportation charges are allocated to trading

activity,

COS5T OF SALES

Raw materials and vendor parts consumed
Cpening stock

Purchases

Closing stock

Stores and spares consurmed

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Rent, rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation

Legal and professional

Travelling

Transportation

Insurance

Wehicle running

Communication

Printing, stationery and office supplies
Subscription

Fuel and power

Running royalty

Supervisor fee

Technical fea

Staff catering, transport and uniforms
Prendision [ {reversal} for slow moving stock-in-trade
Provision for slow moving stores and spares
Cthers

Mote

2B 8282

44

283

B.d
71

EBalance carried forward

2023 2022
~——-(Rupees in '000)-——-
21,721,501 13,260,858
162,592 091 234,708 937
(16,471,580) (21.721,501)
158,242,002 220,248, 2594
1,568,248 2626107
2,384 470 2,759,993
6,708 6,390
282,183 384,33
3,480,151 3,171,182
1,650 2,407
30,502 24,828
7023 11,719
77704 61,918
57,887 33,103
6,310 4333
4447 5,768
3,631 3,526
a2 6809 862,596
2,722,334 4 259 257
13699 24,979
12,366 25,645
600832 740 643
140,063 (12,7913
8231 Be 184
7,762 8,600
12,0892 BEE 15,080,778
170,334 850 241309072
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Add: Opening work-in-process
Less: Closing work-in-process

Cpening stock of finished goods - own manufactured

Clesing stock of finished goods - ovwn manufaciured
Cost of sales - own manufactured

Cipening stock of finished goods - trading
Finizhed goods purchased

Clasing stock of finished goods - trading
Brovision for slow moving stock-in-trade

Cost of sales - trading

Mote 2023 2022
{Rupees in "000)-——-
Balance brought forward 170,334,820 241,308,072
2,074 897 1,213,065
8 1,140,165 2,074,897
171,269 622 240 447 240
73,3259 &,205,812
& _(9,528826)  _ (73,359)
161,814,135 245,579,700
2,828,517 | 1,837,327
713,508 1,484,265
8 [2,048 065) (2,828917)
8.4 70854 | 28527
7 965,312 10,521,597
169,779,467 257101297

281 These include an amount of Rs 52.667 million (2022: Rs 49645 millon) in respect of charge against provident fund and
Rs 38.938 million (2022: Rs 33.531 million) in respect of charge against pension fund.
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29

DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Rent, rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenance
Depreclation

Advertising and sales promotion
Travelling

Wehicle running

Communication

Printing, stationery and office supplies
Staff training

Staff transport and canteen
Subscription

Warranty claims

Pre-delivery inspection and service charges

Development expenditure
Transportation

Running royalty

Late delivery charges
Others

MNote

201 &2832

4.4

211

2932

2023 2022
—-—-(Rupees in '000)-——-

365,388 410,503
5,650 4,879
4,357 13,581

104,203 73,962

563,099 464,843

24,992 22,514
48,005 265,996
3,425 4,100
5,140 12,475
32,441 9,451
35,798 32,936
563 1,047
336,857 528,131
28,581 114,358
91,254 22,257
2123 109,620
31,098 28,064
240,621

5,754 3,862
1,690,768 2,124 200

282 The investrrents by the provident fund In collective investment schemes, listed equity and debts securities have been
made in accordance with the conditions specified in section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and rules specified
thereunder.

29.1 These include an amount of Rs 10,113 million (2022 Rs 9.617 million] In respect of charge agalnst provident fund and
Rs 5.383 millicn (2022; Rs 6.806 million]) in respect of charge against pansion fund.

e This includes royally paid 1o the following parties; 29.2 This includes royalty paid to the following parties:

. : Cnmpany Mame  Address ﬂelatianship 2023 2022
Company Name  Address Relationship 2023 2022 with the --——(Rupees in '000)——--
g:h the ———(Rupees in"000)——- Company
gAY Toveta Motor 1 Teyota-Che, Toyota City, Alchi Acgociate 13,542 24,789
Toyota Motor 1Toyota-Cho, Toyota City, Achi  Associate 6,973 3,495,243 Hcfpration Prefecture 471-8571, Japan
CorRamEtian PrElgatre 710371 Jepan Craihatsu Maotor 1-78-1, Hanshin Ryutsu Center, GroUp company - 1,530
ToyotaDathatsu 99 Moo 5, T. Ban-Ragad, Group . 23,020 CompenyLnive’  Yemaotes Nihincmis) Hyege,
Engineering & A Bank-bo, Samutprakran, Compary of B3I, Japdr Note 2023 2022
Manufacturing 105060, Kingdom of Thailand Associate .
Company Limited 30 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES ~—-—-(Rupees in '000)-—--
Salaries, wages and other benefits 30 &28.2 anv 582 953,747
Rent, rates and taxes 162762 4 416
Insurance 71547 71,249
Repairs and maintenance 139 253 150,445
Depreciation 4.4 109,481 a9, 681
Amortisation 4.2 69,295 35339
Travelling G2 7885 45 456
Legal and professional 296,460 399,785
Director's fee 3,250 3625
Wehicle running 45,425 36,091
Communication 34 681 24,288
Printing, stationery and office supplies 4788 6,362
Staff training 245158 203,026
Staff transport and canteen Q90,621 5575
Security 40,455 37,614
Subscription 7723 9,329
Utilities 791 801
Cthers 23863 51,686
2,281,220 2,218,655
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301 These include an amount of Rs 16,148 milfon (2022: Rs 15.831 million) in respect of charge against provident fund and

Rs 10650 million (2022 Rs 9.774 million) in respect of charge against pension fund.

Mote

i OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Auditors' rernunaration 311

Donations 3.2

Realised exchange loss - net

Allowance for expected credit losses 9.2
3.4 Auditors’ remuneration

Audit fee

Interim review and other certifications
Out-of-pocket expenses

3.2 Denations
31.21  Donations inwhich a Director or his spouse is interested are as follows:

Mame of Director(s) Interest in Donee  Name of Donee

1. Mr Mohamedali R. Habib and  Trusiess
Mr Muhammiad Hyder Habio

Habib cducation Trust

2, MrMohamedali R. Habiband  Directors
Mr Muhamrmad Hyder Habib

31.22 The names of donees to whom donation amount exceeds 10% of total donations, i.e. HANDS Pakistan, Saylani Welfare

Trust and The Shaukat Khanum Memaorial Trust,

MNote
32 WORKERS' PROFIT PARTICIPATION FUND AND WORKERS'
WELFARE FUMD
Warkers' Welfare Fund
Workers Profit Participation Fund - current year 135

33 OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets

- Return on bark depasits

- Gain on sale of investmens in Market Treasury Bills

- Dividend income from listed mutual fund units

- Gain on sale of Pakistan Investrment Bonds (PIBs)

- Interaest income on Pakistan Investrment Bonds (PIBs)
- Unrealised gain on Market Treasury Bills

- Interast incomea an Market Treasury Bills

- (zain on sale of listed mutual fund units

- Unrealised gain on listed mutual fund units

Ineome from ather than financial assets
- foency commission, net of commission expense
of Rs 0.5 milllon (2022: Rs 21.865 million)
- Exchange gain on agency commission and exports
- Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets
- Freight and other charges income - net of expenses
- Certification income
- Unclaimed liabilities written back
- Realised exchange gain - net
Reversal of pravision for late delivery charges
- Others
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2023

2022

———(Rupees in "000)-——-

7152 3,799
256,066 181,992

210,256 -
47,020 579
520,454 186,370
2,581 1,985
3,994 1,167
577 647
7152 3,799

2023 2022

{(Rupees in "000)——-
1,000 16,000
15,000

Habib University Foundation 20,000

2023

2022

~—-——=(Rupees in "000)-—-—-

342,800 519,440
337,346 724,652
680,146 1,244,092
2,445 482 1,963,043
5,249,614 3,358,440
2,226,869 709,574
1,497,013 944,844
1,613,744 898,720
22,933 718,594
= 3,572,485
111,496 29,475
8,787 25,023
22,593 147,764
19,407 7,460
23,792 99,529
258,938 113,067
101,051 55,640
306,801 281,958
> 5344

249 808
17,053 4,751
14,179, 381 12,935,711
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34

35

351

352

35

361

36.2

MNote 2023 2022
FINANCE COSTS -———(Rupees in '000)——--
Interest on long-term loan 13,038 18,056
Interest on foreign currency import finance facility 4755 -
Unwinding of long-term loans to employees 28,579
Bank charges 83,312 2,778

Unwinding of interest on Gas Infrastructure

Devalopment Cass payable (GIDC) : 3,425
140,725 114,289
TAXATION
Current - for the year f,114 558 ! 10,084 144
-for prior years _(mz,350) | 158,956
6,002,508 10,243,100
Deferred tax charge [ (reversal) 1,130,261 (592,372)
35.1 7,132,769 9,650,728
Relatiohship between income tax expense and accounting profit
Profit before taxation 16,797,198 25,452,576
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2022: 29%) 4 871187 7,381,247
Tax effect of super tax 1,649,083 2772775
Tax effect of permanent differences 292,434 217 621
Tax effect of income assessed under final tax regime 20,056 (48,088)
Tax effect of income taxable at lower rates {316,566) (730,677
Tax effect of change in tax rate for future pericds 47,555 {101.106]
Prior vears' (raversall / charge (12,350] 158,956
Deferred tax adjustrnent for prior years 631,250 =
132,765 9,650,728

Due to impaosition of super tax at the rate of 10% the applicable rate has increased to 39% for the tax year 2023 and
orwards. Accordingly, the Comparny has recorded dafamed tax at 39% in accordance with applicable secounting and
reporting standards.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic

Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing the profit for the year after taxation by the weighted average
number of shares outstanding during the year

2023 2022
=——=—{Rupees in '000)~—-—-
Prafit after taxation 3,664 470 15,801,848
(Number of Shares)
YWeighted average number of ardinary shares outstanding during the year 78,600,000 78,600,000
(Rupees)
Basic earnings per share 12295 20104

Diluted

There are no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding as at June 30, 2023 and 2022
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Mote 2023 2022
37 CASH (UTILISED IN) / GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS -——--(Rupees in '000)——--
Profit before taxation 16,797,138 25452576
Adjustment for non-eash charges and ether items:
Depreciation 4.2 3,693,835 3,344 835
Amortisation 4.2 f49,295 35332
Allowances for expected credit losses 5.2 47 020 579
Prosision for slow moving stores and spares 7a 82,31 56,184
Provision for slow moving stock-in-trade 8.4 2n.mz 16,131
Gain on disposal of operating fixed assets 33 {23,782) (99,529)
Gain on sale of Pakistan Investrment Bonds 33 (1,497 .013) (G4 g44)
Gain on redemption of investrents in listed mutual fund units 33 [(111,49¢) [29,475)
Gain on sale of investrments in Market Treasury Bills 33 (5,249 614) (3,358,440}
Interest incorme on Market Treasury Bills 33 - (3,572 485)
Interest income on Pakistan Investrment Bonds 33 (1,613,744) (8987201
et unrealised gain on revaluation of foreign exchange
contracts - fair value hedge [438,061)
Return on bank deposits 33 (2,449 487] (1,963,043
Unrealised gain on investrnent in listed mutual fund units 33 (8,787 (25,023)
Unrealisad gain on Market Treasury Bills 33 {22.933) [718,524)
Dividend income from investment in Usted mutual fung units 33 (2,276 6859) (709 574)
Charge in respect of Worlcers' Profit Participation Fund 32 337 348 724 652
Charge in respect of Waorkers' Welfare Fund 32 342 800 519 440
Compensation on advances received from customers 27 202531 2,654 386
Interast on long-tenm loan 34 13,039 18,096
Maovement in GIDC (27127 [163,968)
\Waorking capital changes 371 (104,620,445) 58 74% 734
(94,232,120] 78,650,195
37 Worling capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in cument assets
Stores and spares (212, 119] (149,519)
Stock-in-trade (2,455 4972] {4,181,605)
Trade dabts 2,157 629 (2.574,154)
Loans and advances (5,749,485) (2,955,634)
Short-term prepayrments (14,899 (12.612)
Other receivables __1083063 | | _(709,084)
[5,245,787] (10,582, 608)
(Decrease) [ increase in eurrent liabilities . L
Current portion of deferred revenue 588 (3,698)
Trade and other pavables 2672 668 8,287 378
Warranty obligations 205,329 325649
Advarnices from customers and dealers (102, 253,443)| | 60,723,081
“(55,374,658) _ 69,332,342
{104,620,445) 58,745,734
38 CASH AND CASH EQUIMALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise of the following:
Mote 2023 2022
-——-{Rupees in '000)--—-—
Cash and bank balances 15 6,262,5M 6,793,784
Term Depaosit Receipts 14 50,800,000
Government securities - Market Treasury Bills 14 18,543 553 34803103
24 Bla 124 92 39A 887
184 | TOYOTA

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

39

391

39.2

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AMD EXECUTIVES

2023 2022
Chief Executive it Chief Executive i A
Executive Directors™ Executive Directors**
----------- (Rupees in ‘000) -- -—-

Managerial remuneration * 101,520 29 809 552,359 G5,048 14,487 522 451
Retirement benefits 6,840 37,846 5,883 . 32,389

Medical expenses 509 - - 616 - -
108,865 29809 590,205 102,057 14,487 554 840
Mumber of persons 1 2 o4 1 2 78

* This includes bonus, house rent, utlities and cther allowances.
** The Board of Directors appointed an Executive Director, with effect from April 01, 2022

The Chief Executive, directors and some executives have been provided free use of Company maintained cars,
residential telephones and club facilities.

During the year, an amount of Rs 3,250 million (2022: Bs 3.625 millicn) has been paid to non-executive directors, as fee
far attending board ana other mesatings.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS / RELATED PARTIES

The associated undertakings [ related parties comprise of associated cornpanies, staff retirement funds and key
managemesnt personnel, The Company considers its Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company secretary
and directors as key management personnel. Transactions carried out with associated undertakings [ related parties
during the year, not disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements are as follows;

2023 2022

-——-{Rupees in '000}-——
With associated undertakings / related parties:

Sales B0aesl 1,004,149
Purchases 112,753,203 145,065 687
Insurance premium 124,724 144 343
Agency commission 22313 167,470
Running rovalty 2,753,432 4,287,320
Return on bank deposits and Terrn Deposit Receipts 1,641,840 582,045
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets [ insurance claim 3,323 ]
Supenvisor fee 13,659 24,979
Bank charges 57.560 53,934
Annual subscrigtion 3,600 2,150
Interest on long term loan facility 654 4143
LC charges 42 166 12,166
With key management personnel:

Salaries and benefits 194,232 139,061
Post employrment benefits 10,183 g026
Sale of operating fixed assetis 19 35

Contribution to and accruzls In respect of staff retirement benefits are made in accordance with actuaral valuations [/
terms of contribution plan as disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements.
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40.2 The status of outstanding balances with associated underiakings [/ related parties as at lune 30, 2023 are included in
the respective notes to the financial statermants.

403 The names of related parties (other than those that have been specifically disclosed elsswhers in these financial
statements) with whom the Company has entered into transactions or had agreements / arrangements in place during

the year are as follows:
Basis of relationship

Common directorship
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Mame Percentage of
shareholding

(%)

Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Hil

Limited

Cherat Cameart Company il

Limited

Thal Limited 6.22%

Habkin Insurance Company 0.031%

Limited

Greaves Pakistan (Pvt] Ltd il

Hakiz Education Trust Mil

Hakib University Foundation Ml

Hakib Metropolitan il

Bank Limited

Chwerseas Investor Chamber il

of Commerce & Industry

Pakistan Business Council il

Pakistan Automotive il

Manufacturers Association

Unicol Limited il

Pakistan Japan il

Business Forum

Particulars of Common director(s)

M Imran A, Habik

r Azam Farugue

MHr lmran A. Habib and Mr Mohamedali R, Habib

Mr Muhammad H. Habib

Mr Azam Farugue

MHr Muharmmad H. Habib and Mr Mahamedali R.
Habib being trustees

Mr Muhammad H. Habil, Mr Moharmedali B

Habils and Mr Azam Farugue being rustees

Mr Muhammad H. Habib and Mr Mohamedali R.
Habib

Mr Ali Asghar Jamali (Member Managing
commitiea)

Mr Muhammad H. Habib

Mr Ali Asghar Jamali

Mr Azam Farugue

Shinji Yanagi
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Group Companies

Key Management
Personnel

Name Percentage of
shareholding
(%a)
Teyota Motor Corporation 25,00%
Toyota Tsusho Corporation 12.50%
Toyota Motor Asia Pacific il
FTE. Limited
RT. Tayota Tsusho Indonesia Mil
Toyota Tsusho (Thailand) il
Company Limited
Toyota Tsusho (Malaysia) il
50N BHD
Tovotsu Machinary Mil
Carporation
Towota Daihatsu Engineering Mil
& Manufacturing Company
Limited
Toyota Tsusho Asia Pacific Mil
FTE. Limited
Hinopak Motars Limited Mil
Name Percentage of
shareholding
(%)
Mr. All Asghar lamali 0.048%
Mr. Mohammad Ibadullah Mil
Mr, Muhammad Arf Anzer Mit
Mr. Mohamedall R. Habib 0.165%
Mr. Shinji Yanagi Mit
Mr. Muhammad H. Habib 0.045%
Mr. akihiro Murakami Mil
Mr. Shigeki Furuya Mil
Mr. Imran A. Hablb 0.0015%
Mr. Azam Farugue 0.000&6%
Mr. Rivaz T. Chinoy 0.000&%
Syeda Tatheer Zehra 0.0006%

Hamdani

Relationship with the Company

Associated Cormpany
Aszociated Compary

Subsidiary of Toyota Tsusho Corporation

Subsidiary of Toyota Tsusho Corporation

Subsidiary of Toyota Tsusho Corporation

Subsidiary of Toyota Tsusho Corporation

Subsidiary of Toyata Tsusho Corporation

Subsidiary of Toyota Maotor Corporation

Subsidiary of Toyota Tsusho Corporation

Subsidiary of Toyota Tsusho Corporation

Relationship with the Company

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Company sacratary
Director

Diirector

Director

Director

UDirector

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Post Employment MName Percentage of Relationship with the Company
Plan shareholding
(%)
Company's Employess il Post Employment Contributary Plan
Provident Fund
Company's Employees il Post Employment Benefit Plan
Pension Fund
2023 2022
-—(MNumber of Units)—-—
41 PLANT CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
Capacity based on double shift basis &6, 000 &6.000
Production 32,656 72,438
The capacity has been calculated based on average nomnal working hours in a year, whereas actual production rmay
vary in response to marke: demand,
2023 2022
——(Number of Staff)}—-
42 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Total number of employees as at June 30 329 3138
Average number of employees during the year 3,134 3,041
43 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY @ ===—seceeeee As at June 30, 2023 ———-——-—-
: Fair value
Amortised 1 0ugh profit  Total
cost
or loss
e 1 s G (Rupees in “000) ---—---—--
- Loans and advances 126,230 - 126,230
- Long-ierm deposits 10,020 - 10,020
- Trade debts - unsecured 886,064 - 586,064
- Accrued return 285,108 - 285,108
Other receivables 409970 : 409970
- Investments 7,794 310 36,353,879 44 145189
- Cash and bank balances 6,262,571 - _ 6263571
158,774,273 36,353,679 52,128,152
----- As at June 30, 2023----
Financial
liabilities at
amortised Total
cost |
———===(Rupees in ‘000)===-—
Financial liabilities
- Long-terrm loan 279,878 279873
- Unclaimed dividend 153,341 153,341
Unpaid dividend 3,512,068 3,512,068
- Tradke and other payables 37,821,204 37,821,204
41,766, 451 41,766,491
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------------ As at June 30, 2022 ———emeaeaue

; Fair value
Amortised i, 0. gh profit  Total
cost

Financial assets . sl l?ﬁ -
-------------- (Rupees in '000) ====—==acmwee-
- Loans and advances 46, 54% - 46,949
- Long-term deposits 10,020 - 10,020
- Tracle debts - unsecured 3,080,713 - 3,050,713
- Accrued return 341,268 - 341 268
- Other receivables 207 286 Q07,586
- Irvestments 62,805,199 B5 921,229 148,726,428
- Cazh and bank balances 6,793,784 - 6,793, 784
__ 73,995,819 85,921,229 159,917 048
----- As at June 30, 2022----

Financial

liabilities at
amortised Total
cost

Financial Uabilites . (Rupees in ‘000)-=~---
- Long-term loan 599, 833 559,833
- Unclaimed dividend 156,963 156,963
- Unpeaid dividend 1,269,582 1,269,582
- Tradle and other payables 36,541,756 36,541,756
38,568,134 38,568,134

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's activities expose it to certain financial risks. Such financial risks ernanate from various factors that
include, but are not limited to market risk, credit rsk and liguidity risk.

Tha Company currently finances its operations rmainly through equity and management of working capital with a view
ta maintain an appropriate mix bebweean various sources of finance to minimise risk. The Company's risk management
policies and objectives are as follows:

Credit risk exposure and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter party fails to discharge its chligation and causes the other party to
incur a financial loss, The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions
with specific counterparties and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties,

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities or have
similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual cbligations to be similarly affected by
changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentration of credit risk indicates the relative sensitivity of the
Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Credit risk arises from derivative financial instruments, investments [except for the investments in Government
securities) and balances with banks and financial institutions, as well a5 credit exposures to customers, employees
including trade debts, cther receivables and committed transactions with the group companies. Out of the total
financial assets of R5 52,128.152 million (2022; R5 159,917 048 million), the financial assats which are subject o credit risk
amounted to Rs 25,522 128 million (2022: Rs 81,038 681 million], including trade receivables from government agencies.

Cut of the total trade debts amounting to Rs 886,084 million (2022 Rs 3,090.713 millar), an amount of s 485272
million {2022: Rs 2,.610.910 million] relates to direct customers.

Cut of the total bank balance and TDRs of Rs 8,252 832 millicn (2022: Rs 57,586.849 milion) placed with banks,

amounts aggregating to Rs 1,372,075 million (2022: Bs 35 685475 milion) have been placed with banks having credit
rating of 484 whereas the remalning amounts are placaed with banks having long term minimum credit rating of AA+,
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44.3.1

44.3.2

Due to the Company’s long standing business relationships with its counterparties and after giving due consideration
to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counter parties on their
obligations to the Company.

For trade dedats, internal risk assessment process determines the credit guality of each customer, taking into account
their financial position, past experience and other factors. Individuzl risk limits are set based on internal or external
ratings in accordance with Umits set by the management, The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitorad,
Accordingly, the management believes that the credit risk is minimal and in the oplnion of the management, the
Company is not exposed to major concentration of credit riske.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its funding requirements. To guard against this risk, the
Company has diversified funding sources and assets are managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining a healthy balance
of cash and cash eguivalents. The maturity profile of trade debts is monitored to ensure adeguate liguidity is
maintzined. The management forecasts the lguidity of the Company on the basis of expected cash outflows
considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet such cutflows

The maturity profile of the Company's liability based on contractual maturities |5 disclosed in note 44.3.2 o these
financial statements.

Marlet Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

Currency risk

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due o transactons entered into In foreign
currencies. The Company manages its exposure against foreign currency risk by entering into foreign exchange
cantracts where considered necessary.

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into in foreign
currencies. The Company primarily has foreign cumency exposures in US Dollars (USD), Japanese Yen (JFY), Thai Bhat
{THB} a2nd Singapore Dollars (SGD). The net foreign currency exposure at June 30, 2023 is USD 32,921 million (2022;
UsD 47.679 million), JPY 1,258.287 million (2022: JPY 1,213.928 million), THE 22.284 millicn (2022; THB 19.147 million)
and SG0 0.228 milion (2022: 3GD 0L5%4 million).

Interest rate risk

Interast / mark-up rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrurnent wilk fluctuate due to changes in the market
interest / mark-up rates. Sensitivity to interest / mark-up raterisk arises from mismatches of financizl assets and finandial
liabilities that mature or reprice in a given period. The Comparny manages these mismatches through risk management
strategies where significant changas in gap position can be adjusted. The Company is exposad to interest / mark-up
rate risk in respect of the following:

190 | TOYOTA

2023
Fffmctin [ntarast  mark-upbearng Ner-interest [ mark-up bearing Toial
inberest! mark - - - v ;
: Maturity upks  Maturity afier A Maturity wote Maturity after s Jure 30,
Hp. fero arie year ona yaar Sub-tetsd one year TR YeET Sub-tatal X1z
% [Rupeas in ‘D00)
Om staterment of finanaal
position financial imstrument
Financial assets
Loars and advances 0.00-3.50 18,547 fa,4a0 93007 33283 - x| 125 230
Lang-terrn depsits 0,025 10,020 10,020
Trade debts - 846,064 - BB, Do BB, Dk
B ea iU 85108 - 285108 285,104
Other receivables 409,870 402870 402 870
Meesirments 21952199 25345214 - 25346214 1881975 - 1880575 44748189
Cashk and bards balances 10-20.5 6255820 6,251 B30 10,751 10,751 6262571
614581 TEAG0  F69,041  FnA27.000 10,025 70437711 5278152
Finanelal Habilities
Loang-term Izan 325 - 4.25 958 212885 Z7RETS FEEE-N
Unclairea dividend - - - - 153,341 - 153,347 153,341
Unpad aivicernd 3512 068 3,512,088 3512088
Trade and other payables A7 821204 37,821,204 37,810,204
39583 295845 270678 41485513 AT BB ETY 47 7664%
2023
Effpctha nkerest | mark-up bearng Hor-interest / mark-up bearing Total
mcerest) mark e g :
gt Maturity upk:  Maturty after Skt F'aturi'.t)- uptn Maturity afte Suip-tatal Jure 30,
e year ona year oM yERr OB e ik
* {Rupees in '000]
On statement of financdal
position financial instrurment
Financial aggots
Loans and advances 006-3.50 13,721 4372 1.3 17,919 10,937 ZB.B5a EERE]
Lang-term deposis 0,020 10,030 10,020
Tracke debts 3.080,713 3,090,713 3,080,713
Acenped retum - - - - 341,268 - 341354 341254
Orther rece vab e S07 BBE a7 Bas 07 Ak
ImESTMENTS MB0-Z000 4093218 7784 300 148, 720428 - 148,735,428
Cash and bardk balances 8.84-17.15 6,783,591 4,783,551 10,593 10,193 §,753 784
7726430 T 758582 155518112 4 357 979 20,957 4, 3BR536 159,517 044
Financial Liztlities
Long term loan 100 - 4.25 FR555  ITeATE 59% 633 55% 833
Unclaimes dividend - 156,968 - 156 955 156,905
Unpaid aivigend 1260579
Trade and other payables - . - - 35541, 755 - 35,541.755 346541755
®10085 Z7GETH 590, B33 37588, 3M 36,008,722 37,208 555

a) Sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments

As at June 30, 2023, the Company holds market treasury bills which are classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss' exposing the Company to fair value interest rate risk. In case of 100 basis points increase [ decrease in rates
announced by the Financial Markets Association of Pakistan for market treasury bills and with all other variables held
constant, the net profit before tax for the year of the Company would have been lower / higher by Rs 188.020 milllon

b) Sensitivity analysis of fixed rate instruments
Fixed rate instruments comprise of TORs, PIBs, balances with banks and loans to employess, The income from these
financial assets are substantally independent of changes in market interest rates except far changes, if any, as a result

of fluctuation in respective fair values. The Company's incorne from these financial assets does not have any fair value
impact.
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44.3.4

44.3.5

WO

]

Price risk
Price risk Is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices [other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, ar factors affecting all similar financial instrurments
traded in the market.
Fair value of financial instruments
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
pabween market participants at the measurement date, Conzsaquently, differsnces rmay arse bebvesn the carrying value
and the fair value estimates.
The Company classifies falr value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements.
Fair value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method, The different levels have been
defined as follows:
- guoted prices (unadjusted)] in active markets for identical assets or liabilitles (levell);
- inputs cther than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or Uability, sither directly or
indirectly (level 2); and
- inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (level 3],
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement of a financial instrument is categorised inits
entirety shall be determined on the basis of the loweast level input that is significant to the fairvalue measurerment of that
financial instrument,
-——— As at June 30, 2023 -—— -—— As at June 30, 2022 -————
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Lavel 1 Leavel 2 Leval 3
Financial assets 'at fair value Rupses In 000~
through profit or loss
Listed Mutual Fund Units - 17,551,904 - - 19,048,080 E
Government securities - Market Treasury Bills 18,801,975 - - BHAE7I6EE -
Derivative financial instrurments 457,140
Valuation technioues used in determination of fairvalues within level 1 and (evel 2.
Debt Securities
The fair value of Federal Government securities s determined using the prices [/ rates available on Mutual Funds
Association of Pakistan (MUFAF],
Units of mutual fund
Trhe fair values of investments in units of mutual funds are determined bas=d an their net asset values as published at
the close of each business day.
Derivatives
The fair valuation technigues include forward pricing and swap models using the present value caloulstions.
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44.3.6

47

471

47.2

During the vear ended June 30, 2023, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements, and
na transfers into and out of level 3 fair value measurements,

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's obfectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue a3 3 going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Company is currently financing its operations primarily through eguity
and working capital. The Campany has no material gearing risk in the current year nor any in the prior year.

NOMN-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 25, 2023 has proposed a cash dividend in respect of the year ended
June 30, 2023 of Rs 29.00 (2022: cash dividend of Rs 3.25) per share. This is in addition to the interim cash dividend of Rs
42 50 (2022: Rs 90.5) per share resulting in a total dividend for the year of Rs 71.80 (2022: Rs 93.75] per share, The
Directors have also annocunced appropriation of Rs 4,000 million (2022: Rs 8,000 millicn) to general reserve, These
appropriations will be approved in the forthcoming Annual General Mesting. The financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2023 do not include the effect of these appropriations which will be accounted for in the financial
statements for the yaar ending June 30, 2024,

GEMNERAL
Figures in these financial staternents have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated,

Corresponding figures and balances have been rearranged and [ or reclassified, where considered necessany, for the
purpose of better comparison and presentation, the effects of which are not material.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION

These financial staterments were authorised for issue on August 25, 2023 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

N ﬂ;? 777

!
Mohammad lbadullzh Al A
L

Chief Financial Officer “hief Executive

" Shinji Yanag

Vice Chairman & Director
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PATTERN oF SHAREHOLDING

As at June 30, 2023

Number of
Shareholders

1,532
2,166
292
337
60
22
14

&

9

2

o

4,487
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Shareholdings’ Slab
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100

500

1,000
5,000
10,000
15,000
20,000
25,000
30,000
35,000
40,000
45,000
50,000
55,000
650,000
70,000
BO,000
50,000
110,000
120,000
130,000
165,000
180,000
190,000
260,000
275,000
305,000
435 000
475,000
535,000
600,000
615,000
740,000
1,210,000
1,330,000
1,660,000
2,200,000
5,000,000
9.825,000
19,650,000
28,000,000

Total
Shares Held

57 448
939,880
251,232

811,991
447 187
270,550
189,493
136,565
254,959

68,238
451,650

40,600

48,500
102,777

55,415

68,070

79,532

87,500
105,415
235,830
130,000
162,040
180,000
190,000

1,032,667
272,384
302,674
433 480
470,685
530,394
600,000
613,707
740,000

1,205,753

1,327,670

1,658,693

2,299,211

4,890,000

9,825,000

19,650,000
27,382,730

78,600,000

FF}W{EDEBN oF SHAREHOLDING

Mumber of

Category Wisa No.

Category Wise

Categiorica of Sharshcwiers Shares Held of Follos / CDC Shares Held Percentage
Accounts

Diractors and their spouse(s) and minor children 8 240187 0.31%
= MOHAMEDALI R, HABIB 130,000
= MUHAMMAD H. HABIB 38,400
» IMRAN ALI HABIB 12,346
= Al ASGHAR JAMALS 38,000
= A7AM FARUGUE 500
® RIYAZ T. CHINOY 200
 SYEDA TATHEER ZEHRA HAMDAN) 500
» FARHA FATIMA HABIB W/O MUHAMMAD H. HABIB 19,951
Associated companies, undertakings and related parties 2 4,514,015 6.25%
= THAL LIMITED 4,890,000
& HABIB INSURAMCE COMPANY LIMITED 24,015
Executives 12,912 7 12,912 0.02%
Public Sector Companies and Corporaticns (ICP/NIT) 2 121,230 0.15%
w [MYESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAMN 3,700
n COC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 117,530
Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Mon Banking

Financial Institutions 1,857,521 1,857,521 2.38%
Insurance Companies 2,304, 211 2,304,211 2.93%
Medarabas and Mutual Funds 57,119 0.07%
u COC-TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND 3,899
= 0T - TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET OPPORTUNITY FUND 51,720
a CDC -TRUSTEE MITPF EQUITY SUB-FUMND 1,500
Foreign Investors / Companies 3 61,749,055 78.56%
(holdirng 5% or mare voling intersct)
8 TOYOTA TEUSHOD CORPORATION 5,625,000
u TOYOTA MOTOR CORPORATION 19,650,000
n OWVERSEAS PAKISTAM INVESTORS AG 27,382,730
General Public 4449372 5.66%
o | meal 41-,1'5?.5[:'3 3,8:"5
Others 2,894 364 a0 2,894 R4 3.68%
TOTAL 4,487 78,600,000 100.00%
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TEN YEARS
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Financial Summary

Income Statement
Met reveriue
Gross profit
Profit before taxation
Profit after taxation
Dividends

Statement of Financial Position
Share capital
Reserves
Mon-current assets
Met current assets
Long term liabilities

Investor Information
Gross profit ratic
Met profit ratic
Earring oer share
Irventony tumover
Debt collection period
derage fiwed assets turmover
Breakup value per share
Market orice per share
-asonlune 30
High value during the pericd
Low value during the perioa
Price earnirig ratic
Dividend per share
Dividend yield
Dividend payout
Divicend cover
Returm on eguity
Dept to equity
Current ratio

Other Information
Linits sold
Units Produced
Manpower
Contribution to Maticnal Exchequer
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Rsin 00

Rs in {00
R= in ‘000
Rs in ‘000

Tata!

R'S ||-I L

Rs in 000
Rs in ‘000
s in '00C
Rs in ‘000

Rsin'GC0

% age
% age
R=
Times
Days
Times
Fs

Rs

Fs

Rs
Times
Rs

% age
% age
Times
% age
Ratio
Ratio

Mos
Maos
Mos
Bsin'

=]

2023

177,710,637
7,531,168
6,797,197
9,554 428
5,643,480

786,000
59,783,911
24 497 682
36,039,448

553,698

445
544
12236
&

4

896
784 25

943 24
115581
802 45
77
71.80
7.a1
58 39
1.71
16.09
0:1
1.58:1

31,602

32 696
3129
84,811,218

2022

275505778
18,404, 481
25452 578
15,801 848
7,368,750

786,000
53 225,076
15,185,582

30,458,149
280,837

£.68
574
201.04
n

2
17.78
B8/ 16

1,144 .41
147380
1.084 97
5.69
93.75
819

46 63
2.4
2976
0:1

1191

75,611
72,438
3139
101,381,098

2021

179,181,727
18,653,710
18,199,183
12,828,592
8,135,100

786,000
47 415 465
15,809,645
29,752,647

745,433

2.30
716
163.21
9

Z
.06
613.25

| 25414
1,429.98
a7 34
7 68
103,50
825
63.41
1.58

26 61

0:1
1.351

57 73
59187
2,843
71,802,435

2020

B&,167 014
7 450,859
7,287,359
5,082,027
2,358,000

786,000
40,383,391
16,574,192
24,991 174

483,125

8.65
540
64 66
5

8

566
52378

994 99
1,280.00
00,00
15.39
3000
3.02
45 .44
218
12.34
0:1

1 &5

28,837
28519
2,855
35,927,543

2018

157,996,212
19191674
18,975,929
13,714,975
8,039,000

786,000
38,259,300
13,898 033
26,679,161

558,920

12,15
868
174.49
11

5
14.90
500 48

1,203.92
1,582.90
103062
£.90
115.00
9.55
65,91
1.52
34.25
01
211

66,211
65,346
3,349
52,307,841

2018

139,715 429
23,684 658
22,5595, 166
15,771,860
11,004,000

786,000
15,058,342
7,311,379
29383117
2271

17.10
11.29
F00.66
T

3
22.89
467.49

1,421.48
788000
1,.300.00
7.08
140.00
8.85
69.77
1.43
42.937

5 |
1.63:1

64, 000
62,886
3,266
48,843,141
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111,942 544
19,492 589
19,140,767
13,001,265

9,039,000

786,000
0,410,962
6,345 444
24,762 671
3933

17.66
11.61
16541
M

3
18.90
286

1,793.60
2,110.00
935.00
10.54
115.00
6.41

63 57
1.44
41.67

60,586
59,945
2,849
38,959,490

2016

108,758 668
17,731,239
17,397 448
11,454 940

7,860,000

786,000
26,843,500
4938277
17,473,164

18.30
10.53
145,74
13

3
2147
35152

9309 54
1,313.00
884,75
6.45
100.00
10,64
68 62
1.46
41.46

B

01

1.58:1

64,584
64,0%
2,765
37,325,754

2015

05,516,322
14,244 230
14,132,569
Q110,257
5,288,000

786,000

23,249 520

5,193,477
13,861,221

1478
9.44
115,91
15

4

17.19
30580

1, 24900
1,320.00
520.00
10.78
80.00
5.41
&59.02
1.45
379

01

o

1.53:1

57 387
Eh, 888
2,322

32076453

2014

57,063,622
5,793,582
50164597
3873457
2,318,700

786,004
19128 £52
6,033,264
14,062,278

10.15
6.7%
4925

10
13.M
253 38

537,97
545 00
00.00
0,62
2950
5.48
59.86
1.67
19.45

0:1

3:35:1

94,470
3302
2,001
19,261,559

Annual Report 2023 |




NOTICE OF ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING

Motice is hereby given that the 34th Annual General Meeting [(AGM) of INDUS MOTOR COMPANY LIMITED (the Company] will be
held on Wednesday, September 27, 2023 at 9 a.m., at the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), Chartered
Accountants Avenue, Block 8, Clifton, Karachi to transact the following business. The shareholders may also attend the AGM via
vidhes link facility,

A} ORDINARY BUSINESS

3 To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statemenis of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023,
together with the Chairman's Reviey and Directors and Auditors Report therean,

2. To approve cash dividend [2022-2023) on the ordinary shares of the Company. The directors have recormmended a Final
Cash dividend at 290% i.e. Rs 29 per share, This is in addition to the combined Interim Dividend of 428% i.e. Rs, 42.80 per
share, already paid. The total dividend for 2022-2023 will thus amount to 718% e, Rs, 71.80 per shara,

3. Toappoint auditors and fix their rermuneration for the year ending June 30, 2024, The present auditors M/s. AF. Ferguson &
Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment.

B) SPECIALBUSINESS

4. Toconsider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without modification(s), the following resclutions to enable and authorize the
Company to circulate the Annual Audited Financial Staterments, to the members of the Company through QR enabled cods
and weblink as reqguired by the Securities and exchange Comrnission of Pakistan (SECP) wvide its Notification S.R.O.
369(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, instead of circulating the same through CD/OVED/USE.

RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby authorized to circulate its Annual Audited Financial Staternents, to the
members of the Company through QR enabled code and weblink, in accordance with 5.R.0. 389(11/2023 dated March 21,
2023, issued by SECP.

FURTHER RESCLVED THAT the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer or Cormparny Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby singly authorized to do all acts, deeds and things, take or cause to be taken all necessary actions to comply with all
legal formalities and requirerneants and file necessary documents, as may be necessary or incidental for the purpose of
implamenting this resolution,

€} ANYOTHERBUSIMESS

5. Totransact any other ordinary business of the Company with the permission of the Chairman.

By order of the Board

"

Karachi. Muhammad Arif Anzer
August 25, 2023 Company Secretary
MNOTES:

1. Participation in the AGM proceeding via the video conference facility

Shareholders Interested in attending the meeting through video conferencing are requested to email the following
information with the subject “Registration for Annual General Meeting,” alongwith a2 valid copy of their CHIC to
imnc.corporate@ioyota-indus.com, Video link and login credentials will be shared with ONLY those Members, whose emails,
containing sl the below mentionad particulars, are recejved at least 48 hours before the AGM,

Folio # / Mame of ' . E-mail
S.# | Name of Company CDC Account # Shareholder CNIC# Mobile # Address

Indus Motor
Company Limited

Shareholders may also provide thelr comments and gquestions for the egenda items of the AGM in their email for registration.
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Closure of Share Transfer Books

The Share Transfer Bocks of the Company will be closed from Septernber 20, 2023 to September 27, 2023 (both days
inclusive] for the purpose of the AGM and payment of the Final Cash dividend. Transfer requests received by CDC
Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-8, Block "B°, 5.M.C.H.5:, Maln Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400. Tel;
0800-23275, WAN: 111-111-500, Email; cdesr@cdesrsl.com at the close of business on Septernber 19, 2023 will be
treated in time for the purpose of determining abowve entitlement to the transferees for payment of final dividend and
to attend the AGM,

For Attending the Meeting

In case of individuals, the Account Holders or sub-zocount halders and/or the persons whose sacurities are in group
account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulaticns, shall authenticate their identity by showing
original CHIC or criginal passport at the time of attending the meeting

I the case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of Attornay with the specimen signature of
the nominee shall be produced (if it has not been provided earlier] at the time of attending the meeting.

Proxy

A member entitled to attend and vote at this General Meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend, speak and vote
in his place at the Meeting. A ‘Proxy Form' appaointing a proxy must be depaosited at the Registerad Office of the
Company, at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting, alongwith copy of CNIC of Proxy. In case of corporate
entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attormey with specimen signature of the nominee alongwith his/her
copy of CHIC shall be provided atleast 48 hours before the time of the meeting. The Form of Proxy in English and Urdu
is attached in the Annual Report and should be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CHNIC
Mumbers should be mentioned an the Forms, The Form of Proxy is also available on the Company's website
[waanw toyota-indus. com).

Updating of particulars

The Shareholders are requested to promptly notify change in their address, if any, to the Company’s Share Registrar,
In case of Corporate entity, the shareholders are requested to promptly notify change in their particulars of their
authorized representative, Ifapplicable

Submission of copies of valid CNIC not provided earlier

Individual Shareholders are ance again reminded to submit & copy of their valid CNIC, If not provided earlier to the
Company's Share Registrar, In case of non-availability of a2 valid copy of the Shareholders’ CHNIC in the records of the
Company, the company shall withhold the Dividend under the provisions of Section 2432 of the Companies &ct 2017,

Withhelding Tax en Dividend
Currently, the deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend paid by the companies under section 150 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, are a5 under:

(@l ForPersons appearing in Active Taxpayer List (ATL) 15%
(b] FerPersons not apoearing in Active Taxpayer List (ATL) 30%

Shareholders who have filed their Return are advised to make sure that their names are entered into latest Active Tax
Fayars List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR at the time of dividend payment, ctherwise they shall be treated as
persons not appearing (n ATL and tax on their cash dividend will be deducted at the rate of 30%, instead of 15%.

Withhelding tax on Dividend in case of Joint Account Holders

In order to enable the Company to follow the directives of the regulators to determine sharehaolding ratio of the Joint
Account Holder(s) (where sharehalding has not been determined by the Principal shareholder) for deduction of
withholding tax on dividend of the Company, shareholders are requested to please furnish the shareholding ratio
details of themselves as Principal shareholder and their Joint Holders, to the Company’s Share Registrar, enabling the
Comparny to compute withholding tax of each shareholder accordingly, The required information must reach the
Company's Share Registrar by September 19, 2023, otherwise each shareholder will be assumed to have egual
propordon of shares and the tax will be deducted accordingly.
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9.  Payment of Cash Dividend Electronically (E-mandate)
In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Distibution of Dividend)
Regulations, 2017, it is mandatory that dividend payable in cash, shall only be paid through electronic mode directly into
the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder.

In compliance with the above provisions, the Company hereby again requests the shareholders to provide details of their
bank mandate specifying: (i) title of account, (i) account number, (il IBAN number (i) bank name and (v] branch name,
code & address; to Company's Share Begistrar, CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, Shareholders who hold shares with
Participants / Central Depository Cormpany of Pakistan (CDC) are advised to provide the mandate to the concerned Broker
FCOC. In absence of the complete bank details, including 1BAN mentioned above, the company shall withhold the
Dividend under the provision of Section 243 of the Companies Act, 2017, The “Electronic Dividend Mandate Form™ in
English and Urdu iz attached in the Annual Report and the same is also available on the Company's website
[wwow toyota-indus.com).

10. Conversion of Physical Shares into Book-Entry Ferm
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, requires all listed companies to replace the shares held in physical form with the
shares to be issued in Book-Entry Form within {4) years from the date of the promulgation of the Companies &ct 2017.
Pursuant to the SECP letter Mo, CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639-640 dated March 28, 2021, the Company is following up with all
shareholders holding shares in physical form with the request to convert their shares in Bool-Entry Form in order to comply
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, Shareholders are again reguested to contact the Company's Share

Registrar to understand and compleie the process of conversion of shares held in physical form, into the Book-Entry Form.

11. Distribution of Annual Report and Notice of Meetings through Email (Optional)
Pursuant to the provisions of section 223(8) of the Companies Act, 2017, the companies are permitted to circulate their
Annual Audited Financial Staterments, along with Auditor’s Report, Directors’ Review Report ete. ("Annual Beport”) and the
Motice of AGM ("MNotica"), to its shareholders by email. The Annual Report of the Company for the yearended June 30, 2023
is also available on the Company’s website (www. toyota-indus.com).

12. Procedure for E-Voting and Postal Ballot
Pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 and its amendments notified vide SRO 2192(1)/2022 dated
December 5, 2022, members will be allowed to exercise their right to vote for the special business in the AGM, In
accordance with the conditions mentioned in the aforesaid regulations. The Company shall provide its members with the
following options for voting.

(I} E-voting Procedure

al Members who intend to exercise thair ight of vote through e-voting shall send email with subject "E-voling Regquest” at
imc.corporate@tovota-indus.com and provide their valid CHIC Numbers, Cell numbers and email address on or befare
Seotember 15, 2023, Detalls of the e~voting facility will be shared through an email with the members

Bl  The web address, login details, and password, will be communicated to members via email. The security codes will be
communicated to members through SMS from the web portal of CDC Share Registrar Services Limited.

c)  ldentity of the Members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated through electronic signature or
authentication for login.

dl  E-Vaoting lines will start from September 22, 2023, 09:00 a.m. and shall close on Septerniber 26, 2023 at 5:00 p.m. Members
can cast their votes any time during this period, Once the vote on a resolution s cast by a Member, he [ she shall not be
allowed to change it subsequentiy.

(I PostalBallot

Mermbers may altematively opt for voting thraugh postal ballot. The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed
ballot paper, along with copy of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC), should reach the Chaimman of the meeting
through post on the Company's registered address, Indus Motor Company Limitad, Plot Mo, NWEZA/P-1, Port Gasim
Autherity, Karachi or ernail with subject “Voting through Postal Ballot” at ime. corporate@toyota-indus.com not later than
ane day before the AGM on September 26, 2023, during working heurs, Postal Ballet Paper, shall be published in
newspapers and will also be placed on the Company's website waww toyota<indus.com at least seven (7) days before the
rheeting.

STATEMEMT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 RELATING TO THE SPECIAL
BUSINESS

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the special business, given in Agenda Mo. 4 of the Notice, intended to be
transactad at the AGM.

Agenda No. 4 of the Notice

I vieny of the technological advancements, the SECP has allowed Listed Companies, through its SRO No. 389(1)/2023 dated
March 21, 2023, to circulate the Annual Audited Financial Statements, o the Members of the Company hrough QR-enabled
code and Weblink, which is to be included in the Motice of shareholders meeting. The Company shall circulate Annual Audited
Financial Staternents, through email, in case it has been provided by the members to the Company and shall also send hard
copies of Annual Audited Financial Statements, to the shareholders, free of cost, upon receipt of a duly completed Reguest
Form, as available on the Company’s website www toyota-indus.com,

Mone of the Directors of the Company have any direct or indirect interest in the Specizal business, except In their capacity as
members and directors of the company.
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FORM OF PROXY

Thirty-fourth Annual General Meeting
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M/s. CDC Share Registar Services Limited,
CDC House, 99-B, Block "B, S.M.C.H.5,,

Main Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi-74400

. Registrar, Indus Motor Company Limited
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ELECTRONICDIVIDEND = =
MANDATE FORM

Indus Motor Company Limited - =

In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companias Act, 2017 and Companies {Distribution of Dhidend)
Requlations, 2007, it is mandatory that dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through electronic mode directly Tnfo
the bank account designatad by the entitled sharehaolder

Shareholders ara requestad to send the attached form duly filled ana signed, along with attested copy of their CHIC (o the
Company's Share Begistrar M/fs, CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, COC House, 99-B, Block-B, SMCHS, Main
Shabrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. Shareholders who hold shares with Participants / C2C arg advised to provide the Dividena
Mandate and attested cony of CNIC, directly tno their concerned Broker (Particioants) / CC

My Bank account details for credit of dividend are as below

Mame of shareholder

Folic number / COC Afc Mo, of Indus Meotor Company Limited
Address of sharsholder

Mobile number of sharencloer -

Title of account [*}

Account numiber:

IBAM number 7] -
Name of bark

Bank branch & code

Mailing addrass of branch e
CHIC no. (attach attested copy)

MTN {in case of corporate entity)

It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and to the best of my knowledge; | shall keep the Company
infarmed in case of ary changes in the said particulars in futura.

Shareholder's Signature Cate

MOTES

¥ Joint account holders shall specify complete Title of Account including Shareholders name
b d

Plizase provide complete [BAMN Mumber, after checking with your concermed ban< [/ branch to enable electronic
credit directly into your bank account.
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INDUS MOTOR COMPANY LTD.
Flot No. NW.ZA/P-1, Port Qlasim Authonty,
Bin Casim, Karachi Pakistan.
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